|
I
unhwlnullm I

i

VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
HIEERABR R A

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RFISHESTMRE I ERAF)
(Stock Code A% K55 : 01399)

‘‘‘‘‘‘

! Annual Report F ¥R -

L ,*'




11

24

30

51

76

83

84

86

88

90

199

CONTENT H#

CORPORATE PROFILE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

DRABEN
MHEE
DNEEHR
EFERES
EEENREDT
EENEREREE
ESERE
EEEREE
BB RS

REBEERAM
LG

FEMBRRE
RERBEER
FERERER
REMBRRME
M HME

REMEFF



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERERLH

ANNUAL REPORT £3§ 2021 °

CORPORATE PROFILE
NAEEN

Veson Holdings Limited (“Veson” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), with its focus on the R&D and application
of lithium-ion battery, is a leading provider of lithium power solution
for consumer electronics and smart hardware products and a leading
manufacturer of lithium-ion battery module packaging and integration
in the PRC, which was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in December 2006.

The Group is mainly engaged in the provision of lithium power
solutions and products to well-known international and domestic
mobile communication companies and internet technology companies.
Supported by its self-developed and self-designed power management
system with high reliability as well as advanced technology in battery
module packaging, the Group's lithium-ion battery products have a
reputation for high safety and high quality in the industry. The core
business of the Group is mainly the supply of high quality lithium-ion
battery modules for original mobile telecommunication, mobile digital,
smart electronics and smart hardware products, through integration
into the supply chain systems of well-known mobile communication
companies and internet technology companies in the PRC and abroad.
The high-quality customer groups served by the Group have strong
competitiveness and stable market shares, laying a foundation for
the Group’s sustainable and stable growth. The high reliability of the
Group's product, mass delivery capabilities and standardised and efficient
operating systems give the Group a competitive edge.
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The Group’s main production base is located in an industrial park
in Fuzhou, the PRC, which has strict quality control system and
environmental management system, adopts industry-leading automated
equipment and processes, implements strict process control during the
manufacturing process to fully meet the requirements of large-scale
production and ensure each product is of high quality, and follows
advanced international standards by adopting strict control throughout
its production process including selection of suppliers, raw materials
procurement, and production and quality control to provide customers
with safe and reliable products. Accumulated with years of production
and management experiences, the Group has developed a modernised
manufacturing system featuring refined management, standardised
governance and high efficiency, which enhanced the Group’s market
competitiveness through the improvement of business operating
efficiency and better cost control, and enabled the Group to become
one of the most important R&D and production bases for consumer
lithium-ion battery products in the PRC.

Upholding the enterprise spirit of “efficiency, innovation, excellence
and integrity”, the Group will continue to provide high-quality products
and services to its customers, thereby energising the world in which
everything is connected.
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| FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
/. IBEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE2021F12A31BILEE
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated) (Br BEERI - UMAREFITHIR)
2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000 % Change
ARETRE AREBTRT #HESH

(+/-)
Turnover R 7,091,644 6,216,571 +14.1%
Profit/(Loss) for the year REZ RN, (&) 38,561 (57,482)  +167.1%
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to AAREBA
owners of the Company JEMRARERZZF,(E8) 42,182 (52,683) +180.1%
Earnings/(Loss) per share BREF, (&)
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE(ARES) 3.87 (4.83) +180.1%
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Veson Holdings Limited (“Veson” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Company for the full year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021 (the “Review Period”).

Looking back at 2021, the Group’s main business, i.e. ODM business,
focused on the production of lithium-ion battery products, which are
mainly used in 3C consumer electronics and smart hardware products
such as smartphones and power banks. The main customers are well-
known mobile communication companies and internet technology
companies in the PRC and abroad. With the increasing breadth and
depth of cooperation between the Group and customers, the Group’s
consolidated market position has made the Group a major supplier of
lithium batteries for smartphones and consumer electronics.

As the production capacity of the Group had previously been fully utilised,
the Group needed to be equipped with new production facilities and
supporting facilities for its future business growth. Therefore, the Group
implemented the expansion plan of the industrial park located in Fuzhou
in mid-2019 to enhance the Group’s production capacity. Construction
of two new factories completed in April 2020 and a part of the new
factories has been put into use in mid-2021. The new design of the new
factories lays a good foundation for optimising the production process,
further consolidating and improving production quality, and expanding
the delivery capacity of the Group.

The construction of the Group’s self-owned and purpose-built dormitories
and related facilities for its staff and their family members in the industrial
park located in Fuzhou also commenced during 2020, which would
facilitate efficient management by the Group and provide better living
environment, optimising the Group’s ability to retain its staff and
recruit new staff and reducing the Group's rental expenses. During the
Review Period, some dormitory buildings have completed the completion
inspection, and employees have moved in before the end of 2021.

During the Review Period, the Group was devoted to improving its quality
control system to continuously improve its production efficiency and
technological level to ensure that all manufactured batteries meet high
safety standards. As for customers, the Group was constantly looking
for more partners to cooperate with, and the Group provided quality
battery supply to proactively meet the needs of existing customers. In
respect of supply, in order to provide customers with assured quality,
the Group, through its careful selection of supplier partners, ensured
that it can provide its customers with high quality and diversified battery
cell options and make greater efforts to satisfy its customers. As for
production, the Group continued to upgrade and transform its automated
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production line to ease the pressure faced by the consumer electronics
manufacturing industry on operating costs in recent years. In addition,
apart from product safety, focusing on the environmental and social
impact of production and ensuring work safety were also the Group’s
primary tasks. We have always ensured production and operation are
conducted in a way in which we shoulder social responsibilities, and we
will continue to develop the business in a healthy way to provide high
quality products for customers while providing a safe and comfortable
work environment for our staff.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) (the “Pandemic”)
in 2020 led to an unprecedented global crisis, and the anti-pandemic
lockdown order and economic uncertainties around the world brought
about by the Pandemic caused consumers to stop spending on non-
necessities, resulting in shrinking demand in smartphone market, and
the prolonged replacement cycle of consumers resulted in an overall
sluggish smartphone industry around the world. Stepping into 2021, the
Pandemic continues to spread and recur, but the smartphone market
has rebounded since the third quarter of 2020. The smartphone market
has maintained a quarter-on-quarter growth, but after four quarters of
year-on-year growth, the smartphone market finally lost impetus in the
third quarter of 2021. The reason is that since the beginning of 2021, the
supply shortage of semiconductor-related components has been affecting
mobile phone shipments in the second half of 2021, resulting in huge
pressure on mobile phone shipments in the second half of the year. In
addition, the smartphone industry is also facing other challenges, such
as stricter COVID-19 testing and quarantine policies, which continue to
impact the production in the second half of 2021. Besides, at the end of
2021, Omicron, the latest variant strain, spread rapidly around the world,
and the number of infected cases increased sharply. The new surge of
the Pandemic affected smartphone manufacturers around the world, and
ongoing supply chain issues hindered the development momentum of the
smartphone market. Escalating constraints on global smartphone supply
and weakening consumer spending power have begun to significantly
impact the smartphone market. To sum up, the two major risks that
the global smartphone industry is facing include the risk of lower than
expected supply in the industry chain due to the prolonged outbreak
of the Pandemic, and the risk of lower than expected sales volume due
to insufficient impetus for 5G replacement.

Although the demand for smartphones has been saturated in the
consumer market in recent years, from the perspective of quality, there
is still significant potential for the functional and technological innovation
of smartphones. With the integration of the Internet of Things with
intelligent life and even production scenarios, smartphone will play a
very important role. Smartphones will serve as interfaces and control
platforms and provide solutions for intelligent office, intelligent home and
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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other scenarios to meet users’ intelligent requirements. As the Pandemic
accelerates the change in people’s future lifestyle, and the ongoing
challenges of the Pandemic have catalysed the acceleration of digital
transformation, people spend more time working remotely and studying
through online systems, and online shopping, video conferencing and
online game applications are being used more and more frequently,
all of which will boost the demand for smart electronic products and
related accessories. Looking ahead, in anticipation of the stabilisation
of the Pandemic, the supply and demand of smartphones, tablets and
laptops are expected to have good conditions for recovery.

The Pandemic has lasted for nearly two years, and the recurring
Pandemic was a test to crisis management capabilities of enterprises.
The Company’s complete internal decision-making mechanism helped
the Group to promptly adopt many effective measures in response to
the Pandemic. Although there are still many uncertainties ahead, the
Company will continue to monitor the development of the Pandemic on
a regular basis, and evaluate its impact on the Group’s operations and
financial performance to adopt appropriate measures when necessary.
The Group will continue to closely manage and control expenditures
and capital resources in order to maximize provision position and quick
response capability.

The Group will proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-ion
batteries in new industries and new fields and grasp opportunities for
access to the market. In addition, the Group attaches great importance
to the safety of using batteries for electronic products. In the pursuit of
high efficiency and endurance of batteries, the Group will conduct more
rigorous review of the safety of its battery products to ensure that all
manufactured batteries meet high safety standards. Riding on high quality
customer resources, quality assurance and technology development
capacity, the Group commits to the provision of safe, portable and
endurable green energy products for customers and consumers.

On behalf of the Board and the management team, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all staff, directors,
customers, suppliers, shareholders and institutions providing professional
services to the Group for all your support to the Group throughout these
challenging times.

Feng Ming Zhu
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Stepping into 2021, the continuous outbreak and recurrence of the
Pandemic caused a setback to the global economy, and also brought
huge challenges to the smartphone industry. The Pandemic weakened
users’ desire to buy, and insufficient impetus for smartphone replacement
resulted in lower than expected global sales volume of smartphones.
According to the research and statistics of Digitimes Research, the global
smartphone shipments were 1.32 billion units in 2021, representing
a year-on-year growth of only 6.1%. Although the shipments have
increased as compared with 2020, the overall growth rate was still
unsatisfactory. According to the data released by Digitimes Research, 5G
mobile phones have gradually become the mainstream of the market,
and the global shipments of 5G mobile phones are estimated to be
approximately 530 million units in 2021, representing a year-on-year
growth of nearly 80%. China’s 5G mobile phone market is also growing
rapidly, and with the increasing number of devices in the 5G smart
interconnection ecology, the practicality of 5G is also highlighted. With
the wider application of 5G technology and the launch of more 5G
mobile phones, the network communication infrastructure will be more
complete, and 5G mobile phones will drive the growth of overall sales
volume of mobile phones.

Looking forward to 2022, the global smartphone shipments are expected
to enter a rising cycle as a whole, which is mainly driven by the gradual
recovery of demand after the end of the Pandemic and the continuous
promotion of 5G infrastructure in China and overseas developed regions,
stimulating consumers to replace mobile phones. According to the
latest survey by TrendForce, a market research firm, it is predicted that
when global economic activities return to normal in 2022, the annual
production volume of smartphones will reach up to 1.386 billion units,
which is expected to return to the level before the Pandemic. Lithium-
ion battery is widely used in the fields of smartphones and other smart
devices due to its high energy density and long life cycle. It is expected
that the emergence of 5G replacement wave in the next few years and
the rise in demand by consumers for smart devices such as notebooks,
tablets, smart wearable and smart homes will be the driving forces for
the demand for lithium-ion battery.

IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC AND RESPONSE
MEASURES

During the Review Period, the evolution of the global Pandemic was
still uncertain, vaccination was still far from universal immunisation
worldwide, and the long-term effectiveness of vaccination was also
facing challenges. The spread of the variant virus has led to local and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER W& DM

sporadic outbreak of the Pandemic in China, which has caused instability
to the domestic market environment to a certain extent. Besides, at the
end of 2021, Omicron, the latest variant strain, spread rapidly around
the world, and the number of infected cases increased sharply. The
new surge of the Pandemic affected smartphone manufacturers around
the world, and also resulted in a certain impact on the ODM business
operations of the Group. The Pandemic has lasted for nearly two years.
Travel restrictions, quarantine measures and other control measures in
different regions restricted, the movement of people engaged in cross-
border trade and interrupted supply chains. Direct or indirect orders
from overseas customers have been cancelled or altered. The ongoing
supply chain issues are hindering the development momentum of the
smartphone market. Resumption of work in India is still challenging
in light of the local environment. Since March 2020, as a result of
the suspension of production and work due to the Pandemic control
measures imposed by the Indian government, project investment and
production and operation have been put on hold. With the continuous
increase in the number of confirmed cases, the production capacity of
local factories in the mobile phone industry chain has been adversely
affected. In respect of upstream material supply, due to the tight supply
of components in Japan, South Korea, Europe and the United States as
a result of the global outbreak of the Pandemic, the industry suffered
a shortage of certain imported materials and an increase in operational
cost, and future production may be delayed due to the supply shortage
of key parts from overseas.

In line with the national and local governments’ anti-pandemic strategies,
the Group focused on monitoring the rebound of the Pandemic during the
Review Period and ensured that various Pandemic prevention and control
measures were continuously implemented, and organised employees to
get vaccinated in a centralised manner. During the Review Period, the
vaccination rate of the Group’s staff exceeded 85%, and the secondary
risks that might be caused by the Pandemic were effectively controlled,
ensuring the sustainable production and operation of the Group.

In respect of operation management, the Group has been closely
monitoring the variety structure and gross profit margin of the products
sold by the Company monthly, and the sales amount to major customers
and their proportion. The Group also analysed dynamically the changes
in the Company’s marketing trends and the risk of fluctuations in sales
orders from major customers, and strengthening anticipation on overseas
markets’ recovery status, to analyse the potential impact of subsequent
changes on the production and operation plans of the Group with the
aim to minimise the impact of the Pandemic on the Group’s operations.
The Group has communicated with suppliers and customers in a timely
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manner, carefully negotiated emergency measures and implementation
plans, and evaluated the changing trend of customer demand and the
level of risk from certain aspects including the fulfillment and alteration of
existing customer orders, and the increase and continuity of subsequent
orders. The Group has increased the proportion of its supplies to key
customers to maintain the stability of its market share. The Group has
continuously evaluated the sustainability of customers and suppliers,
and balanced purchase orders and sales orders to control inventory
growth. The Group has closely monitored the changing trend of total
inventories and slow moving inventories, and ensured the timeliness and
effectiveness of various measures to control slow moving inventories. The
Group also focused on monitoring the shortage risk of scarce and key
production materials, as well as the increase in material prices.

In respect of capital management, the Group has evaluated the impact
of the Pandemic on capital and material reserves from time to time,
and has been monitoring the Group's capital receipt and payment to
ensure that the Group is paid back on time. In order to reduce the risk
of doubtful and bad debts, the Group has strengthened its review of
customer ratings and credit limits and conducted more strict supervision
over the approval process, and checked the amount and overdue status
of accounts receivable on a monthly basis.

The Pandemic was a test to crisis management capabilities of enterprises.
The Company’s complete internal decision-making mechanism helped
the Group to promptly adopt many effective measures in response to
the Pandemic. Although there are still many uncertainties ahead, the
Company will continue to monitor the development of the Pandemic on
a regular basis, and evaluate its impact on the Group’s operations and
financial performance to adopt appropriate measures when necessary.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The current businesses of the Group comprise ODM business and bare
battery cell business. During the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (the“Review Period”), the Group’s consolidated turnover
amounted to approximately RMB7,091.6 million (2020: RMB6,216.6
million), increased by approximately 14.1% compared with 2020.
The Group recorded profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB42.2 million (2020: loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company RMB52.7 million). Basic and
diluted earnings per share of approximately RMB3.87 cents (2020: basic
and diluted loss per share RMB4.83 cents). The ODM business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB6,692.9 million (2020: RMB5,745.5
million), accounting for approximately 94.4% (2020: 92.4%) of the
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Group'’s consolidated turnover. The bare battery cell business recorded a
turnover of approximately RMB180.7 million (2020: RMB184.7 million),
accounting for approximately 2.5% (2020: 3.0%) of the Group’s
consolidated turnover.

ODM Business

ODM business is the main business of the Group. It provides complete
lithium power supply solutions and lithium-ion battery products for
well-known mobile communication companies and internet technology
companies at home and abroad, which are mainly used in 3C consumer
electronics and smart hardware such as smartphones and power bank
products. The Group focuses on manufacturing lithium-ion batteries and
R&D on application technology over the years. Our experienced ODM
product development team is able to develop, design and optimise
battery solutions jointly with customers that align with customer needs.
With powerful manufacturing capacity, reliable quality assurance system,
premium bare battery cells, state-of-the-art protection circuit design and
precise production process control, the Group has secured a leading
position in the industry. The Group attaches great importance to the
safety of batteries. In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance
of battery, the Group ensures that all the batteries meet high safety
standards.

During the Review Period, the Group’s high-quality customer base
has remained stable, maintaining the existing mobile phone market
share, allowing the Group to maintain a competitive advantage in
the mobile phone battery ODM market. In recent years, the Group
has been more active in making breakthroughs in batteries in other
fields, gradually increasing the revenue of notebook batteries, tablet
batteries and other types of batteries such as motive batteries, backup
batteries, true wireless Bluetooth headset batteries and outdoor power
supplies. During the Review Period, sales of notebook batteries and
tablet batteries grew rapidly, becoming a new growth driver for
revenue in 2021. Sales volume of mobile phone batteries decreased by
approximately 0.3% year-on-year to approximately 143.8 million pieces
(2020: 144.3 million pieces) and turnover increased by approximately
12.1% year-on-year to approximately RMB5,768.3 million (2020:
RMB5,143.8 million). In 2021, turnover of mobile phone batteries
represented approximately 86.2% (2020: 89.5%) of turnover of the
ODM business. Power bank contributed turnover of approximately
RMB314.4 million (2020: RMB426.5 million), represented approximately
4.7% (2020: 7.4%) of turnover of the ODM business. Tablet batteries
and notebook batteries contributed turnover of approximately RMB559.3
million (2020: RMB67.3 million) to the turnover of the ODM business
respectively, represented approximately 8.4% (2020: 1.2%) of turnover of
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the ODM business. During the Review Period, the ODM business recorded net
profit of approximately RMB171.7 million (2020: RMB22.2 million).

In recent years, in order to enhance the production capacity of ODM
business, the Group has gradually integrated various resources. Through
re-allocation of resources and addition of automated equipment, it has
improved production efficiency and further improved the control system.
However, as the production capacity of the Group had previously been
fully utilised, the Group needed to be equipped with new production
and auxiliary facilities for the future production needs of the business.
Accordingly, the Group implemented the expansion plan of the industrial
park located in Fuzhou in mid-2019 to enhance the Group’s production
capacity. Construction of two new factories completed in April 2020
and a part of the new factories has been put into use in 2021. The
new factories provides additional production capacity for the Group,
while its new design also provides fundamental conditions as basis
for the optimisation of the production process as well as the further
consolidation and improvement of the product quality of the Group.

Looking ahead, the Group, as a mainstream ODM supplier of mobile
phone batteries and power banks in the PRC, is expected to maintain a
competitive advantage in the ODM market of mobile phone battery and
power bank supported by the demand of existing and new customers.
The Group will strive to grasp the market development trend, extend
the application of lithium-ion batteries to other fields, and create greater
development space for the Group. In respect of operations, in order to
effectively expand its business scale, the Group will strive to increase
the shipment scale and operating efficiency through integrating existing
resources, strictly controlling costs, constructing new production plants
and supporting facilities, and strengthening research and development
capabilities, thereby laying a solid foundation for further sustainable and
healthy development of the Group.

Bare Battery Cell Business

During the Review Period, the bare battery cell business recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB180.7 million (2020:
RMB184.7 million), representing a decrease of approximately 2.2% year-
on-year. During the Review Period, bare battery cell business recorded
net profit of approximately RMB1.1 million (2020: RMB9.2 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Review Period, the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB7,091.6 million (2020: RMB6,216.6 million),
representing an increase by approximately 14.1% as compared to that
in 2020. Gross profit for the Group was approximately RMB514.7 million
(2020: RMB385.9 million), representing an increase by approximately
33.4% as compared to that in 2020. The profit for the year and profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company were approximately
RMB38.6 million (2020: loss for the year of RMB57.5 million) and
approximately RMB42.2 million (2020: loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB52.7 million) respectively, representing an
increase by approximately 167.1% and 180.1% year-on-year respectively.
The Group recorded EBITDA of approximately RMB235.1 million (2020:
RMB81.1 million) for the year, representing an increase by approximately
189.9% as compared to 2020. Basic and diluted earnings per share was
approximately RMB3.87 cents (2020: basic and diluted loss per share
RMB4.83cents).

Turnover by segments

During the Review Period, turnover of approximately RMB6,692.9 million
(2020: RMBS5,745.5 million) was generated from the ODM business
segment, which accounted for approximately 94.4% (2020: 92.4%) of
the Group's consolidated turnover. Turnover of approximately RMB180.7
million (2020: RMB184.7 million) was contributed by the bare battery
cell business segment, which accounted for approximately 2.5% (2020:
3.0%) of the Group's consolidated turnover.

Sales by major products

During the Review Period, sales of approximately RMB5,768.3 million
(2020: RMB5,143.8 million) were generated from the sale of mobile
phone batteries, which accounted for approximately 81.3% (2020:
82.7%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. Sales of power banks
amounted to approximately RMB314.4 million (2020: RMB426.5 million),
which accounted for approximately 4.4% (2020: 6.9%) of the Group’s
consolidated turnover. Sales of approximately RMB180.7 million (2020:
RMB184.7 million) were generated from the sale of bare battery
cells, which accounted for approximately 2.5% (2020: 3.0%) of the
Group's consolidated turnover. Sales of tablet batteries and notebook
batteries amounted to approximately RMB559.3 million (2020: RMB67.3
million), accounted for approximately 7.9% (2020: 1.1%) of the Group's
consolidated turnover.
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Segment Results

For the ODM business segment, total turnover contributed to the Group
during the Review Period increased by approximately 16.5% year-on-
year to approximately RMB6,692.9 million (2020: RMB5,745.5million).
During the Review Period, the sales volume of mobile phone batteries
decreased by approximately 0.3% to approximately 143.8 million pieces
(2020: 144.3 million pieces) and the turnover of mobile phone batteries
increased by approximately 12.1% to approximately RMB5,768.3 million
(2020: RMB5,143.8 million), which accounted for approximately 86.2%
(2020: 89.5%) of the Group’s ODM sales. Sales volume of power banks
was approximately 3.1 million pieces (2020: 3.9 million pieces). Sales
of power banks amounted to approximately RMB314.4 million (2020:
RMB426.5 million), accounted for approximately 4.7% (2020: 7.4%) of
the Group’s ODM sales. Sales of tablet batteries and notebook batteries
amounted to approximately RMB559.3 million (2020: RMB67.3 million),
accounted for approximately 8.4% (2020: 1.2%) of the Group’s ODM
sales. During the Review Period, the ODM business recorded net profit
of approximately RMB171.7 million (2020: RMB22.2 million).

For the bare battery cell business segment, turnover contributed to
the Group during the Review Period decreased by approximately 2.2%
year-on-year to approximately RMB180.7 million (2020: RMB184.7
million). The bare battery cell business segment recorded net profit of
approximately RMB1.1 million (2020: RMB9.2 million).

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB6,577.0 million
during the Review Period (2020: RMB5,830.6 million), representing an
increase of approximately 12.8% as compared to 2020. The increase in
cost of sales in 2021 was in line with the increase in sales during the
Review Period. Direct materials, direct labour and other production costs
accounted for approximately 92.7% (2020: 90.4%), 4.5% (2020: 6.2%)
and 2.8% (2020: 3.4%) of the cost of sales respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group in 2021 increased to
approximately 7.3% (2020: 6.2%) as a result of a increase in gross
profit margin for the ODM business segment during the Review Period.

For the ODM business, the gross profit margin in 2021 was approximately
7.2% (2020: 6.0%). For the bare battery cell business, the gross profit
margin in 2021 was approximately 14.2% (2020: 12.3%).
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Other revenue of approximately RMB56.0 million (2020: RMB38.1
million) in 2021 mainly comprised of bank interest income, government
grants, revenue from sales of moulds and reversal of write down of
inventories previously recognised. Other revenue increased was mainly
attributable to the increase in government grant during the Review
Period. The government grants represent subsidies received from the
PRC Government in appreciation of the Group’s industrial contribution to
the city, substantial amount of employment support, employer provided
housing, export trade and technology development incurred.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB92.8 million
(2020: RMB99.4 million) accounted for approximately 1.3% (2020:
1.6%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2021. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly comprised of entertainment expenses, repair
and maintenance, transportation expenses, office expenses and staff
salaries and welfare. The decrease in selling and distribution expenses was
mainly attributable to the decrease in repair and maintainence expenses
and staff salaries and welfare during the Review Period.

Administrative expenses of approximately RMB332.7 million (2020:
RMB294.0 million) accounted for approximately 4.7% (2020: 4.7%)
of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2021. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised of R&D expenses, staff training expenses, staff salaries
and welfare, office expenses, bank charges, depreciation and rental
expenses. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly attributable
to the increase in R&D expenses and staff training expenses during the
Review Period.

Other operating expenses of approximately RMB8.2 million (2020:
RMB5.8 million) mainly comprised of write-off of inventories and write-
off of property, plant and equipment. The increase in other operating
expenses was mainly due to the increase in write-off of obsolete property,
plant and equipment during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, the Group recorded a reversal of impairment
recognised on trade and notes receivables and prepayment, deposits
and other receivables, net of approximately RMB1.8 million and RMB3.1
million respectively, as compared to an impairment loss recognised
on trade and notes receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, net in 2020 of approximately RMB22.4 million and RMB1.5
million respectively.

Finance costs of approximately RMB77.5 million (2020: RMB40.9 million)

mainly represent interest on bank borrowings and interest on discounted
notes receivables. The increase in finance costs was mainly due to the
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increase in interest on bank borrowings and interest on discounted notes
receivable during the Review Period. Borrowing costs incurred during
the Review Period of approximately RMB16.1 million (2020: RMB15.7
million was eligible for capitalisation.

Profit/(loss) Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2021, the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB42.2 million (2020: loss attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB52.7 million). The Group recorded profit
attributable to owners of the Company mainly due to the increase in
sales volume and gross profit margin for the ODM business segment
during the Review Period.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group's funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain a
diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure. The
Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt profile,
and to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives by its centralised
treasury function. In order to maintain financial flexibility and adequate
liquidity for the Group’s operations, potential investments and growth
plans, the Group has built a strong base of funding resources and will
keep exploring cost-efficient ways of financing.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB226.7 million (2020: RMB211.3 million), principally
denominated in Renminbi, representing an increase by approximately
RMB15.4 million year-on-year. The Group recorded a net cash inflow
from operating activities of approximately RMB152.9 million (2020:
net cash outflow from operating activities RMB345.1 million) and a
net cash outflow from investing activities of approximately RMB392.9
million (2020: RMB160.6 million) and a net cash inflow from financing
activities of approximately RMB252.2 million (2020: RMB306.2 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group's borrowings, principally denominated in Renminbi, which
were outstanding as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB1,175.0 million (2020: RMB911.9 million). Bank borrowings
amounting to approximately RMB340.6 million (2020: RMB230.0 million)
and approximately RMB834.4 million (2020: RMB681.9 million) were
carried at floating interest rate and fixed interest rate respectively. A
total of approximately RMB861.7 million (2020: RMB698.2 million)
of the interest-bearing borrowings will fall due during the 12 months
after the end of the Review Period. There was no particular seasonality
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of the Group’s borrowing requirements. Please refer to Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements for details on the maturity profile of the
Group’s borrowings. The Group monitored capital using a gearing ratio,
which is total debt of the Group divided by total equity of the Group. Total
debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed as a percentage of interest
bearing borrowings over the total equity of approximately RMB1,061.4
million (2020: RMB1,024.5 million) was approximately 110.7% (2020:
89.0%) as at 31 December 2021. Bank deposits pledged for banking
facilities as at 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB988.7 million
(2020: RMB750.8 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.1 times (2020: 1.1 times) based on current assets of approximately
RMB4,537.9 million (2020: RMB3,654.9 million) and current liabilities
of approximately RMB4,182.0 million (2020: RMB3,376.8 million).
Trade receivable turnover days were approximately 111 days for the
year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to approximately 122
days for the year ended 31 December 2020. Inventory turnover days
were approximately 28 days for the year ended 31 December 2021 as
compared to approximately 29 days for the year ended 31 December
2020. Trade payable turnover days were approximately 62 days for the
year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to approximately 76 days
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group's net current assets as at 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB355.9 million, representing an increase by approximately 28.0%
from the balance of approximately RMB278.0 million recorded as at 31
December 2020. Net assets as at 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB1,061.4 million, representing an increase by approximately 3.6%
from the balance of approximately RMB1,024.5 million as at 31 December
2020.

Construction of New Factories, Staff Dormitory and Related
Facilities

The Group regularly reviews its production capacities as part of its
business development planning in order to determine whether new
production facilities may be required. In order to meet the production
demands of the ODM customers and to provide space for new production
facilities and warehouse facilities and potential expansion of the Group's
ODM business in the future, the Group implemented the expansion plan
of the industrial park located in Fuzhou (“Industrial Park”) in mid-2019
to enhance the Group’s production capacity. Construction of two new
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factories completed in April 2020 and a part of the new factories has
been put into use in mid-2021. The new design of the new factories
lays a good foundation for optimising the production process, further
consolidating and improving production quality, and expanding the
delivery capacity of the Group.

The construction of the Group’s self-owned and purpose-built dormitories
and related facilities for its staff and their family members in the Industrial
Park also commenced during 2020, which would facilitate efficient
management by the Group and provide better living environment,
optimising the Group’s ability to retain its staff and recruit new staff
and reducing the Group’s rental expenses. During the Review Period,
some dormitory buildings have completed the completion inspection,
and employees have moved in before the end of 2021.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, bank loans of approximately RMB1,175.0
million (2020: RMB911.9 million) were secured by the Group’s assets.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2021
amounting to approximately RMB17.0 million (2020: RMB55.8 million)
was mainly attributed to acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, no provision for contingent liabilities was
required.

Capital Structure

During the Review Period, there had been no change in the share capital
of the Company.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2021, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of fluctuations
in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has certain bank
balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese Yen, Indian
Rupee and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group's total assets
is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of exchange
risk is required and no financial instruments, currency borrowings or
other hedging instruments were used for hedging purposes during the
Review Period. Nevertheless, the management will continue to monitor
the Group's foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures
against currency exchange risks as and when it is appropriate.

Significant Investment Held and Material Acquisition and
Disposal

Significant Investment Held

The Group did not hold any significant investment during the Review
Period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

During the Review Period, the Group acquired additional 8% of
equity interest in Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. and its subsidiary
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (together as “Hongde Group”) from
non-controlling interests at a consideration of RMB4,599,000. As at 31
December 2021, the Group held 86.84% (2020: 79%) shareholding
interest in Hongde Group. Save as disclosed above, the Group did not
make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures during the Review Period.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any future plan for
material investments or capital assets for the coming year.
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Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 3,210 full-time employees
(2020: 3,885). The salaries of the Group’s employees were determined
by reference to the personal performance, professional qualification
and industry experience of the relevant employee and relevant market
trends. The Group ensures all levels of employees are paid according
to market standard and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the framework of the Group's salary, incentives
and bonus scheme. The management reviews the remuneration policy
of the Group on a regular basis and evaluates the working performance
of the employees. The remuneration of the employees includes salaries,
allowances, year-end bonus and social insurance. In accordance with
the relevant prevailing laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
participated in the social insurance plans set up by the relevant local
government authorities, including pension funds, medical insurance
(including maternity insurance), unemployment insurance and work-
related injury insurance. The Group has also participated in the mandatory
provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong employees in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Company also adopted a share option scheme
on 17 June 2019 to reward eligible participants (including directors and
employees of the Group) for their contributions to the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Feng Ming Zhu, aged 58, is an executive Director, the Chairman of
the Company and a member of the Corporate Governance Committee
and the Vice President of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
development of the Group’s strategy, the management of the Group's
legal affairs, the management of the Group’s daily operations and
monitoring the Group’s internal control procedures on a day-to-day
basis. He joined the Group in March 2007 and successively served as the
Director of Investment, the Director of Administration and the General
Manager of SMT Business Unit of the Group, and was appointed as the
Vice President of the Group in April 2013. Mr. Feng graduated from the
Anhui University of Finance and Economics in the PRC with a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering, and served as the Chairman of the Battery
Technology Association of Fujian Province, a Specialist of Fujian JingXin
Think Tank Industry Research and a member of the Steering Committee
of the Master of Materials Engineering of Fujian Normal University. As
at 31 December 2021, Mr. Feng did not have any interests in the shares
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Lian Xiu Qin, aged 50, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the management
of the Group’s daily operations. She joined the Group in March 1998
and she has been the Deputy General Manager and the Division Head of
the first business division of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited
("Scud Electronics”) since January 2016 and July 2016 respectively,
responsible for managing the Group’s business with its major customers.
Previously, she held other key positions such as the Production Head and
Engineering Manager of Scud Electronics. Ms. Lian has over 20 years’
experience in engineering and manufacturing technologies. She was
awarded the honorary title “Second-term Outstanding Highly Skilled
Talent of Fuzhou" by the Human Resources and Social Security Bureau of
Fuzhou in May 2013. The polymer battery metal shell structure registered
by the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC as a patent in the
name of Scud Electronics was invented by Ms. Lian and two other staff
of the Group. Publications by Ms. Lian on “Lithium Battery Production
Technologies” and “Electronic Products Assembly Process” are used as
teaching materials at the Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School.
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Ms. Lian is a qualified senior technician specialising in the production of
battery cells. She graduated from the Shenyang University of Technology
in July 1995 specialising in Applied Electronics Technology. She also
obtained an undergraduate qualification in Business English at the Fujian
Normal University in June 2009 and a part-time Master's degree in
Business Administration at the Seton Hall University of the United States
of America in 2021. Ms. Lian has completed professional training on
“Quantitative Methods in Process Improvement” (ISO 13053-1&2:2011)
published by the International Organisation for Standardisation and on
cost control management. As at 31 December 2021, Ms. Lian did not
have any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hou Li, aged 63, is a non-executive Director. He joined the Group
on 25 August 2016. Mr. Hou is a senior partner of Beijing Dentons
Law Offices, LLP. Mr. Hou holds a Bachelor of Law degree from the
East China College of Political Science and Law (now known as East
China University of Political Science and Law) and an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from the Xiamen University. He is
a certified lawyer in the PRC and has over 25 years' experience in
company laws and internal corporate governance structures. Mr. Hou
also engages in various social activities and had served as a member
of the Commission of Legislative Affairs of Fujian Province Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a director of
the Fujian Province Joint-Stock Enterprises Association and the Fujian
Province Securities Association, an arbitrator of the Fuzhou Arbitration
Commission and the chairman of the Law Office of the Fujian Committee
of the Revolutionary Committee of The Chinese Kuomintang. As at 31
December 2021, Mr. Hou did not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 72, is a non-executive Director and
a member of the Corporate Governance Committee. He rejoined the
Group on 1 September 2020. Dr. Loke was an independent non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee from May 2009 to September
2018. Dr. Loke has over 40 years of experience in accounting and
auditing for private and public companies, financial consultancy and
corporate management. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute,
and a life member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Directors Association. Dr. Loke obtained a degree of Master of Business
Administration from the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia in April 2001 and
a degree of Doctor of Business Administration from the University of
South Australia in March 2006. Dr. Loke is currently an independent
non-executive director of the following companies, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange: China Silver Technology Holdings
Limited (formerly known as TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 515), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
(stock code: 3626), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2882), Matrix Holdings Limited (stock code: 1005), Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 882), Times Universal Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Forebase International Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 2310), TradeGo FinTech Limited (stock code: 8017),
Crazy Sports Group Limited (formerly known as V1 Group Limited)
(stock code: 82) and Zhenro Properties Group Limited (stock code:
6158). Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, an independent non-executive Director,
is his nephew-in-law. Dr. Loke was also an independent non-executive
director of Chiho Environmental Group Limited (stock code: 976) from
23 June 2010 to 6 Dec 2021, Zhong An Group Limited (stock code:
672) from 30 June 2009 to 10 June 2021 and Lamtex Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1041) from July 2015 to March 2020, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange, and CIMC TianDa Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 445) from 1 August 2006 to 25 January 2021 and
Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (stock code: 1619) from May 2014 to
May 2020, the shares of which were listed on the Stock Exchange. As
at 31 December 2021, Dr. Loke did not have any interests in the shares
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Heng Ja Wei Victor, aged 44, is an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee. He joined the Group on
1 September 2016. Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree
in Electronic Engineering from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in Computer Science from the
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine of the University
of London. He is a member of, and holds a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) certificate issued by, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Heng has served as an independent non-
executive director of Best Food Holding Company Limited (stock code:
1488) since May 2011, Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (stock
code: 746) since June 2010 and Matrix Holdings Limited (stock code:
1005) since December 2012 and as the company secretary of China
Life Insurance Company Limited (stock code: 2628) since April 2013,
the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng was
also an independent non-executive director of CIMC TianDa Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 445) from 4 March 2009 to 25 January
2021, the shares of which was listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng
is a nephew-in-law of Dr. Loke Yu, a non-executive Director. As at 31
December 2021, Mr. Heng did not have any interests in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Lam Yau Yiu, alias Lam Yau Yiu Laurence, aged 58, is an independent
non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He joined the Group on 27
September 2018. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has about 32 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and corporate management. Mr. Lam has served
as the company secretary of Crazy Sports Group Limited (formerly known
as V1 Group Limited) (stock code: 82) since February 2019, the securities
of which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam has also served as the
non-executive director of Bank of Asia (BVI) Limited since June 202 1. Mr.
Lam was the financial controller and the company secretary of Zhong
An Real Estate Limited (now known as Zhong An Group Limited, stock
code: 672) from October 2008 to December 2016, the securities of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

EENSREEE

BAFHITES

MR# - 445% RBUIFHTES  FEZZEER
YNEZEEXREURREZEGREEERZES
KB - HHR2016F9 A 1A IMARER - ABLEBH
EGHMENGETMEFINERBA - MEER
EERERASEFIRIZELEL - URER
RBAREFHEIET RER 2R EHBRE LB -
BREAGHMAS®E  WIKFEEENEME
TR (AE)EE  HARKEBHARSHMAAE
BREE - MAEBE0NMFSARTERIERERA
AI(RR 1D 5% - 1488) « B2010F6 AEME (LT
ERAA(EMARGR - 746) R B2012F 12 AT E
NREEBBRARRMDNRSE : 1005) 2B IEHTT
E=WA2013F4RETTEASRBRINDBRA A
(B - 2628) 2 ARIMLE © ZE QA Z B H R
RZPT LT o MBI E R2009F3 A48 £202141
A25BEAFREREERBBR ARG R : 445)
ZEBNIERITES  RLRRM YRR LT e
TR ERIERITE FRIBMIE T ZI1R15 - H20214F
12A318  BREBEFEFRBAEEROEXVE - MEEL
|ARDERD P B E A o

MEMR 585 RBUNFNTESE EXERZE
SIRENNRERZES FHEEShEERZES

RE o HR2018F9A27TAMALER - MEL AR
BETMAEERGERAERTARGHAAE
BREE - FRE - @ ROXTEIEESLD
FEE o MEEB2019F2 A —HETRIES
EEERAB(AIWBE—RBEEARAF) (RHK
5 82)MARIMWE - ZAREFEHRT LT o A
LAEBE2021F6 ARtb—EEEZMEBIT(BV) AR
RRAIZIFHITES - MEEBE2008F 107 E20164F
NRARREEIRLZFEERAGR(RBERALERFR
AR BB 672U BRERARNE - Z
VNS i e i

27



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERERLH

- ANNUAL REPORT £#§ 2021 °

2 bbb R A T e s = —

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESNSREERE

Mr. Lam holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and a Master
of Science in Information Systems Management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a Bachelor of Accounting from
the City University of Hong Kong. He was the consultant to Chase Solar
Limited from January 2018 to December 2018 and he was the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Million Cities Development
Limited from January 2017 to July 2017. As at 31 December 2021, Mr.
Lam did not have any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, aged 68, is an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee. Mr. Cheung joined the Group on 19 May 2020.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor’s degree of Arts in Business Administration
and a Bachelor's degree of Arts (Honours) in Economics from York
University in Canada and he has over 40 years of experience in the
financial services industry. Mr. Cheung was an executive director of Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited, the chief executive of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute, the chief executive officer of Tung Shing Securities (Brokers)
Limited (currently known as Sinopac Securities (Asia) Limited), the chief
executive officer of Investport (H.K.) Limited, the responsible officer of
YF Securities Company Limited, YF Futures Company Limited and YF
Asset Management Limited, and the chief executive officer of Blackwell
Global Investments (HK) Limited. Mr. Cheung also served as a committee
member of the banking and finance training board of the Vocational
Training Council of Hong Kong from April 2017 to March 2019. Mr.
Cheung has been the chief executive officer and the responsible officer
of Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") of OnePlatform Securities
Limited since April 2018 and June 2018 respectively. Mr. Cheung is the
responsible officer of Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activities under the SFO and was the responsible
officer of Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type 3 (leveraged foreign
exchange trading), Type 5 (advising on futures contracts), Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the SFO of various other companies. Mr. Cheung was elected
as the chairman of the board of directors of the Hong Kong Securities
Association Limited in November 2017 and became its permanent
honourary president in September 2019, prior to which he was the
vice chairman of its board of directors from 2011 to 2015. Mr. Cheung
was a member of the Steering Committee of the Asian Financial Forum
2018 and has been the chief supervisor of East Asia Qianhai Securities
Limited since October 2017, a director of the board of the Financial
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Dispute Resolution Centre since March 2018, a panel member of the
AntiMoney Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Review Tribunal
of Hong Kong since April 2018 and a senior fellow of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since September 2014. Mr. Cheung
is a member of the Academic and Accreditation Advisory Committee of
the Securities and Futures Commission since April 2020. Mr. Cheung
has served as an independent non-executive director of Sang Hing
Holdings (International) Limited (stock code: 1472) since January 2020
and was the executive director and the managing director of South China
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 619) from June 2009 to June
2011, the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. As at 31
December 2021, Mr. Cheung did not have any interests in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Jiang Zhi Cheng, aged 46, is a vice president of the Group. Mr. Jiang
is a doctoral candidate at ISTEC in France. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Xiamen University in China, a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from Central China Normal University in China,
and an EMBA degree from Northwest University in China. Mr. Jiang
is responsible for the Group’s human resource system and operation
assurance system and has 20 years of experience in human resource
management and operation management. He focuses on training, career
development, talent management, performance management, leadership
development and organisational development. Mr. Jiang is a senior
economist certified by the Civil Service Administration of Fujian Province
and the Human Resource Development Office of Fujian Province and
a human resource professional (first level) certified by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of China. Mr. Jiang is enthusiastic
about corporate social responsibility and public welfare undertakings,
and was recognised as an advanced individual in poverty alleviation in
Fujian and a model individual in ethnic unity and progress in Fujian by
the Fujian Provincial People’s Government in 2021. Mr. Jiang joined the
Group in 2002 and successively served as the human resource supervisor,
human resource manager and human resource director of the Group.
He was appointed as a vice president of the Group in 2021.

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 45, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
is responsible for its overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group in September 2005, Mr. Yeung worked as
an auditor in an international accounting firm. He has more than 20
years' experience in the accounting field. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration and Accounting.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Veson Holdings
Limited (the “Company"” and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial statements
for the financial year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
("Review Period”).

The discussions in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of this
annual report form part of the discussions of this directors’ report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
and community investment can be found in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” to be published.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 and Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 83.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to preserve cash for the working capital
requirement of the business of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Review period in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the Review period in the share capital
are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2021 comprised retained earnings, other reserves and share
premium of approximately RMB950.0 million (2020: RMB906.2 million).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Review Period and up to the date of this report
were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Feng Ming Zhu (Chairman)
Lian Xiu Qin (Chief Executive Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Hou Li
Loke Yu

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Heng Ja Wei Victor
Lam Yau Yiu
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary

According to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam
Yau Yiu and Mr. Hou Li will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles
of association of the Company. Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, and Mr. Lam
Yau Yiu both being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. There are no
service contracts or appointment letters of any of the Directors who
are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
which are not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 17 June 2019 for the
purpose of rewarding eligible participants who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group and encouraging eligible participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
include directors and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or service
providers of any member of the Group who the board of directors of
the Company considers to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years expiring on 16 June 2029 and
the Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the board of
directors of the Company may at any time terminate the Scheme without
prejudice to the options granted during the life of the Scheme and which
remain unexpired immediately prior to such termination.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was Nil as at 31 December
2021 and no options have been granted under the Scheme during
the Review Period. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders shall not exceed 109,000,124 shares,
representing approximately 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this annual report. The number of
shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders shall not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue for the time being. The number of shares
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issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates representing in aggregate
over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of such grant or
with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders (voting by way
of poll). Subject to the terms of the Scheme, an offer of grant of an
option will remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant for
28 days from the date of the offer. Upon the acceptance of the offer,
a consideration of HK$1 for the grant of the option is payable and the
relevant option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during the exercise period to be determined by the
Board, which shall not exceed 10 years. The Board may with respect to
each grant of options, determine the minimum period, if any, for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised. The exercise price of
the options shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but will in any event not be less than the higher of:—

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of an
offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business day);

(2) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of an
option; and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”, at no time
during the Review Period or at the end of the Review Period was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued
share capital of the Company)

Name of shareholder

RERHEH

Capacity and nature of interest

B RESNE

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Swift Joy Holdings Limited (Note 2)
AEERER AT (FE2)

Beneficial owner

EmfEa A

Right Grand Holdings Limited (Note 2)
ERERERAT (MEE2)

Fang Jin (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporations

A& (MEE3) HEEE R
Note 1:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

issue as at 31 December 2021, i.e. 1,090,001,246 shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Note 2:  Each of Swift Joy Holdings Limited and Right Grand
Holdings Limited was a private company directly wholly-
owned by Mr. Fang Jin.

Note 3:  Among 552,338,000 shares, (i) 423,770,000 shares were

owned by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and 128,568,000
shares were owned by Right Grand Holdings Limited (see
also Note 2 above).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 51 to 75 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE,
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”), a remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and a corporate governance
committee (“Corporate Governance Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in considering
how the Board should apply financial reporting principles and for
maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s independent
auditor. As at 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee consisted of
three members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Mr. Lam
Yau Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen and
recommend to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors,
to oversee the process for evaluating the performance of the Board and
to develop, recommend to the Board and monitor nomination guidelines
for the Company. As at 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
consisted of three members who were Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary
(Chairman), Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of executive
Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors, reviewing
incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors and senior management. As at
31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Mr. Lam Yau
Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Corporate Governance Committee is to assist the
Board in considering how the Board should apply risk management
and internal control principles, performing the corporate governance
duties and ensuring the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Listing Rules”). As at 31 December 2021, the Corporate Governance
Committee comprised three independent non-executive Directors namely
Mr. Lam Yau Yiu (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary and Mr. Heng
Ja Wei Victor, one non-executive Director namely Dr. Loke Yu and one
executive Director namely Mr. Feng Ming Zhu.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
its existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the top five customers and the largest customer of the Group
represented approximately 70% and approximately 20% of the Group’s
total sales revenue of the Review Period, respectively. Purchase from
the top five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represented
approximately 64% and approximately 41% of the Group’s total
purchases of the Review Period, respectively.

At no time during the Review Period did a Director, a close associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) has any interest in the top five customers or suppliers
of the Group.

36

FNEES

FNEZEEG v ENAMDESSETNITESZH
PSR R it - ST EITE S 2RI - W =EE
EREERBENVUARETCEBESTRAMEERA
B HMES - R2021F12A318 - HTMEZESH
—EZKE (DR AMRELE(ERE) MERBEER
RABBILAE)EMK

TREEREZEGZENAGDNESZTSEZEETR
MR ARBRERERAIBESRE - BITREER
BENRBRAARBTEABRERFHMERAR]
FHEEMRAT EMmAR DMK 14mE S EE AT
Al o 2021128318 bEEBEARZEERE=S
BUERTER(AIMRREE(ERE) RABLAE
EMR@ERE) - —RIFPTES(NEEHRET) R
—ZHITEE(ALBRMELE) -

BRBEERE

ARBEBMERAAXHASHESZEZYERBES
BEREMNG  BEARBAREREBRRIZLH
REZEHRND -

FTERFRHED

REBEMEASE ZBHEREY  HETAEER
REPRBEREFP 5 BME#70% KR #920% © pAElE
HREAREE  RFRBEES KB ASERRME
7 M B KR 9 BIME 4964 % R H)41% °

R MEEEREETHBEALTANESMR
HMEBARRBDHITRDEBE Z5% A L ZARA
BRAAEE R RT PRI ERF A (4 o



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEERERA R

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2021

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 167 of the articles of association of the Company,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of his/her duties in his/her offices or trusts provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to the relevant Director. Such permitted
indemnity provision was in force during the Review Period and remained
in force as at the date of this report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions, certain details of which are set out below in
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in relation
to such transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with the
Company are as follows:

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

BEFFRERX

REANREHMERZAAE67E  BREFIEF
ERHEBUBTERBAREMET  AEIER
EATHMELARIAAERELERRINMBF
aBRWEBX BERAX AUBAR
AMEERENESRE  BERAULIE  HEX
BERBICHE2EMNEABEEEHMFEXTOHRE
MZEH 2EBEFNBERXERCESRRAE
MEHERREBRDBR -

KEBREXRS

REESE AEETETTIRERERS K
ETFHBEREREMRAUBIAATREHIN T -

ARBCRIEETHRANE14AE
HE e

BTZERHHRE

HARNRBREN A TR MAARBERNT

Name Relationship

=z 2EES

Fang Jin ("Mr. Fang”) A controlling shareholder of the Company

Ae(HEE]D AR BIERRARER

Fang Ying The daughter of Mr. Fang, who owns approximately 10% of Scud Energy Technology
("Ms. Fang Ying") TREZEZR - AEREREREHEL10%

He(HEgLt])

Fang Yubin The son of Mr. Fang, who owns approximately 93.95% of Scud Power Technology
("Mr. Fang Yubin”) FREZRT - BERERE HRIXKI93.95%

FEARENFEARED

Scud Battery

Scud Electronics
MERET

Scud Energy Technology
REBRREREHR

Scud Battery Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
REREMBBRAA - AARZHEZ2ENRBAR

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

RERER (BR) EFAERRQR  ARFRZHAEZEMNBAR

Scud Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a limited liability company established in the PRC, which
is owned as to approximately 90% by Mr. Fang and approximately 10% by Ms. Fang
Ying

REBRERBRARRE - RPBEKZOARRE - AFEEEBL0% KRBT ELTHESR
#10%
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Name Relationship
=1 %

Scud Power Technology

Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., Ltd., a limited liability company established in the PRC,

BEREBBAMEERAR - ROERINBRLR - B FBEEHEFL3.95%

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang held 70% shareholding interest
and the remaining 25% and 5% shareholding interest were held by Mr. Lin Chao (“Mr.

Lin”) and Ms. Bian Zhen (“Ms. Bian"), both third parties independent of the Company

REREBRROBRAT » HREBREGHTO%ANE - FIgr25% K5% D R AR L £
(IMMEEDRTELXE(TREDNEE  —AGRBURNARAREBBEALHNE=]

RERB R which is owned as to approximately 93.95% by Mr. Fang Yubin
Scud Stock
AERRIZ D
and its connected persons, respectively
(A) Lease agreements with Scud Stock (2021)
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On 30 December 2020, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First 2021 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the First 2021 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to lease
to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First 2021 Lease Premises”)
located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area,
Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 31,155 square metres in 4 blocks
of factories with a total construction area of approximately
40,627.68 square metres;

(ii)  rental area of approximately 7,826 square metres in 1 office
building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres; and

(iii) rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres in
1 warehouse building with a total construction area of
approximately 11,250 square metres.

The First 2021 Lease Premises were leased for use as factory, office
for administration use for the Group and warehouse for storage
of stocks.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.
The annual rental under the First 2021 Lease Agreement was
RMB10,361,765.64. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.
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On 30 December 2020, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock (as
lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second 2021 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the Second 2021 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second 2021 Lease
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An
Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising rental area of approximately 1,949 square metres in
1 office building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres. The Second 2021 Lease Premises were
leased for use as office for administration use for the Group.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.
The annual rental under the Second 2021 Lease Agreement was
RMB668,228.5. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly basis.

Accordingly, the aggregate annual rental for the year ended 31
December 2021 payable by Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to
Scud Stock under the First 2021 Lease Agreement and the Second
2021 Lease Agreement was RMB11,029,994.21 (being the sum of
RMB10,361,765.64 and RMB668,228.57).

Further details of the First 2021 Lease Agreement and the Second
2021 Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 December 2020.

As at 30 December 2020, Scud Stock was owned as to 70%
by Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud
Stock is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and accordingly, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Based on
information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian hold
the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5% respectively. To
the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons.
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The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First
2021 Lease Agreement and the Second 2021 Lease Agreement
are as follows:

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2021

The actual rental amounts paid for the above continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB11,011,828.32.

(B) Lease agreements with Scud Stock (2022)

On 30 December 2021, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud Stock

(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First 2022 Lease

Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the First 2022 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to lease
to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First 2022 Lease Premises”)
located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area,
Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 31,155 square metres in 4 blocks
of factories with a total construction area of approximately
40,627.68 square metres;

(i) rental area of approximately 7,826 square metres in 1 office
building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres; and

(iii) rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres in
1 warehouse building with a total construction area of
approximately 11,250 square metres.

The First 2022 Lease Premises were leased for use as factory, office

for administration use for the Group and warehouse for storage
of stocks.
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The term of lease is from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
The annual rental under the First 2022 Lease Agreement is
RMB10,361,765.64. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

On 30 December 2021, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock (as
lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second 2022 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the Second 2022 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second 2022 Lease
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An
Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising rental area of approximately 1,949 square metres in
1 office building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres. The Second 2022 Lease Premises were
leased for use as office for administration use for the Group.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
The annual rental under the Second 2022 Lease Agreement is
RMB668,228.52. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly basis.

Further details of the First 2022 Lease Agreement and the Second
2022 Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 December 2021.

As at 30 December 2021, Scud Stock was owned as to 70%
by Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud
Stock is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and accordingly, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Based on
information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian hold
the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5% respectively. To
the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons.
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The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First
2022 Lease Agreement and the Second 2022 Lease Agreement
are as follows:

Annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2022

The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2022 as the term of
lease is from 1 January 2022.

(C) Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2021)

On 30 December 2020, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a
lease agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) to renew the lease
of certain premises owned by Scud Battery (“the “Scud Battery
Premises 2021") to Scud Stock for the period commenced from
1 January 2021 and ended on 31 December 2021 (the “Lease
Agreement (2021)").

Under the Lease Agreement (2021), Scud Battery agreed to lease
to Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises 2021 located at No. 135,
Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 17,193 square metres in 1 factory
building with a total construction area of approximately 26,665
square metres; and

(i)  rental area of approximately 8,450 square metres in 1 warehouse
building with a total construction area of approximately 8,450
square metres.

The Scud Battery Premises 2021 were leased for use as manufacturing
facility.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2021) was
RMB4,689,005.71. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.
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Further details of the Lease Agreement (2021) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2020.

As at 30 December 2020, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules and accordingly, the lease under the Lease Agreement (2021)
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
Based on information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and
Ms. Bian hold the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5%
respectively. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian
are third parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock to
Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2021) for the year ended
31 December 2021 was RMB4,689,005.71.

The actual rental amount paid for the above continuing
connected transaction for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB4,689,005.64.

Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2022)

On 30 December 2021, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a
lease agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) to renew the lease of
certain premises owned by Scud Battery (the “Scud Battery Premises
2022") to Scud Stock for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 (the “Lease Agreement (2022)").

Under the Lease Agreement (2022), Scud Battery agreed to lease
to Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises 2022 located at No. 135,
Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising:

(i) rental area of approximately 17,193 square metres in 1 factory
building with a total construction area of approximately 26,665
square metres; and

(i)  rental area of approximately 8,450 square metres in 1 warehouse
building with a total construction area of approximately 8,450
square metres.
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The Scud Battery Premises 2022 were leased for use as manufacturing
facility.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2022) is
RMB4,689,005.76. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the Lease Agreement (2022) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2021.

As at 30 December 2021, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules and accordingly, the lease under the Lease Agreement (2022)
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
Based on information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and
Ms. Bian hold the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5%
respectively. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian
are third parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock to
Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2022) for the year ending
31 December 2022 is RMB4,689,005.76.

The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2022 as the term of
lease is from 1 January 2022.

Processing Framework Agreement with Scud Power
Technology and Scud Energy Technology

On 25 November 2021, Scud Battery entered into the processing
framework agreement (“Processing Framework Agreement”) with
Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy Technology, pursuant
to which Scud Battery has conditionally agreed to provide the
processing services for printed circuit boards (“Processing Services”)
to Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy Technology for a term
of three years commencing from the first day of the calendar
month immediately following the date on which the independent
shareholders approval relating to the Processing Framework
Agreement and the proposed annual caps having been obtained
pursuant to the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The proposed resolution set out in the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held to consider and approve the
Processing Framework Agreement and the proposed annual caps
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(the "EGM") notice dated 14 December 2021 was duly passed by
the shareholders of the Company as an ordinary resolution by way
of poll at the EGM held on 31 December 2021.

A summary of the principal terms of the Processing Framework
Agreement is set out below.

Date:

Parties:

Duration:

Processing Services:

Processing Fee:

25 November 2021

(i) Scud Battery, as the provider of the
Processing Services

(i) Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology, as the receivers of the
Processing Services

Three years commencing from the first day
of the calendar month immediately following
the date on which the requirements under the
Listing Rules that are relevant to the Processing
Framework Agreement having been complied
with, and such term may be extended by the
parties’ mutual agreement subject to compliance
with applicable Listing Rules at the time.

Scud Battery shall provide the Processing Services
to Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology by processing printed circuit boards
through applying surface mount technology,
manual plug-ins and conducting product tests,
depending on specific requirements and designs
specified in purchase orders to be placed by
Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology and to be agreed by Scud Battery.

Within three (3) working days after Scud Power
Technology or Scud Energy Technology places
a purchase order, Scud Battery shall provide
a fee quote for Scud Power Technology’s or
Scud Energy Technology’s confirmation, which
shall be signed by the relevant parties. The
processing fee (“Processing Fee”) shall, depend
on the size of the purchase orders be as follows:

VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEERERA R

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2021

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

BEEMNERAEREN2021F12A31HE
TZBRERENAS EEARBBREURERR
FIERBE AL BRESR o

RRENMTHERBAES O EGTEHIIAT -

HEf 2021411 A25H
R s () MEREBM - EANMIREH
2FH

(i) RERBOBRERERER
B - (ERIN IR E T

HAMR - BERELEHARAAETEZEM
TERBZEEHENAERE
SZBAR—EEABERESS
M=% BZHIRATHRTLN
FHEETERERN TR
MIER T —BRAEER -

REREBKRARERE DT
BRERERE R/ MT
R% - HBBEAKRERRER
My~ F oA R 1T E an Bl
MITAKERER  ERFRE
BRB) N R R R EBRBETR I
BT ELEREREBRBH
RETETRENABERR
REHTE

INTAR -

mT®E: RARERE D BHI IR ERE
BRHE T ERBIIER=-ET
EBA - MEREBMARER
BEHERERE DBHIRE
BREERBL B RER - WA ET
HNAEFTRE- MITE(MNI
B ) BEUAREREET B KN
EEWLT

45



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERERLH

. ANNUAL REPORT £E%R 2021

e e e P

'/ DIRECTORS’ REPORT

/ #EeWmE

)

(ii)

(iii)

for orders of one thousand and one (1,001)
or more pieces of processed products:

(@) RMBO0.01 (excluding tax) per point
will be charged for applying surface
mount technology;

(b) RMB30 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for manual plug-ins; and

() RMB30 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for conducting product
testing;

for orders of between two hundred and
one (201) and one thousand (1,000)
pieces of processed products:

(@) RMBO0.02 (excluding tax) per point
will be charged for applying surface
mount technology;

(b) RMBG60 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for manual plug-ins; and

() RMBG60 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for conducting product
testing;

for orders of two hundred (200) or
less pieces of processed products, the
Processing Fee will not be calculated based
on the number of processed products, and
will be a one-time charge of RMB1,740
per order.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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The Processing Fee was determined after arm’s length negotiation IITETERERSEM - RERS DB ER
between Scud Battery, Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy EREBREBRATEERETE  TDXER
Technology with reference to Processing Fee charged by Scud EREMEEMBIE=FEPEIMNMIE

Battery to clients which are independent third parties. Big
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The details on annual caps for the maximum Processing Fee payable
by Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy Technology to Scud
Battery under the Processing Framework Agreement are as follows:
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RERE NEHE RRTERREEREHRIEZ TN
TEEBZEENTRERELNZSMIE
ZEELRFBOT

2022 2023 2024
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB)
(AR®T) (AR®RT) (ARET)

Maximum Processing Fee payable for the year FRENZSINTE 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000

Further details of the Processing Framework Agreement are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 25 November 2021 and
the circular dated 14 December 2021.

As at 25 November 2021, Scud Power Technology is owned as
to approximately 93.95% by Mr. Fang Yubin, who is the son
of Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company, and
Scud Energy Technology is owned as to approximately 90% by
Mr. Fang and approximately 10% by Ms. Fang Ying, who is the
daughter of Mr. Fang. Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology are therefore connected persons of the Company under
the Listing Rules and accordingly, the Processing Services under
the Processing Framework Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the connected
parties are also set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that, during the
year ended 31 December 2021, such transactions have been entered into:

(1) (except for the Lease Agreement (2021) and the Lease Agreement
(2022)) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(3) according to the relevant agreements governing such transactions

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The independent auditor of the Company has also confirmed that in
relation to the above continuing connected transactions:

(1) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

(3) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
such transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set by the
Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable accounting
principles. Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 36
to the consolidated financial statements. The related party transactions
which are also non-exempted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the section headed
"Continuing Connected Transactions” above.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above and in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries and no other contracts of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during
the Review Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors were interested in any business apart from the
business of the Group, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Review
Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or entity connected with a Director (within the meaning
of section 486 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) had any direct or indirect material interests in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its subsidiaries, its holding company or its fellow subsidiaries
was a party entered into during, or subsisting during or at the end of,
the Review Period.

PENSION SCHEME

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme,
which is registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the "MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in
Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme and is funded
by contributions from employer and employees in accordance with the
provisions of the MPF Ordinance. No forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under the rules of the schemes.

Details of the pension scheme contributions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 4(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into
or existed during the Review Period.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values its employees and provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate its employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of its employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to market standard. The Group also provides
regular training to its employees for their career development.
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The Group values the views and opinions of its customers and regularly
communicates with them in order to obtain feedback and opinions and
understand their business needs and demands.

The Group has developed long-term and good relationships with its
suppliers. The relevant departments of the Group work closely together
to ensure that the procurement process is conducted in an open, fair
and just manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group which
had a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group
during the Review Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Review
Period.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers such independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

FENG MING ZHU
Chairman

31 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Veson Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level
of corporate governance standards and continuously review and improve
the Group’s corporate governance and internal control practices. Save
as otherwise specified, set out below are the principles of corporate
governance as adopted by the Company during the financial year from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Review Period”). The
Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) in Appendix 14
of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). The Company complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the Review Period.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEO")

During the Review Period, Mr. Feng Ming Zhu served as the Chairman
(the “Chairman”) since 19 May 2020. The Chairman is responsible
for leading the Board in protecting the interest of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole and for overseeing the
Group, whilst Ms. Lian Xiu Qin served as the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO") of the Company and is responsible for managing the overall
business operations of the Group, proposing strategies to the Board and
monitoring the effective implementation of the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board.

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions in the Group, there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between Mr. Feng Ming
Zhu and Ms. Lian Xiu Qin.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2021, there were seven members on the Board,
which comprised of two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors
(“NEDs”) and three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"),
whose names are shown in the table on page 61. The INEDs are
considered by the Board to be independent of the management and
free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgments. The Board considered that each of the
INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its deliberations.
The term of appointment of Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Cheung Wai
Kwok Gary and Mr. Lam Yau Yiu, the INEDs, commenced on 28 May 2021

DA TP YN~
1IE3EE)A -’F&%

TEERER

BEERERAB( ARG DEREMEB AR A
S8 —ERNBRREEERRELFTNEKTE
WHER RN EAEENDEE R RAIIEHE
BoBRBBEMEIN  MTAKRAFTH2021F1 /18
22021512 A3V B L BE E ([ R EEEARE 1) R EY
TEEARRA - RARERAEBHARZMER
ANRIFEHEMHRAN ETRA DM SR 14FTH A2
EVRTRI([EEARSFAI) o KA T H &8 BRE A
BESFREERTRNMESTRIG -

FRERITHRAR(TITRAR NS T

eI -SRI R £ B 20205 A 19 B EFE
BUEED FREEEEEFTERELADFTRR
(IRRDERERVEEAER MEFSLLTIE
FARBZITHEAH(1TRER])  BaEEEBAE
EREBEBEY MESTRHEBUAREE
EERMNEE REROERER -

BTEEERBEEANSEAE SR R E
EEEBRES BRI EEREFE LT ZHA

=4

M2021F12A318 » EFEHEUKBENK - HE
ERUHITES  MUERTES(IERTEED
R=fIB IR TES(BUFNTES])  FE
HEZHERFBOBEZERN - BEEERA - EBIIEH
TESHARERETEBENELAL - BEF
MEREVEEBVHENEER EFERAE &
BN TESFHAESTEREAKRERATNNE
BEENG - MRELE RARKEERMKERE
HE(BMIERITES) 2 EHR2021F5 A28 AR -
W 2022654278 R AR R B R2022F 58217

51



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERERLH

- ANNUAL REPORT $$ﬁ2021 ¥

S S A S S R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1B 3 ,,év}l:l#&l:

and will end on the earlier of 27 May 2022 and the date of the annual
general meeting to be held by the Company in 2022. All appointment
letters of the INEDs can be terminated by the Company or the INED giving
at least 3 months’ prior written notice. Each of the INEDs confirmed
their respective independence to the Group. The term of appointment
of Dr. Loke Yu, and Mr. Hou Li, the NEDs commenced on 28 May 2021
and will end on the earlier of 27 May 2022 and the date of the annual
general meeting to be held by the Company in 2022. All appointment
letters of the NEDs can be terminated by the Company or the NED giving
at least 3 months’ prior written notice. Save for the Directors’ business
relationships as a result of their respective directorships and positions
in the Group and save that Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor is a nephew-in-law
of Dr. Loke Yu, there are no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among members of the Board and they are
independent from each other.

The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and
review the overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee
the achievement of its business plans to enhance Shareholders’ value
as a whole. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management. Such Board meetings involved
the active participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of the Directors. During the Review Period,
the Board met 8 times and the Directors’ attendance record is shown
in the table on page 61. In advance of the Board meetings, appropriate
notices, meeting agenda and other relevant information were given to
all Directors. All Directors were consulted to include additional matters
(if any) in the agenda for Board meetings. Draft and final versions of
the Board meeting minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment
and record respectively. The original minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the company secretary of the Company and such minutes are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any
Director. The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of Directors’ liability.

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board, which accepts
that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the performance
and affairs of the Group. The Board'’s role is to provide entrepreneurial
leadership, set the Company’s strategic aims and the Company’s values
and standards, and to ensure that its obligations to its stakeholders
and others are understood and met. To facilitate the operations, the
Board has established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (1) setting
the Group’s strategies and dividend policy; (2) reviewing operational
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and financial performance; (3) approving major investments and
divestments; (4) reviewing risk management and internal control system
of the Group; (5) ensuring appropriate management development and
succession plans are in place; (6) approving appointments of Directors
and other senior executives; (7) approving corporate social responsibility
policies; (8) ensuring effective communication with Shareholders and
(9) other significant operational and financial matters. The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group are delegated
to the management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continually provided with updates to regulatory
and governance developments. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects. Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, including updates to laws and regulations
applicable to the Company and its Directors as well as any amendments
thereto. During the Review Period, the Company provided regular updates
to the Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company and on the latest business development
of the Group on a timely basis. The Directors confirmed that they have
complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code
in relation to continuous professional development. During the Review
Period, all of the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars, e-seminars, in-house briefing and
reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance and regulatory updates. In addition, during the
Review Period, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu
and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary attended various directors’ training
seminars and e-seminars arranged by various organisations including
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. On a continuing basis, Directors are encouraged
to keep up to date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend
briefings and seminars as appropriate.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference as suggested under the
code provisions and recommended best practices under the Corporate
Governance Code and adopted with reference to “A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in February 2002. As at 31 December 2021, the
Audit Committee comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor,
Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, and the chairman
of the Audit Committee was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Each committee
member can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Group, who among themselves possess a wealth
of management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006 and
held 3 meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’
attendance is shown on page 61.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(iv) to review the Company’s financial controls;

(v) to review the Group’'s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;

(vii) to review the arrangements which the employees of the Company

can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters; and
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(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee carried out its duties
as set out above, including reviewing certain financial information of
the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the
Review Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page
61. As at 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr.
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Its main duties are summarised as follows:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies, and to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of all individual
executive Directors and senior management;

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(iii) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

(iv) to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any
service contract or appointment letter of Directors that requires

Shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the Review
Period included the above and the following:

(i)  determining the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors;

(i) assessing performance of executive Directors; and

(iii) approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts.
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Details of the amount of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration payable to member of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

In the band of

BHREEMETRENFERR RS MBREME -

RIBEEEIATAIZ TANEEB. 1505 - #1ZE2021
FNANALEFE  SREREKE ZHHN T A
THER

Number of individual(s)

FENAa B A

Nil to RMB1,658,600 (equivalent to Nil to Tz ARH1,658,6007T (IHENER 2
HKD2,000,000) 2,000,000/ 7T)

RMB1,658,601 to RMB2,073,250 (equivalent A R#1,658,601 L& A R 1

to HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the Review
Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page 61. As at
31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee comprised three INEDs,
namely Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Heng Ja
Wei Victor. The chairman of the Nomination Committee was Mr. Cheung
Wai Kwok Gary. The Nomination Committee selects and recommends
appropriate candidates based on the candidates’ prior experience and
qualifications to the Board on the appointment of Directors. The main
duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
length of service) of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(ii) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a Board
member and to select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships having
regard to each candidate’s merit against an objective criteria and
the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
to determine their eligibility;
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(v) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval; and

(vi) have regard to the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members (“Board Diversity Policy”), and make appropriate
disclosure of the policy or a summary of the policy in the Company’s
corporate governance report.

The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review Period
included the above and determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors.

NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORSHIP

The Board has approved and adopted a nomination policy for directorship
with effect from 1 January 2019 (the “Nomination Policy”). The
Nomination Policy aims at setting out the processes and criteria for
the nomination of a candidate for directorship in the Company. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(@) reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company;

(c) commitment in respect of available time;

(d) merit and potential contributions that such candidate could bring to
the Board with reference to the Company’s Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, independence,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

(e) in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive director
of the Company, to assess the independence of such candidate;
and

(f)  board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has the discretion to consider any other
factors and matters and nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity in the Board to ensure that the Board has the
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business. The Company recognises the
benefits of diversity in Board members and believes that Board diversity can
be achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or length of service. In
forming the perspective on diversity, the Company will also consider
its own business model and specific needs from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on merits and each candidate is considered
against objective criteria.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually measurable
objectives for implementing diversity on the Board and recommend them
to the Board for adoption. The Board will from time to time review
one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.
Having reviewed the Group’s business model and operation needs and
the current composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee has
not set any measurable objective during the Review Period.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy with effect
from 1 January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”). It is the policy of the
Board, in considering the payment of dividends, to allow shareholders
of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider
the following factors before declaring or recommending any dividends:

(@) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
(b) the Group’s liquidity position;

() retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(d) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(e) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group'’s lenders;
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(f) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(g) general economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Company; and

(h) any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

The declaration, recommendation and payment of any dividends are also
subject to compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the articles
of association of the Company. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee (the
"Corporate Governance Committee”) on 27 September 2018 and held 2
meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’ attendance
is shown on page 61. As at 31 December 2021, the Corporate Governance
Committee comprised Mr. Lam Yau Yiu (an INED), Mr. Cheung Wai
Kwok Gary (an INED), Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (an INED), Dr. Loke Yu (a
NED) and Mr. Feng Ming Zhu (an executive Director). The chairman of
the Corporate Governance Committee was Mr. Lam Yau Yiu. All of the
committee members have significant experience in the internal control,
corporate governance, legal and/or accounting areas. The committee is
primarily responsible for performing corporate governance functions and
risk management and internal control functions in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu, an executive Director
who is responsible for the daily operations of the Group is a key member
of the committee. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu plays a key role in experiencing the
actual implementation status and/or progress of various internal control
and ongoing monitoring policies, and therefore can identify key issues
as and when they arise and interact with the staff and the operational
systems in order to identify any such issues on a timely basis.
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The main duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(@)

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

60

to develop, review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors;

to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Company’s corporate governance report;

to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis (including reviewing the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems, which includes
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system), evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks the Company is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensure that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; and

to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
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During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee carried W EIFEHAR - 2B AEE @B BT EXAME 2 B
out its duties as set out above, including discussing with the Group’s & @ BIEFEAEBN NI T RamENEER LS
Risk Management Department and BDO Financial Services Limited in  EIFIREZIHEEMBR A THEIT MR °

relation to the internal control systems of the Group.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual Director ~ FT&R#IM S EEREZE@RKENREHRRLEERE
and committee member in the respective Board, committee and general H& - ZEE@NKREASHIER

o

meetings held during the Review Period.

Meetings attended/held in 2021

RONELHE/ BAHER
Board Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Corporate General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Governance Meeting

Committee
E3®  ENZE® RPZBE  FMZBE L¥Ehzas RRAE
Number of meetings held during the REESHETHEEYA

Review Period 8 3 1 1 2 2
Executive Directors: yrEs:
Feng Ming Zhu (Chairman) BB (1) 8/8 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 22 2
Lian Xiu Qin EAE 78 /AT /AT /AT /AT 0N
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Hou Li 3 8/8 N/AT R NANEH NANEH NANER 22
Loke Yu 3001 88 NANER /AR /A ER 0 )]
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
Heng Ja Wei Victor Bx%& 8/8 33 n n 22 22
Lam Yau Yiu MRE 8/8 313 Il Il 22 22
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary KA 8/8 33 N N M i
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GOING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on
a regular basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every guideline
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions as set out in its terms of reference, the
main duties of which are set out above.

During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Review Period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management Structure of the Group

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
assessing their effectiveness. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Department

The Group has set up a risk management department which is responsible
for the design and implementation of the risk management system,
assisting the Board in monitoring and supervising the implementation
and effectiveness of the risk management framework and process and
reviewing the measures on dealing with risks. The risk management
department performs an internal audit function and is responsible for
performing review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group.

The Corporate Governance Committee reports to the Board after review
of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
system. Upon consideration of the work and results of review of the
Corporate Governance Committee, the Board forms its view on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The Board ensures that a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group is conducted annually in respect of the
relevant financial year.

Appointment of BDO Financial Services Limited as
Internal Control Consultant

During the Review Period, the Company engaged BDO Financial Services
Limited (“Internal Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant
to conduct a review of the internal control systems and procedures of
the Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").

The scope of work of the Internal Control Consultant included an
independent assessment of the internal control systems of the major
subsidiaries of the Group. During the Review Period, the Internal Control
Consultant performed reviews on the internal control systems of the
major subsidiaries of the Group which involved collecting relevant
information, conducting interviews and conducting walkthrough tests.

The Internal Control Review has been completed. Having reviewed the
findings and results of the report on the Internal Control Review prepared
by the Internal Control Consultant, and having taken into consideration
the improvements and/or remedial measures implemented in accordance
with the Internal Control Consultant’s recommendations, the Board is of
the view that the Company has put in place adequate internal control
system and financial reporting procedures to meet its obligations under
the Listing Rules. In view of the above, the Board considers that a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
was conducted during the Review Period and the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.
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Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group rEEXERBRIEEY

The Group is exposed to different risks and uncertainties. Some of ALEEEBETREREIEEE AEBXELES
the Group’s major risks are set out below and appropriate mitigation B & 540 T I & HEUE & & RIE I EIEZ SR

measures have been devised to manage such risks. 78

(A) OPERATIONAL, STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS (A) K& BRERTEERE
The smart electronic products industry advances at a tremendous BHEFERTHEER—ATE  ARQFREZE
pace. Lithium-ion battery module, being the Company’s main EnPHFEaRAZEANESETFTR £
product, is mostly used in smartphones, notebooks, tablets and ARFREAGFERZE - HERSHEETED
wearable devices. The sales of consumer smart electronics may RS SR EEEBE N KO &R
change rapidly in response to consumer demand or taste. As W ERERTPESEFEMENERTE
a supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for a number of PRC MIBAHER  BEPNEETFHREESNER
smartphone brands, the drastic fluctuation in customers’ sales of B EAEEMER TE0RABEEEREX
smartphones will have significant effect on the sales of the Group's ' -

lithium-ion battery modules.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the REEE B T EEARAZERE

following:

(i) investment of resources in development of new products and () HEERFABRFER BHEMSHERE
application of lithium-ion battery in new industries and new b BEFENERRAITERNE
fields in response to changes in market demands; 1

(i) diversification of product portfolios in order to reduce the (il ZWLERESE  UWRDERERZIEE
impact of a reduction in sales of individual products on the BIEAEBRBEB 2 VE R

Group’s overall business; and

(iii) proactive recruitment and training of skilled and experienced (i) BB REEIEBMNEBRNEMTA
technicians to enhance the Group’s R&D capability. 8 - DUgaARE B E e o
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For lithium-ion battery products, great importance is attached to
their quality and safety. The performance and safety of lithium-
jon battery is very sensitive to ambient environment. The safety of
lithium-ion battery lies in effective use of external circuit design
to ensure battery’s operation is normal and safe. However, the
efficiency and reliability of these safety devices are closely connected
with good and consistent manufacturing quality. Various different
circumstances or causes may also lead to short circuit and other
risks.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  inthe pursuit of higher efficiency and endurance for batteries,
the Group conducted more rigorous review of the safety of
batteries to ensure that all the batteries delivered by the Group
meet high safety standards;

(i) the Group ensures it purchases sufficient product liability
insurance for protection. Product liability insurance covers the
liability arising from a defective product that causes personal
injury, property damage or other losses; and

(iii) the raw materials and other auxiliary materials used for the
Company’s products shall be certified by authorities before
being used. In the process of production, the Company’s
quality control department shall conduct inspection at each
stage throughout the whole production process to ensure the
quality of the Company’s product and safeguard the interests
of consumers with a quality monitoring system.

In 2021, more than 90% of the Group's turnover was derived
from its ODM business. Over 45% of the sales of its ODM business
was to three PRC smartphone brand manufacturers. If the Group
loses one of these top customers, it may have adverse effects on
the operation and financial results of the Group’s ODM business.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  look for more potential customers to reduce its dependence
on top customers;

(ii)  strengthen after-sales services for customers, pay regular visits
to customers and conduct customer satisfaction survey to
continuously improve the quality of products and services,
consolidate the Group’s competitiveness in the industry and
increase customer loyalty; and

(iii) develop more new products to meet customers’ needs.

The vast majority of the Group’s sales revenue is from operating
units in the PRC. Adverse events in the PRC’s operation and political
environment may result in material adverse effects on the Group's
business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) development of overseas markets to increase revenue from
overseas operations; and

(ii)  continuous monitoring of PRC's operations and political
environment, anticipation of possible problems, and establish
quick strategic response to changing business environment.

Overdue payments by customers granted with credit by the Group
will increase the financial risk to the Group and affect the Group'’s
financial performance and operating cash flow.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  regular review of the amount of accounts receivable from key
customers to control it at an appropriate level; and

(i) implementation of strict internal control measures and increase
collection efforts for overdue accounts receivable.

The main raw material for lithium-ion battery modules (being the
Group’s main product) is lithium-ion bare battery cell. The Group
purchases lithium-ion bare battery cells from many well-known
international manufacturers. In recent years, lithium-ion bare battery
cell has been widely used in smartphones, notebooks, tablets,
wearable devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage
and other fields. Any increase in the price or shortage of supply
of lithium-ion bare battery cells will have a material impact on the
profitability and production costs of the Group.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) regular research on and evaluation of suppliers to ensure
stable supply of raw materials; and

(i) through automation upgrade of production lines, the Group
solves the problem with human resources and effectively
controls production costs, which have positive effects on
improvement of the Group’s profitability and control of
production costs.

ACCIDENT RISKS

Major accidents including fires, natural disasters or serious infectious
diseases will affect the Group’s assets and operations, thus affecting
the Group's operational capacity and reducing profitability.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  ensure comprehensive insurance coverage over the Group's
properties and business is purchased,;

(i) provision of regular education and training sessions on safety
for all staff to strengthen staff’'s awareness of production
safety;

(iii) training on fire safety, fire emergency evacuation and fire drill
at workplace are organised at least twice a year to ensure staff
have a solid understanding of the significance and necessity of
production safety and improve their own awareness of safety
protection; and

(iv) organise physical examination for the benefit of its staff to
help in assessing possible occupational and serious infectious
diseases.

INDUSTRY RISKS

The possible slowdown of the Chinese economy in the near future,
the possible drop in global shipment of smartphones and the possible
substantial decrease in consumers’ demands for replacement of
smartphones will have material adverse effects on the Group’s
business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-ion
batteries in new industries and new fields, grasp opportunities
for access to the market and adjust the development strategy
in response to changes in the market; and

(i) proactively build a platform for communication with consumers,
pay close attention to consumers’ demands, timely listen to
consumers’ opinions, and provide good products and after-
sales services to increase customer loyalty.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and the Listing Rules;

o conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the relevant guidelines
and policies relating to inside information issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange from time to
time;

o has implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs; and

e has implemented policy regarding prohibition on the unauthorised
use of confidential or inside information.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code"”). Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended 31
December 2021.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company. During
the Review Period, the Group paid approximately RMB1,409,800 to its
external auditors, namely BDO Limited, and approximately RMB325,300
to its PRC auditor for their audit services. The Group paid approximately
RMB248,800 to BDO Limited for their non-audit services in respect of
the review of the interim financial information of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2021. The Group also paid approximately
RMB255,400 to an affiliated firm of BDO Limited for the provision of
internal control post implementation consultancy services to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Directors’
responsibilities for the accounts and the reporting responsibilities of
the external auditors are set out on pages 79 to 82 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA). Mr. Yeung took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the principles of the Company in relation to its communication
with the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders
are provided with access to information about the Company in order
to enable Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed manner and engage actively with
the Company.

Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications including interim and annual
reports, annual general meetings and other general meetings that
may be convened, as well as by making available all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange, its corporate communications and
other corporate publications on the Company’s website. Shareholders
may direct enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company’s share
registrars. To the extent the requisite information of the Company is
publicly available, Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to the Company’s
head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the address,
facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s website.
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If Shareholder(s) would like to express their views to a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at an AGM
or extraordinary general meeting, they can submit a written statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to that matter or business and
request the Company to circulate their written statement to Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the meeting. Such Shareholder(s) must
represent at least:—

(@) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the
relevant right to vote at the meeting; or

(b) 50 shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
Shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
at our head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the
address, facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s
website, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
The written requisition may also be deposited at the Company’s head
office in Hong Kong at Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary. If within 21 days of such deposit of the written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Group but also to maximise the interest and return for all parties so
as to achieve harmonious development and collaboration with mutual
benefits in the long run.

72

EEg/BIRRAEL ERRFLERSHRE
MAZRREMAFRENEEREER  TARQ

FERZ =M EMN1,000F M EmMRME - WEK
RARZEARLEEH TERKNEZBSOK
R o RBREATE TGRS - —

(@) HEREBEMRBERRENNOBERNEBRRERD
25%EIR K

(b) RAS0BBHBRREFOBER -

B3R 2 REF
RIBEARRZEHERM@ - A3 ERIE
EEXKARBETORERAMERE(BERER
AIRAAE FIRR®) + 5 2 —OREMNMEAEHRA
RBEBRADN @ REZ I - BERBNESD
ik - AEE C FEXKEBHFRNAMNRERRZE
BHEREENESEINERLERS R BkE
ESERREFIAE  UWEEFHEERFTEAD
FAEE - NAFEDEFRERNRAANEBAH
EE o i AEBINEEEEET7RISET 01012
1017% - MEBEFERAAWEER - WRERXEH
ERZBEH2IBA EEEAAEHAERAARE
AZ2FARZRBERAFRBHAEH®  MAQRARZ
BABEEAEESRAACHACMELNMES
WX -

AEERXH

REZE2021F12A31HLEFE - KRR ZHEHER
XA R o

SR ]

AEERBSERREHRENAE  BEEARERN
ENEENXF - AKETERNRAARFGNRE
BE YATHASAFREANNEREE &
BMHEERE A EXRIORER -



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEERBRAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication and
interaction with investors, and continues to improve communication
channels with shareholders and investors, so as to enhance
governance transparency. The Group’s management regularly meets
with investors, and proactively announces the latest information
and business development plans.

CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety of products, especially
on mobile phone batteries, and has implemented strict quality control
such as the ISO standards so as to meet safety requirements. With
our product testing centres, we administer stages of tests, including
crash, high-temperature, damp and long period recharging, on
our battery products. We also invest resources in product R&D to
develop more reliable products. The battery products of the Group
have also passed the stringent requirements on quality control and
safety set by the relevant government authorities.

EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived to
enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and increased
factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols, so as to ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case of
fire. In addition, the Group has regularly held fire drills and increased
investments in fire prevention facilities in factories, so as to ensure
the sufficiency of fire prevention equipment and facilities.

The Group has proactively taken and implemented various measures,
including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), resolve problems in a timely manner and ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case
of fire;

(i) hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’ hazard

prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire drills every year and
conduct general safety checks on such days;
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(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner; and

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact with such flammables.

ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed emphasis
on providing on-the-job training for its staff. The Group started
a comprehensive talent training programme, which is tied to the
establishment of its own skill training institute. Talents are cultivated
at the skill training institute and made available to the production
pipeline to resolve the labour shortage issue faced by industry
participants. After a period of training, the Group will allocate
labour resources directly to various departments, which will shorten
the time for staff replacement and reduce labour cost. Automated
production will also be implemented at different phases. Moreover,
in the training process, participating staff can understand the
practical operation issues arising from the course of production,
which will effectively enhance production efficiencies and qualities.
The Group invites talents from society and selects personnel with the
required management and technical expertise through professional
and rigorous training processes. At the same time, this also brings
to society a new generation of trained talents in fulfillment of the
Company’s social responsibilities.
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PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group promotes and undertakes a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis and
employment contracts are signed based on principles of fairness and
on employees’ own volition, with clear provisions on contractual
terms such as scope of work, remuneration, social insurance and
working hours, among others. The legal rights and obligations of
the employer and employee are clearly defined. We also strictly
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to national
social insurance to set up insurance scheme for basic pension,
medical, work-related injuries, unemployment and maternity for
employees and cover the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile, to
further protect the interests of individual employees, the Company
has taken out a commercial accident insurance scheme for all
employees. The Group has complied with the Labor Contract Law
of the PRC since 1 January 2008 and established a labor union.
We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in support of
the construction and development of a harmonious and stable
employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis
on supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Although
small amounts of waste are generated during the packaging
process, some of them are delivered to qualified recycling plants
for treatment.

For the environmental, social and governance report of the Group,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
to be published.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288 HETHEER11158
85 : +852 2815 2239 KRA254
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED HEEERERATRRE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veson
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 198, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Impairment assessment of trade and notes receivables
(Refer to notes 4(g), 5(iii) and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade and notes receivables
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB2,504 million and a
net impairment loss of approximately RMB2 million was reversed for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the trade and notes receivables in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies which required the exercise of
significant management judgement in considering factors such as the
credit history including default or delay in payments, ageing analysis,
settlement records during the year and subsequent settlements after
the year end.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment assessment
included:

o Understanding the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

e  Reviewing the ageing analysis of the trade and notes receivables;

e Reviewing payment patterns during the year and amount
of subsequent settlements after the year end made by the
customers;

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s estimation of
recoverability of trade and notes receivables with reference to
factors considered by the directors.

e Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology, examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.
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2. Impairment assessment of non-financial assets (Refer
to notes 4(o) and 5(iv) to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets, with carrying amount of approximately RMB815 million, RMB51
million, RMB30 million and RMB5 million respectively. Notwithstanding
that the Group earn profits during the current year, the market
capitalisation of the Company of approximately RMB276million
fell below the net asset value of the Group of approximately
RMB1,061 million as at 31 December 2021. This constitutes
an impairment indicator on the Group’s non-financial asset in
accordance with International Accounting Standard 36. The directors
of the Company have performed an impairment assessment on the
cash-generating units in which these assets belonged to in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies and concluded that, there was
no impairment loss for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
required the exercise of significant management judgement.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment assessment
included:

e Assessing the appropriateness of methodology used for assessing
the recoverable amounts; and

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key assumptions
used.
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OTHER
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chan Tsz Hung

Practising Certificate no. P06693

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARBT ARETT
(re-presented)
(& =%1)
Turnover S0 6 7,091,644 6,216,571
Cost of sales FHE KA (6,576,958) (5,830,625)
Gross profit EH 514,686 385,946
Other revenue H i zs 7 56,030 38,128
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBX (92,754) (99,399)
Administrative expenses ITBAX (332,706) (294,025)
Other operating expenses Hib &M% 9 (8,176) (5,753)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment loss)  BEWE 58 M EWEEER 2
recognised on trade and notes ERE, CREER)FE
receivables, net 21 1,796 (22,367)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment loss) — BLIETFRIE ~ & R E A0 E WA
recognised on prepayments, deposits R ZMERE CREEE)F
and other receivables, net ) 22 3,147 (1,509)
Finance costs BRE R A 12 (77,525) (40,924)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETE AR, (E518) 8 64,498 (39,903)
Income tax expense FriS i 13 (25,937) (17,579)
Profit/(loss) for the year AER R,/ (EE) 38,561 (57,482)
Other comprehensive income for the AFEEHEEMBEKE :
year, net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently W &EHEHENFHEEZIERN
to profit or loss HHE
— Exchange differences on translating —HREBINETG 2 EH ZFE
foreign operations 2,881 7,497
Other comprehensive income for the year, 7N E#1% H 2 E Uz
net of tax 2,881 7,497
Total comprehensive income for the rEEZHIRGEAR
year 41,442 (49,985)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: T ALEIERFEDEF,(E18):
Owners of the Company RARHEA A 42,182 (52,683)
Non-controlling interests FEIE N (3,621) (4,799)
38,561 (57,482)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: N3I| A +E(E 2 E s 4458
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ =N 45,114 (44,905)
Non-controlling interests e (3,672) (5,080)
41,442 (49,985)
Earnings/(loss) per share BR&EF(FE)
- Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —BEAREEARESD) 15 3.87 (4.83)
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At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MisE ARET T AREEFTT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MG 16 814,889 722,268
Investment properties B 17 50,995 56,068
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 18 30,282 38,089
Intangible assets mEAE 19 4,542 3,268
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JE{ F08 - 24 & H i fE W 7708 22 34,671 40,959
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE B 30 105,358 128,451
Total non-current assets JEMEN B EARTE 1,040,737 989,103
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 553,045 443,866
Trade and notes receivables FEUE 5518 K R R & 21 2,504,241 1,976,887
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables a1 7RI - &4 & E ith fE U 7718 22 171,507 169,019
Amounts due from related parties FEURREE A T 30IR 23 78,722 87,917
Current tax recoverable A Uz Bl BN EARS 18 14,995 15,077
Pledged bank deposits BEERRITIFHK 24 988,689 750,810
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBREIRE 25 226,695 211,294
Total current assets MENEELRTE 4,537,894 3,654,870
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and notes payables BB SR IE K BN =R 26 3,118,080 2,481,690
Other payables, contract liabilities and HMEMNRIE aHB8ER
accrued charges FEETE 27 193,468 187,071
Lease liabilities — current portion HEBE-—RBIBH 18 6,436 7,870
Bank loans — current portion RITER— ﬁ@)%‘ﬁ% 28 861,655 698,175
Amounts due to directors ERTESER 29 34 36
Amounts due to related parties JE 1T 8 ﬁ/\im 23 2,295 1,997
Total current liabilities B BEARE 4,181,968 3,376,839
Net current assets TREEEEE 355,926 278,031
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBAR 1,396,663 1,267,134
Non-current liabilities FkFRBEE
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEaE RS 18 16,590 23,466
Bank loans — non-current portion RITEZ —IERBID 28 313,329 213,767
Deferred tax liabilities EIETRIERE 30 5,360 5,360
Total non-current liabilities JEmB B ELREE 335,279 242,593
Net assets BEE 1,061,384 1,024,541
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At 31 December 2021 2021412 H31H

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARBT T ARBTT
Capital and reserves EXRE#E
Share capital &N 31 107,590 107,590
Reserves E= 950,021 906,233
Equity attributable to owners ANREE AELES
of the Company 1,057,611 1,013,823
Non-controlling interests FFERER 33 3,773 10,718
Total equity MR 1,061,384 1,024,541
L b
J ,
=
FENG MING ZHU LIAN XIU QIN
IBEATT EEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EE
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| CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 %2021 12H31H 1F F/Z

Retained  Attributable

Statutory ~ Enterprise profits/ ~ to owners Non-
Share Share  Capital  reserve expansion Translation (Accumulated of the  Controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve losses) ~ Company Interests  equity
N
EE iz 3 REEH/  #AA

B%  B#uE A48  O0RE  BRE:  ERER (RMER)  RENR FERER A8
RVBOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'O0D  RMBOOO  RWBOO0  RVB00D  RMBOOD  RMBOD0  RMBOD

ARBTTL ARETL ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2020 R020F1 1B HEH 107590 619,288 186,215 134,257 67715 (74.808) 18471 1,058,728 15,798 1,074,526
Loss for the year FEEER = = = = = - (268) (2683 (4799 (5748))
Exchange differences on translating foreign REEH £ B £

operations - - - - - 1178 - 1,178 (281) 7,497
Total comprehensive income RERRANGEE

for the year - - - - - 1778 (52,683) (44,905) (5,080)  (49,985)

Capitel contribution to subsidiaries by~ FEARERRMBATEE
non-controlling interests

Appropriations Ak - - 1,556 - - (1,55%) - - -

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 32020612 831BR20IE1ATE 107500 619288 186215 135813 67715 (67,030  (35768) 1013823 10718 1,024,541

Profit for the year FEEEH - - - - = -’ 4,18 (3621 38561
Exchange differences on translating foreign &GN 2557 B 28

operations - - - - - 2,932 - 2,932 (51) 2,881
Total comprehensive income FERRENGEE

for the year - - - - - 2932 42182 45,114 (3.672) 41,442

Changes in ownership in a subsidiary B AN EEES

without changes in control (BHIERS) = = ) = - - (14 (1326 (B213)  (45%)
Appropriations by - - - 7380 3,402 - (10782) - - -
At 31 December 2021 R01E12A31A 10759 619288 186,133 143193 n7 (64,098) (5612 1,057,611 3773 1,061,384
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes:
Share premium

The share premium account represents the excess of the issue price
net of any issuance expenses over the par value of the shares issued
and has been credited to the share premium account of the Company.
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section
34 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.

Statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company,
these PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves,
namely a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund
which are non-distributable.

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Hongde”), Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan
Hongde”), Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. (“Scud Intelligent
Technology”) (together the “PRC Subsidiaries”) are required to
transfer 10% of their respective profit after income tax as reported in
the PRC statutory financial statements to the statutory reserve fund
until the balance reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the PRC Subsidiaries, they
are also required to make appropriation from their respective profit
after income tax as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements
to the enterprise expansion fund at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with the approval from the relevant government
authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval
by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to increase
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Gain/loss arising on translating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Accumulated losses

No dividend is proposed for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of accumulated losses of
the Group was RMB5,612,000 (2020: RMB35,768,000).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-.r\AIErﬁlﬂl:E%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 %2021 12H31H 1F F/Z

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHABRERE
Profit/(loss) before income tax MBS AR, (EE) 64,498 (39,903)
Adjustments for: FHEIER -
Interest income HEWA (10,794) (10,409)
Finance costs & AN 77,525 40,924
Gain on lease modification HEEFT W= (1,590) =
Amortisation of intangible assets L 1,842 1,693
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WERERETE
equipment 76,672 66,937
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  WEMREEER
equipment 672 27
Write-off of property, plant and Y - BB KR M
equipment 3,826 1,529
Depreciation of investment properties WEMENE 5,073 5,073
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 9,511 6,408
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment BAERZEWE S RIE R ER
loss on trade and notes receivables ZRCREBERR) (RERE - F
previously recognised, net | (1,796) 22,367
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment R MR 2 TEFRIE TK@&/HJ&FELW
loss on prepayments, deposits and FIECREEBERR) RERE - F
other receivables previously recognised, %8
net (3,147) 1,509
Reversal of write-down of inventories GFERRRERD - (8,276)
Write-off of inventories TFEM 1,929 3,929
Operating profit before changes in BEE R E A
working capital 224,221 91,808
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEEM), S (111,108) 58,897
(Increase)/decrease in trade and notes FEUE 55k 0E M R M 15 (38 00) R
receivables (525,558) 333,000
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits BT FIE ~ 124 [ H b fE W k8
and other receivables wd,(gm) 6,947 (11,441)
Decrease in amounts due from related FEUS BEE A T RIBRH A
parties 9,195 64,342
Increase/(decrease) in trade and notes FERTE 5508 R FENZEEIE N R
payables 636,390 (865,051)
Increase in other payables, HibpefzE - AWAaBRETER
contract liabilities and accrued charges N 6,397 44,535
Cash generated from/(used in) SEME(FARS
operations 246,484 (283,910)
Interest paid BERAFE (90,857) (56,606)
Income tax paid ETFTEH (2,762) (4,613)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EETEHAE (AR TFHE
operating activities 152,865 (345,129)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Investing activities BREEH
Interest received B UFLR 10,794 10,409
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits BT R (1), R (237,879) 226,644
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HERE - Jﬁi%& i)
and equipment FTiS 3 582 674
Payments to acquire property, plant and E%,J’f%% W%&%&{%%ﬁﬁ
equipment (158,695) (395,807)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BEELEER (3.116) (2,500)
Acquisition of shares from non-controlling BE =t ﬂﬁéfmﬂﬂlﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ
interests (4,599) =
Net cash used in investing activities REZEHAESTHE (392,913) (160,580)
Financing activities LA EE
Bank loans raised EERITEN 1,745,734 1,493,660
Repayment of principal portion of leases BEMEE ZIS‘;E% o) (8,403) (4,776)
Repayment of interest portion of leases EREETR S (2,723) (2,032)
Repayment of bank loans BERRITER (1,482,684) (1,161,282)
Repayment of other loans EEEMER - (9,393)
Decrease in amounts due to directors JE - B = 2R E R > (2) (373)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to JRE -} RsEE A = FRIEE 0, Rl
related parties 298 (9,651)
Net cash generated from financing RMETEHMEREFHE
activities 252,220 306,153
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash HERBESZEEREM, (RD)FE
equivalents 12,172 (199,556)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FURESRRAELEEER
of year 211,294 406,197
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZR#H L 3,229 4,653
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESRRESEEEE
year 226,695 211,294
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBESEEHEBERDN
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHER L IR® 226,695 211,294
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS ITEFRERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had non-
cash (i) additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
RMB5,209,000 (2020: RMB26,768,000) and RMB5,209,000 (2020:
RMB26,768,000) respectively, in respect of the lease arrangements for
the leased factory, office and staff dormitory; and (ii) enhanced and
transformed property, plant and equipment with net carrying amount
of RMB11,227,000 from their original uses. These property, plant and
equipment were accounted for as disposal when they were being
enhanced and transformed; and accounted for as addition when they

were ready to use.

HE2021F 128318 L FE  ZEB BB E>)R
EFAEEEREEEED A ARES,209,0007T
(20204 : AR#26,768,0007T) & AR #5,209,000
JC(20204F : A R #26,768,0007T ) + Jb £ 7H & R
B MAZEREIFENHELTHESH  RiNER
ERERAMEREFESAREK11,227,0007T
R BELLHE ZEVE  BERXERIR
F RBGERETERE - RRNE R HERRHERE °
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GENERAL

Veson Holdings Limited (the “Company”), is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones, notebooks, tablets and digital electronic appliances,
while also engaging in manufacture and sale of lithium-ion bare
battery cells.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs - effective
from 1 January 2021

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new or amended IFRSs, which are relevant to and effective
for the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning on 1 January 2021.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
BB B 7 ¥ 5 ERISE 95 - B G R ERIFE 3958 - BIFR B 7S
WELRNETE - BRI TR E LR 4557 MBI B R 5 4
BIZE1658 (1EFTA)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—RER

SR AERAE ([ ARQA])K2006%7 A20
BEHSHEEIMKIAEREZ EFHARA
Al HARMDN2006F12 A21BEBBHAR 5
iR AR (BT ) EMR ETT ©

ARBMEEXBR/REZER - REKBEQA
TEREREATH  ZTE - FREBBEE
FEMMAZEETFELEAREEEN 2L
ENHE  TMEEEMTFEN 2 EEREE -

RN AT AR BRR B B | S
28 ([ B PR A A 3R 5 22 A )

(a) BR4N 3T = RS RT Bl PR B 75 3R &5 2
Al—BH2021F1A1BEEXK
RAFE  NEBERERN T kA
BRI BRI RS 2R - fHEEAREER
202151 A1 B RABKFE BE 2 476 I
AW EHEER -

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

M REAENE —F R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. FRAFIIRBETEBRBTERE
(Continued) 8 w)
(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective () AT REETERTBEREE

from 1 January 2021 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS
16— Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address
the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered
rate (“IBOR") is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free
interest rate (“RFR").

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

e A practical expedient to require contractual changes,
or changes to cash flows that are directly required
by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating
interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market
rate of interest;

e Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued; and

e  Provide temporary reliefs to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when
a RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk
component.

None of these new or amended IFRSs has a material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior period. The Group has not early applied any new
or amended IFRSs that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

B — B202141 81 A BEM (&)
EIR AR R EO% - EBE LS
2395 « EIRH B LR L7 - B
B R 2R s B S ASE R ER  RHR  E
E16(155TH) —FIEHEHE - 2=
7%

REETRETRES  URARTRAL
7 8. RTRE S ) i AR =
([mEBRFIR D ERKE - HEHERE R

ZEETTRREATERAITEREDE -

o ERTATHEAETEANE -
REEEABEFNRSREREAS
FRREMBIE  RERTHFIEY

o AFABRTRFXFEZEMNERNK
BENEERE Rt Mg
BRPEIRRIR ¢ R

o  EEABRNETARKEESRRBD
EEDRE - RERRERERRER B
B e BRI H K

&R B AT BRI A5 3R 5 2 Rl K
SEAMERBERROEEA R BEAR
BMEBATE o AEBE W EIEATEREM
WA B R AR H R AL ERT B
BREATE IR E LR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued

92

but are not yet effective

The following new or amended IFRSs, potentially relevant to

the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are

not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

Amendments to IAS 1

REETERIE 15 (IBETA)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

BIFR & 5T RS 1 5% R BRI s i 5 R B3R5 55257
(EFTA)

Amendments to IAS 8

BIBR G ET2E R85 (B3] 4 )

Amendments to IAS 12

BIRR & a2 RIS 1257 (55T A0)

Amendments to IAS 16

BIFR & 5t R 1655 (BETAN)

Amendments to IAS 37

BIRR & 5T ERIFE 375 (55T A)

Amendments to IFRS 3

BB B 755 R 5 R BN 32 35% (1E 7T AR )

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B B 75 5 R BN 321 05% S B R & 5+ R B 285 (18R] AR)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
BIFR B 75 5 2 RI20184F £ 2020F BHI 2 F Bk

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.
3  No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption.

RN SIS T BB B 3R &

28l #)

(b) DEMEMKERZFTREBTEH
BBt 5 4R & 2 A
T T A A S BB SRk B R MO T T K
(1 ST B B 76 3R o 2 B B B A 1B 4 R
Rk B ARBEAEE R PR -

2.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current? 4
BEIBEARENIERE?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

BHREZRE

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

BEHE 2R

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction?

HE - HES 2 BE KA EHEBORIERNIR?

Proceeds before Intended Use'

BT AR Al 2 S FRIE

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’

BRESK —BITE KA

Reference to the Conceptual Framework!

BESHEZR 2 f2

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture?

REEHHBENR AL EE L HHEIEIAEE

Amendments IFRS 1, IFRS 9 and lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16 and IAS 41!

BB B 765 i 5 AR BN 25 1 55% ~ R B 7 5 AR B 25 955 e B
BRI ¥R 5 HE RIS 6557 BE I BV R 0 K B R & 5+ 2RI 5
AR ZAERT A

1 R202022F1ATHSZBHIENEE

HARG AR o

2 2023 F1AIBES 2 BB EE
BRI AERK -

3 HABETERFIEKAE BRI HEIE

e




VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERBERAHE
ANNUAL REPORT 44§ 2021

e o me e o am s

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. FRAFIIRBETEBRBTERE
(Continued) 8l w)

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

4  As a consequence of the amendments to IAS 1,
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion.

Amendments to IAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current is based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that
classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a
liability and explain that rights are in existence if covenants
are complied with at the end of the reporting period. The
amendments also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to
make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or
services.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 — Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates.

(b) EFEME M R Z 7T HAEMEET Bl

R B R R 25 2E Bl (4F)

4 HREBEESFEASIRMER
MBERENEYN - BRAHBER
EREERTNTHERZER
2020FF10 A EETIEE] - AFEAEIE
MEBRIT —3 BARTEZS) -

EIRRE st ERIE 15 (1557 F) —BESE
BREHIERE
ZEENRFRBRENRSHRFEZ
BMDERRBIERBAE - HEATE
DRI ERERENSTEETESE
BEREMZTAH - WL - R REHR
ETRE) - RIFEZAEN © ZIERTIFEIA
[EE |MER - NABRTEETERR
T BRETAE HEEIRBEBER
HHEFIT -

EIRR 5t 2E R 155 K BB B 75 38 & 2E A
ERIMEFE25 (15T 4)
ZEEERERNEEZETRRE
£t MIFERNGFTBER © WERE B
BRAEMEN —HEE  SHBREH
AAEREMEYEARMBEHRRNTE
ERERBZEVHERERPIIELARE -
AZEtBERERBERX - BRMEHRE
ERBEBREL2FNETABMAFE
ZUERSEAR G ERRKERMES -
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2EH
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2.
(Continued)

PR AN #7 5] 2R AR (S BT Bl R Bt A 3R 5
Rl #)
(b) TMEH#E M KM HTREETH

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued

94

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 — Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax
asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions.

Amendments to IAS 16 — Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead,
the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of
producing those items, is recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to IAS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either
be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct
labour and materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

BREr RS R (F)

BB E Tt ERE 1255 (15574 ) —BE—X
BELZEERBEHBIELYE
ZEERT /N ERERPIIME R E
8 BB E AR E S RERT AT HIR
EREZENRS - PIBEERERERT -
At TRARZKERFEENEREZE
ERELERREEMELERARE -

IR Eat ERE 1655 (15T 4) —HEEHE
BIZ iS5 E

ZEEREILBRIEDE  BFERRER
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ERENTARRKERMVENUE R
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BBt ERIE 375 (15T 4) —ERIEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. FRAFIIRBETEBRBTERE
(Continued) 8|

(b) B REM{E R A Kz ¥ 5] HAZMEFT Bl

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 — Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
instead of the version issued in 2010. The amendments
add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the
scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists
as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within
the scope of IFRIC-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC-
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the
acquisition date. The amendments also add an explicit
statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent
assets acquired in a business combination.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction with an
associate or joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, any gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the
remeasurement of retained interest in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture) to fair
value are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.

BREA R RS R (F)

BB BT T 3R & 2RI B35 (15T K) —#E=
HEZE 2 $2it

% F1E AT 3T IR B 75 5 R RIS 35K
Bl Bl 201 85 B IS 5 2 AR E T
HEZR - M FE2010F M Z iR AN © 3% F &
AT H BIRR B %5 S RIS 357 B 0 — IR AR
T BB S ERIEI7TREBEANEE
mE - W7 ARG ERIE375RE
ERBBAMETRAESEHMEERE
BE - BBERYEREREZES 28
F2R BRI BEANBHRME - WES
ERBERMEHREREZE® —2EF2
FETEEAXNBRAENEEEMHES
BRI B AT A - RSB IN—
TR R - RABURETT W BRI X
BOHPBBOEREE

BB 5 3R e 2E BY 51095 R BIRE 2 =12 B
B8 (EATA) ~REFHAHE N AR
BELEZHHEXTIAEE
ZEBIRBREEREBENAREE
CEZAFEEELEXHENER - i
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. BRAFIIRBETERBHERE
(Continued) ﬁ EJJ (&)

(b) EFEME N RAER ZH 7 HEMEET E

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle —
Amendments IFRS1, IFRS 9 and Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16 and IAS 41

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when
it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS
9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.
An entity includes only fees paid or received between the
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s
behalf.

Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16 Lease

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying
IFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor
in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of
how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new pronouncements. The
Directors so far concluded that the application of these new
pronouncements is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group's financial performance and financial position.

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

96

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
("1ASs") issued by the IASB and Interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee of the IASB (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE20214F 12431 H I F/Z

3. 23EEs

Basis of measurement (b) FFEEXE
The financial statements have been prepared under the WIS R TIIRIRIE R AR B R - M
historical cost basis, except for notes receivables that have WEERATFEFZRIBRIN - sFEEER
been measured at fair value. The measurement bases are X EEHRR AR o
fully described in the accounting policies below.
Functional and presentation currency () MEEREHEE
The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi BRI AARK ([ ARK )25 - H
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of AN T L SRR o
the Company.
Representation (d) =7
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the impairment loss HZE2021E 128318 I EE - BEERE
and reversal of impairment loss are presented as separate RREEE RO REEE SRS
line items in the consolidated statement of profit or loss o LB RRERN GO BAREMEE
and other comprehensive income in accordance with IAS Wxh 2558 BEE - A &%
1 - Presentation of Financial Statements. Accordingly, 202012831 B L EEWEAEXRHE
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WERERSARDRET  ZEMBRIT -
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 December
2020 has been represented and the effect is summarised
below.
Effect on the
year ended
31 December 2020
HHZE20205F
12A31HIEFE
-4
R
RMB’000
ARETFT
Decrease in other revenue H b e 7,905
Decrease in other operating expenses H{th 48 & F SR > (31,781)
Increase in impairment loss recognised on trade and i EUE 5 7B & fE N Z B HE R AR
notes receivables, net EEEIG I - F5E 22,367
Increase in impairment loss recognised on TIBNFE - e REAMmERGIEE
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, net REVREEEEN - F58 1,509
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

98

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXE:EHE »)
(Continued)

(a) EBEHRGEEE(E)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

g & TEERNEMSIAREEREE
BMATERR HRHEREFELEZH
B ERABARFERRREASKE
BHEEFH2(E A ) ARG B BN UE B 8
RFPENHMERELR T EBHEE
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N 3 7

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

100

POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(9)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

4, EXRSHBE#®)

(b) MIEBAR(E)

(c)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXE:EHE »)
(Continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) () Y% - BMERREE)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as

follows:

Building 3%

Plant and machinery 10-33%

Motor vehicles 20-25%

Electronic equipment, furniture and 10-33%
fixtures

Leasehold improvements 10%

N8 B A8 B8 A AR RSB A 21 18 AT BE R AR
B MEERARER EHE - AIER
RAT G ABERNREEXERS—H
BYAE(RERE) EENONKRE
BEERIUBHER - MARMBEERRER
RHEREENTERBRAEIERER R
2

xR BERRESETINE  EUARE
At AT 68 R 67 HA DA B A0 i BH 0 Bk T8 A R
HREERORALEE  TEAFH -
FRBERTE S FONEBEAREHRE
Bl - IR E - RIGEHLAR - AIEAF
BT

BF 3%
R M e Es 10-33%
RE 20-25%
BETRE - BARESR 10-33%
THEYHEE 10%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

102

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Investment property (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group chooses
not to classify and account for these property interests as
investment property.

Leases

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE20214F 12431 H I F/Z
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

104

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee;
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease;
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of an investment property, they
are carried at fair value and for right-of-use asset that
meets the definition of a leasehold land and buildings held
for own use, they are carried at fair value.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that
are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under
IAS 40 “Investment Property” and are carried at fair value.
The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under IAS 16 “Property, plant
and equipment” and are carried at fair value. Other than
the above right-of-use assets, the Group also has leased
a number of properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises it judgement and determines that it
is a separate class of asset apart from the leasehold land
and buildings which is held for own use. As a result, the
right-of-use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXE:EFE »®)
(Continued)

(e) Leases (Continued) (e) HE(#E)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate,
a change in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXgHBE®
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(Continued)

(f)

Intangible assets

(f) BEEE

(i) Acquired intangible assets (i) BUENEEEE
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially 8 W B 2 A B ) R AR R T
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets R REBEHTBAZ B EEK
acquired in a business combination is fair value at RAERKEBRRZ AFE - Hig - #
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible RERBROEREERKAR R
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less Bk 2EHRERBEYIE o
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over BE IR A R AT B R R
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with BN o A0 A BRI IR A B2
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any B E TIRBAR R 25HREE B
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation iR - BB AN Em AR ATT
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in B -
administrative expenses.
Software 3-5 years EILs 3E:54F
(ii) Internally generated intangible assets (research (i) ASBELEZEFEEHRER)

and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

— it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

AEFAZEERMAS - EHIRTIIER
AR TEE R

—  ER ERIREREmAHIEE:

- adequate resources are available to complete the — BRWERTHARE
development;

- there is an intention to complete and sell the - BETHMEEER
product;

—  the Group is able to sell the product; — AEBBRENEEER

—  sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

- HEEMSEERKLEN:
N ATAEREGTEIAE S -
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs) (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

(g) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

FRE R AR MR
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(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition

is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment'’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All
other equity instruments are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs
on trade receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVTOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12-months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

4, EXRSHBE#)

(9) EMTAE)

(i)

(i)

SHEEE)

EHTE

IR RN IEFEE B AR
RAER - NGB AN A E R R
HtzEzmT 257 E R TFENE
o MR TRIC A EIBIED -
BRAFEFARMEER SN ERE
BIEAFETE - RERARBZEA
TR - BRIERR B A BE R TR IR B 56
DA o E bz R RIFEE R
Htemk=ERATeETIEE
B o HtER TAYHEARAT
Bt ABs  MEATEZE  RKRE
RF| B AR Bz HER

R

EHEEREFR

AEBERREEAATAEZREE S
R - EREERR A FER AEM
PENENEFREERAREER
BrBREE - BHEEBRERT
FIEP—EREEFE (1) 128K
BHEEEE : BAAERSEHRI2
18 H A 7T 8 3% A 032 4 F A T E 2
BHEEER  RQFRANEHY
FEEFE : ERTANTRBRSHHA
FrB Rl BE B A RE K E M SR TR
HEEER - METRNEEEER
ZENREHHALAREAZEER
REVREAHHRE -

TEHEEBEREE B R R NE
&t - EEERERBEAVENTA
SENMEARNRSREAEETAY
WEIMEHReREBELEZR/TE - B
BRERREERERMNENHEESER
B3R -

109



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERERLH

- ANNUAL REPORT 4 #§ 2021

pAga =

RE R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using IFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXE:EFE »®)
(Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, financial liabilitiies included
in other payables, contract liabilities and accrued
charges, borrowings, amounts due to related parties,
amounts due to directors and lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.
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(h) Inventories

(0]

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent short-term,
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which were within three
months of maturity when acquired.
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(Continued)
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

. provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(i) Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances

Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 60-90 days.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances (Continued)

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from
the sale of product provides standard warranty service
for defective goods to assure that the product sold
complies with the agreed-upon specifications within 6
months following the date of delivery. The warranty
gives rise to a separate performance obligation if
a warranty provides a customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications. Therefore, an entity
shall allocate the transaction price to the product and
the service.

Other revenue

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Processing income is recognised over time when
processing services are provided.

(k) Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to

transfer services to a customer for which the Group has

received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.
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()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXE:EFE »®)
(Continued)

(m) Foreign currency (m) 5

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB and INR) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

120

(n) Employee benefits

(o)

()

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine

whether there is any indication that those assets have

suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;

Investment properties under cost model;

Intangible assets ;and

Right-of-use assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expenses
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another IFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that IFRS.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

4, EXRSHBE#)

(o)

(p)

(a)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXgHBE®

(Continued)

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities () BERIARERE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing EXASERBATEHEE LERSEER
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive Eif Al BE B BUR A B Rl - Bz B A
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is AL A IR AT R - BIlE BE AR A2 T E R
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that SRR B EEREE -

can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic i SRR RERR 2 H BN & - Kz &5
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be Regrl SEfhst - AIZEERBERSAS
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a &+ MER B = A R 08 RIBR S o
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of EURENERAE BN ZBERARENGA
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the AIEERLFENRERE  NEEES
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence SN EE - HEA H AR A e ) A R (i A
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also BRAN o

disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(s) Related parties (s) BEAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) fWEBLATAL @ RIFZALTZATA
related to the Group if that person: TR BERK B BN [E B R
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) PEhIkHEEEGAREE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEBBEEAFESN ok
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of (i) ARNEEFIRABEFRAAMNE
the Group or the Company’s parent. ZEBENE o
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) fHFFE THMEMGRYE - BIZERBER
following conditions apply: R E B B
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEASEBER-—SEH
same group (which means that each parent, RERAR(BNER]AFE - WEA
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the AIRARWEARKILEE @
others). 33) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —REBRS—EBHNBER
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a AlEEE (RS —EBAK
member of a group of which the other entity is a BARIMEEKE QAR
member). NAHEEDE) -
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREBHRA-—F=7THAa
party. B o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXgFHBE®

(Continued)
(s) Related parties (Continued) (s) BAEAXE)
(b)  (Continued) (b) (%)
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy, " REBRF=ZFEEHNEZ
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. Tt mME—EBRAR-—F=
FEENEE AT
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v) ERRAEENEREERGH
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an HEe) B Bt B B N &5 2% 80 Bk
entity related to the Group. g @zt El o
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) EEEZ@FATIETE A TIEHI5
person identified in (a). R o
(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) @QIFTIEALTHEBREEAY
influence over the entity or is a member of key ZhdB7ER(ZERER
management personnel of the entity (or of a AMEEBEEEKS °
parent of the entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (vii) B8 - SKHEMTEEE AT MK
it is a part, provides key management personnel SREEIEENEQRRESE
services to the group or to the group’s parent. FTEEBABRLE o
Close members of the family of a person are those family — R ANTHAIRREEK BIETAEAE R E B8
members who may be expected to influence, or be WX SHRAZEZATHRZATHED
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity REERKE - BFF -
and include:
(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; () BATHFEZREBHIERS
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; (i) FATREIREFEHFZ &
and
(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or (i) ZALTHZATHEBRKEFED
domestic partner. HEA
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5.

124

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the directors to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities are as follows:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment and investment properties. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charges in future periods.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EES B RMATIEERSR
ZEBRIR

REMEBRBRMBEREEANGEVBEREE
KEFHEMIRTABNEERBENRER
EBEELHE - 5 RERER - At KR /KRR
DERNBELSRLEMERSAENRE - &
BREERAIBEA BRI FEET ©

ZEG RAARREFERT - BRI S5
st WABEBIT REEETEAHE - Al
EZHEER  HAREBITZEI A RIAEL
HAfE - BITEME AT HARS R A 1R HRFR AR o

EZEERAEEFEGHBUR R 2%
B EERER SERFHEELAGRAME
EHERARZ F 2R A M2 bt RREN
T

() W% BERRBUARRENEZT
ERFHRITE
AEEEENE  BERRBUARKRED
E2 G ERFEHARBEITERS -
ZEHATRIBEE RINERT 2 WE
5 Mt A R R B Y K BRI A 1
ZBEKBRMEL - WA ERFHERZA
ZEFRE AIAEEReRSITER
X TEHEMBENXLE 2 WM LBRK
FESRBE B B W SH SMURL - BFRAEE FHIR]
REEMAET AT AR o E Bt Al
PR EEZAIFEFHHRES - A3
BAEEERKARZFTER o



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEZERERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 44§ 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(ii) Net realisable value of inventories

5. EEEHHERATERERE
ZEERIR @)

(i) FEZTSHRFE

(iii)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to any
industry downturn. The directors reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for trade receivables and notes
receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade and notes receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue fee
receivables, customers’ repayment history and customers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement. The provision
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of
forecast general economic conditions. The information
about the ECLs and the Group’s trade and notes receivables
are disclosed in Notes 21 and 40. If the financial condition
of the customers or the forecast economic conditions were
to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be higher than
estimated.
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5.

126

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, intangible assets and right-of-use assets at the
end of each reporting period. These assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, the directors
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

(v) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 30.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5 EES:HYUERATTFAREREE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEERR @)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
(vi) Control over Cybertech Optiemus Holdings (vi) ¥ Cybertech Optiemus Holdings

Limited (“Cybertech”)

The Group owns 50% equity interests in Cybertech. For the
purpose of assessing whether or not the Group has control
over Cybertech and its subsidiaries (collectively “Cybertech
Group”), the directors considered whether the Group has
the ability to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. In making this judgement, the directors considered
that the relevant activities of Cybertech are directed by the
board of directors and all resolutions of directors’ meeting
are passed by simple majority. Since the Group is entitled
to appoint 3 out of 5 directors into the board of directors
of Cybertech in accordance with investment agreement,
the Group dominates the board of directors of Cybertech
and is able to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. The directors of the Company were therefore in
the opinion that Group has control over Cybertech Group
during the year despite its shareholding therein was
50% and Cybertech Group were qualified as subsidiaries
of the Company under IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” for the year ended 31 December 2021.

(vii) Estimation of incremental borrowing rate for
lease liabilities

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use assets in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.

Limited ([ Cybertech |) z % 4l #
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZX(ZERoIHEFR
(a) Turnover (a) =%

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

EXRREREEHERBRERERE ST
it

TEREHRBBEKESRBERKREEFA

HzahaBEzEH -
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021%F 2020
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Trade and notes receivables (Note 21) FEUE 55008 & EW =12 (Hi3E21)
Contract liabilities (Note 27) AHEaENE27)

2,504,241 1,976,887
21,025 21,353

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights
to consideration for work completed but not billed
at the reporting date on revenue. The contract assets
are transferred to receivables when the rights become
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group provides
the invoice to the customer.

The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance
consideration received from customers. RMB21,353,000 of
the contract liabilities as of 31 December 2020 has been
recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 December
2021 from performance obligations satisfied in previous
year.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to its sales
contracts for lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital electronic
appliances and therefore the above information does not
include information about revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXZERo3ER =)
(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (b) RO ER

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision makers in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is engaged in the business of original design
manufacturing (“ODM business”) as well as bare battery cells
("Bare battery cells business”). The chief operating decision
makers (i.e. the Company’s directors) review the segment
information of these businesses and based on it to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
Group’s reportable segments are set out below:

ODM business — Manufacture and supply of lithium-ion
battery modules, power banks, motive battery and related
accessories for branded mobile phone, notebooks, tablets
and EV manufacturers within and outside China.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion bare battery cells for mobile phones, tablets and
power banks.

Others - Sales of raw materials, work-in-progress,
processing income and rental income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented as

follows:

Segment revenue and results

(b) FR¥EDER(4E)

ERZEXBNOHBERZ5I0T

7 B s R FAE

2021
ODM Bare battery

business cell business Others Total
ODME% ERER Hity Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE AR¥TR AR¥ETR AR%Tx
Total Turnover FetaE 8,003,663 205,268 663,172 8,872,103
Less: Intersegment sales W RERSHE (1,310,809) (24,610) (445,040)  (1,780,459)
Turnover EEE 6,692,854 180,658 218,132 7,091,644
Segment profit DEEF 171,667 1,085 1,327 174,079
Unallocated income ROBKA
- Bank interest income —SRITF BN 10,794
- Others —Hh 1,547
Unallocated expenses APEHZ
~ Other corporate expenses s NG5 (2,973)
— Auditor’s remuneration — B E (1,659)
— Legal and professional fees —ERREEER (1,137)
- Staff costs —BIA (26,014)
— Rental expense —HER (383)
— Exchange loss - EREX (5,746)
— Finance costs — BB A (77,525)
- Others —Hfty (6,485)
Profit before income tax B P15 8 AR A 64,498
Income tax expense FrsHiA % (25,937)
Profit for the year RNEEHF 38,561
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE20214F 12431 H I F/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXZERo3ER =)
(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) H¥RDER(E)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) D EB o R EAE (1E)
2020
Bare battery

ODM business  cell business Others Total

ODMETS BREK Hith a5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETRT ARETRT AR®Tn

Total Turnover mERE 6,819,135 206,389 809,507 7,835,031

Less: Intersegment sales W RERHE (1,073,593) (21,691) (523,176)  (1,618,460)

Turnover 2] 5,745,542 184,698 286,331 6,216,571

Segment profit SR 22,215 9,210 6,195 37,620
Unallocated income E T ON

- Bank interest income —RITF S MA 9,850

- Others —Efh 4,653
Unallocated expenses APBRHAX

- Auditor’s remuneration —ZEEH S (2,045)

— Legal and professional fees —EEREEER (1,547)

— Staff costs —BIRA (26,795)

— Exchange loss - EREX (9,481)

— Finance costs —BERAR (40,924)

- Others —Efh (11,234)

Loss before income tax BrET{SHL A EE (39,903)

Income tax expense TSRS (17,579)

Loss for the year AEFER (57,482)
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

EEBRIER B

(b)

132

Reportable segments (Continued)

(b) FR¥EDER(4E)

Segment assets and liabilities DEHEEREE
2021
ODM Bare battery
business cell business Total
ODME#% ERER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTRT ARETR
Segment assets DEREE 5,276,332 204,500 5,480,832
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEARIEE
— Property, plant and equipment —ZE - BB RF 231,156
— Investment properties — BB 50,995
- Bank balances and cash —IRITEBRERS 6,410
— Prepayments, deposits and —TERRIE - ek
other receivables H fth FEU R 380
— Amounts due from related parties — PEUR A A+ 5R18 14,025
— Others — A 2,833
Consolidated total assets IREEERRE 5,578,631
Segment liabilities HEAaE 4,380,408 126,273 4,506,681
Unallocated corporate liabilities KOBEARIAE
— Other payables — HAbERRIA 3,164
— Amounts due to directors —ENEEFHIE 34
— Amounts due to related parties — T EEE A 538 1,686
~ Deferred tax liabilities —RIERIEAE 5,360
— Others —H A 322
Consolidated total liabilities e AEReE 4,517,247
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXZERo3ER =)
(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) H¥RDER(E)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEERBRE(E)
2020
ODM  Bare battery
business  cell business Total
ODMZ7% BHER #Et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTET
Segment assets DEEE 4,006,712 226,659 4,233,371
Unallocated corporate assets ROBARIEE
— Property, plant and equipment —MZE - BB RFK 264,430
— Investment properties — BB 56,068
- Bank balances and cash —RITHEBRERS 2,212
— Prepayments, deposits and —TENRE Bk
other receivables H fh pE Y SRIE 11,170
— Amounts due from related parties — e BAxE A T F0E 23,555
— Others —Hh 53,167
Consolidated total assets IREEERE 4,643,973
Segment liabilities HEPEE 3,455,355 144,505 3,599,860
Unallocated corporate liabilities RARARAE
— Other payables — H eI 518 13,531
— Amounts due to directors — R ESHIE 36
— Deferred tax liabilities —BEEFIEAE 5,360
— Others —HAth 645
Consolidated total liabilities A AERRE 3,619,432
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(c) Other information (c) HiEx
2021
ODM Bare battery
business cell business Others Total
ODME# ETER Hth by
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE - BERRERTE 72,238 4,407 27 76,672
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE - - 5,073 5,073
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 4,501 4,698 312 9,511
Interest on lease liabilities REARNE 1,343 1,306 74 2,723
Loss on disposal of property, LENE - BERSBEER
plant and equipment 47 625 - 672
Write-off of property, plant and equipment NE - BE R ERE 3,563 263 - 3,826
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEESH 1,823 19 - 1,842
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and note receivables BAEZZ EXE S REREKEE A
previously recognised, net BEEDFE (4,466) 2,670 - (1,796)
Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and B2 AMFUE « 114 REMERE
other receivables previously recognised, net EREBEERTE (1,797) (1,350) - (3,147)
Write-off of inventories FEHE 1,929 - - 1,929
Research and development costs HEER 182,592 8,585 - 191,177
Income tax expense/(credit) ERRY/(E%) 24,821 (169) 1,285 25,937
Additions to property, plant and equipment NE - BERRERE 181,833 4,675 - 186,508
Additions to intangible assets ENBERE 3,116 - - 3,116
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. &XXERoBEF 2

(Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued) (c) H&ERE)
2020
ODM  Bare battery
business  cell business Others Total
ODMET  BUER 2t 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AREBTT ARETR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % BEREETE 62,843 4,067 27 66,937
Depreciation of investment properties RENMERE - - 5,073 5,073
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 3,103 2,958 347 6,408
Interest on lease liabilities HEARHNE 1,430 477 125 2,032
Loss on disposal of property, LENE - BERIEER
plant and equipment 20 7 - 27
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y% - R Rk 1,050 479 = 1,529
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EEEHS 1672 19 2 1,693
Impairment loss recognised on trade and notes receivables FIEWE 5708 R EWER
R ERSE 19,053 8,620 - 27,673
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, deposits and  FTENFUE « 154 REMEREREZZ
other receivables HEEE 4,065 1 - 4,076
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and notes receivables B EWE S ERENZERE
previously recognised BEAE (3) (5335) = (5,338)
Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and  BERA 2 AFUE « 114 REMERE
other receivables previously recognised ERESEEE (93) (2,474) = 2,567)
Write-off of inventories FEM®E 3,929 = = 3,929
Reversal of write down of inventories FEMAZR (375) (7,901) - (8,276)
Research and development costs HEER 93,405 7,894 - 101,299
Income tax expense/(credit) mERRY/(B%) 19,532 (3,081) 1,128 17,579
Additions to property, plant and equipment NE - BERRERE 419,552 335 - 419,887
Additions to intangible assets BYEERE 2,500 - - 2,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 %2021 12H31H 1F F/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXZERoJ3ER &)
(Continued)

d) FEERZEXE
REREEETEERZOBEEBNT ¢

(d) Turnover from major products

The Group's disaggregated turnover from its major products
were as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFIT
(re-presented)
(&E7))
(a) Turnover recognised at a point in  (a) RE— B ELFEA & 25E ¢
time:
ODM business: ODMET :
Mobile phone batteries FIETH 5,768,258 5,143,802
Notebook and tablet batteries EXANTFIREMD 559,254 67,283
Power banks BENER 314,363 426,480
Motive batteries and communication ) B S IB AN R AL
backup power banks BEER 18,206 55,434
Others Hih 32,773 52,543
ODM business ODMET 6,692,854 5,745,542
Bare battery cell business: BN
Lithium-ion bare battery cells SEEEFE 180,658 184,698
Others Hity 183,185 257,095
7,056,697 6,187,335
(b) Turnover recognised over time: (b) E—ERREGE AL EE .
Processing income T A 30,258 23,698
(c) Revenue from other sources: () HbREELENWE :
Rental income HeWA 4,689 5,538
Total turnover B 7,091,644 6,216,571
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(Continued)

(e) Geographical information

(f)

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as
analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets by geographical market
have not been presented as they are substantially generated
from or situated in the PRC.

Turnover contributed by the subsidiary in India was minimal
to the Group's turnover due to the impact of the national
lockdown ordered by the Indian Government on 24 March
2020 as a preventive measure against the COVID-19
pandemic.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of them accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE20214F 12431 H I F/Z

6. EXHERITER )

(e) HEER

(f)

AEEWEZF BB TIHE DN AEE
BRBENEENTARAEESE D #RH
HREERAEME  BFERRERETY
BENEREEST - REREBRZERN
HR B E A S P -

RPN ENE BT R202053 A24R T2 H
HES 1B A EHCOVID-19% 15 B FE [ 35
M ZUFE - EEHB AR R E 3
BHAEBMEXEEMS M RE -

FTEEXEFEHR
REFEFEFPZRE(RESHREERK
#10% s A ) #EFI AT -

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET ARBT T

Customer A ZPA 1,439,425 N/AT TNE R
Customer B ZFEB 1,062,057 2,189,957
Customer C EFEC 918,686 1,311,633
Customer D =FD 887,485 N/A" !

L The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group for the
respective period.

U ERREY KA A KBRS R YK S
HBEB10%IA I o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

7. OTHER REVENUE 7. HfttWz
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFT
Government grants ERFT2Rh 34,661 10,595
Interest income FEUA 10,794 10,409
Sales of moulds SHEEEAR 6,793 4,104
Compensation from suppliers HEEREMHE 374 551
Reversal of write down of inventories FEHURE D - 8,276
Sundry income FEIEUA 3,408 4,193
56,030 38,128
The government grants represent subsidies received from the BURERETE B P B BUF U R 2 B - DARRET R
PRC Government to appreciate the industrial contribution to RElZHBEEWBARHZMAELNESE
the city, substantial amount of employment support, employer R AEREIR  REBIGE - - HRE
provided housing, export trade and technology development 5 R BT B 2% o 5% 552 B N0 MR (R AT 4R A AR GE K
incurred by the Company’s wholly-owned PRC-based subsidiaries. 151 -
There are no unfulfilled conditions relating to the grants.
8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. FRFFEBLANER (&)
This is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB (GEA)THIER -
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTT

Auditor’s remuneration: IZERN BN & -

— audit service —ZE AR 1,410 1,600

— review service —E R 249 267

— other service — EAth B 7% 255 479
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BB RREITE

equipment (including depreciation (BIERIERE AP LEN

recorded in research and development ree AR ¥E3,726,0007T

costs of RMB3,726,000 (20204 : AK¥3,882,0007T))

(2020: RMB3,882,000)) 76,672 66,937
Depreciation of investment properties KEYENE 5,073 5,073
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 9,511 6,408
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH 1,842 1,693
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses RERAY 2 FEKAK 6,554,586 5,812,060
Cost of processing income INTWA Z B AN 22,372 18,565
Operating lease rentals for office premises AR LHEHRS 18,680 21,600
Research and development costs mEEA 191,177 101,299
Staff costs (including staff costs recorded BTIRA(BIETTANZEERANET

in research and development costs of AN AR % 105,554,0007T (20204F -

RMB105,554,000 (2020: RMB37,475,000)) A R#37,475,0007T))

(Note 10) (Mt3E10) 543,580 576,451
Net foreign exchange loss B 3 B 1R 5 R 5,746 9,481
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9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 9. Hit&K&mM%

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTT

Write-off of inventories FEMHE 1,929 3,929
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #2 - &= N E A 3,826 1,529

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BENMKREEE
equipment 672 27
Sundry expenses MIEF S 1,749 268
8,176 5,753

10. STAFF COSTS 10. ETRA

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBT T

Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) BEME (M) 3,303 3,960
Other staff costs HAth 8 TR A 489,493 543,149
Retirement benefits scheme contributions — E/REFEHEIH 2 50,784 29,342

543,580 576,451

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION 11.EEREESEHM

(a) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 (a) WBEBBREENI(F622F ) E3831& K&
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and RE(BREEENmER)ROI(F622G
the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of F)RBENEEMEOT

Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) is as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARKTT

Salaries, housing allowances, other FN - BEEEL - HAaEEE R

allowances and benefits in kind EWEF 1,375 1,768
Fees wE 1,902 2,172
Other emoluments: HAb e :
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIET B 5K 26 20

3,303 3,960
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’' REMUNERATION 11.EEREEHFM =)
(Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESIZNMBMESFBENT :
are as follows:

2021
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits in scheme Total
kind Fees  contributions  emoluments
¥ 52
EE - Hith
EBR RIKER
ENER ik HE 8 MemsE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR

Feng Ming Zhu btk 638 199 13 850
Lian Xiu Qin WEE 737 199 13 949
Hou Li {3V - 160 - 160
Loke Yu i - 447 - 447
Heng Ja Wei Victor e 3 - 299 - 299
Lam Yau Yiu HRIE - 299 - 299
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary KA - 299 - 299

1,375 1,902 26 3,303
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11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’' REMUNERATION 11.EEREEHFM =)
(Continued)
(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESIZNMBMESFBELOT ((8)

are as follows: (Continued)

2020

Salaries, housing
allowances,
other allowances

Retirement

and benefits in benefits scheme Total
kind Fees contributions emoluments
AL EA
EE R RINBR
EMEN fiikn RELGE HemsE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Feng Ming Zhu itz 834 213 10 1,057
Lian Xiu Qin EEE 934 213 10 1,157
Hou Li 37 - 160 - 160
Heng Ja Wei Victor e - 320 - 320
Lam Yau Yiu WRIE - 320 - 320
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary RAER
(appointed on 19 May 2020) (202055 19REZT) = 198 = 198
Loke Yu %8
(appointed on 1 September (R2020F9R 1 REZ )
2020) - 160 - 160
Ho Chung Tai Raymond mER
(term of appointment expired on  ({EHAR2020%6 A 16E &)
16 June 2020) - 428 - 428
Wong Chi Wing FHE
(term of appointment expired on  ({ZHER 202046 5 16H &)
16 June 2020) - 160 - 160
1,768 2,172 20 3,960

During both years, none of the directors have received any

bonus payments paid by the Group.

RMEFEAR  HEEEWIAEE A

MEM S o

141



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERERLH

- ANNUAL REPORT 44§ 2021

= b ] mi e . H - S Gl i i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION 11.EEREEHM 2

(Continued)

(c) The five highest paid individuals include two directors for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: two), details of
whose emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three) non-
director highest paid individuals are as follows:

(@

HE2021FE 128318 IEEE AEE2 55
FALTBRIERZ(2020F : MB)ES -
BEMSFFBERRN L3 »

HE=4(2020%F : =R)kEEZ 55
AT T ¢

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARBTT

Salaries, housing allowances, other e - =2 - HEfbEEL

allowances and benefits in kind KEWEF 3,172 3,489

Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIET B LR
contributions 43 42
3,215 3,531

The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest
paid individuals are within the following bands:

HERFFEERSTMA LMD FIAT
#E :

2021 2020
Nil to RMB829,300 (equivalent to Nil ~ Z&E AR#829,3007T (HHENEE

to HK$1,000,000) 1,000,000/ 7T ) 2 2
RMB829,301 to RMB1,658,600 AR#829,301cE AR 1,658,6007T

(equivalent to HK$1,000,001 to (FBE 51,000,001 L=

HK$2,000,000) 2,000,000/ 7T) - =
RMB1,658,601 to RMB2,073,250 AER#1,658,601TE AREE2,073,250

(equivalent to HK$2,000,001 to JC(HBE 72,000,001 TR

HK$2,500,000) 2,500,000/ 7T) 1 1

(d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals (including both directors and
employees) or any directors of the Company as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

FINANCE COSTS 12. @& KA
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREETTT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFFE 58,530 31,896
Interest on discounted notes receivable B3R FE W =R R B 32,327 22,657
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 18) HEBEF S (HFE18) 2,723 2,032
Other finance costs E g & p AN - 21
93,580 56,606
Less: Capitalisation of borrowing costs B ERRAE AL (16,055) (15,682)
77,525 40,924

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the specific
and general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
weighted average capitalisation rate of 5.6% (2020: 4.4%) to
expenditure on construction in progress.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for income tax has been made by the Company
as it is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other
jurisdictions save for the PRC where it conducts its principal
business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong
Kong during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong incurred losses during the current and prior years.

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the
rate of taxation applicable for the year.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the subsidiaries
of the Group that established in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25%. Subsidiaries established in
the PRC which are qualified as an Advance and New Technology
Enterprise (“ANTE”) for a 3-year period are entitled to a
concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15%, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions on yearly basis during the 3-year
period.

13.

FRENMEZ 1B FREARNEEREE & — & {ERK
e VHAEZTREAERI TR INEFHEAR
{EE5.6% (20204 : 4.4%)5tHE

P X<

RN BEETEEXBELIN  AREE
FRMFSEEREMRDEAERNBTIE - 8A
RN EAE RS HEE -

HRERFEAREEN G MRAFEREBEL
TRIER A EE - MATH R E S M AL A S
ARRHAREFERBEFERSERE - St
BREBFISHELEE -

REIGRAEHRBETRER A BERERD
RIERBEBIEMEH A ERTERAME -

RIBHBIRRPSPOA - A REEH BIR AT S
REVRIZ B RATS R R 5% © B
VA ABRIERSI=FNSIEMEE( S
i3 DEOMB AR RZEA15%MEEMEHE
TR - ARG =R E i eE TR -
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ITVAAY

13.

144

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FTBFHBE X&)

On 2 December 2019, Dongguan Hongde was approved to
continue as an ANTE for a period of 3 years and the certificate
number is GR201944006396. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

Details of the income tax expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:

R2019F12A2B R B EREERE AR
BYRERMEE ARHE=F BERFERA
GR201944006396 ° H 12215% i) % & 4 44 A8 &
Fri8%t

SAGA BHREMEERE RSB
FEMT :

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARETTT

Current tax — PRC B EARRIE —
Enterprise Income Tax: EME
— Tax for the year —ARFEEHIE 1,696 1,200
— Under provision in prior years —BAFERETR 1,148 3,835
Deferred tax — current year (Note 30) IRIERIIE — A FE (MIFE30) 23,093 12,544
Income tax expense FTiS i X 25,937 17,579
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FiEHRA<#)
The reconciliation between profit/(loss) before income tax and freEankAME2EKERPRAGENR
income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or A,/ (E18) BT BIR X < SRR ¢

loss and other comprehensive income is as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARETTT

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATIS R AN T (E518) 64,498 (39,903)
Tax at tax rates applicable in the relevant REAREBER A ERREGTE

jurisdictions TR IE 17,117 (8,671)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax NAT0BE S HH BB s 2 2

purposes 8,823 6,595
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes HZBRF W AT F 2 - (347)
Deduction of research and development costs R E R (47,134) (17,912)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTIBEEORETE 6,797 13,047
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised RIEZEGIFIEZRBHTREZE 38,824 16,533
Under provision in prior years BAFERETE 1,148 3,835
Effect of concessionary rate granted to BRYHEHEARERERREN

the PRC subsidiaries 7E 240
Others HAith 122 4,499
Income tax expense FriSisZ 25,937 17,579

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE

No dividend was declared for the years ended 31 December H F20214 &2020F12A31B L EEW &#EF
2021 and 2020. IRAR S ©
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15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 15. BIREF,(F58)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share RARIEE NELSRERNREERT, (B
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BRBA TR E -

following data:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETTT

Profit/(loss) for the purposes of basic and ARt ESREAREERT,
diluted earnings/(loss) per share (profit/(loss) (E18) M H/ (B18) (KA R
for the year attributable to the owners of the B AREMGAREEGFF],(EE))
Company) 42,182 (52,683)

Number of ordinary shares

ZERHAE
2021 2020
‘000 '000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R EEGIER R#ERN
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings/  (E518) &9 & @A% HnkE F 15 8¢
(loss) per share 1,090,001 1,090,001
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is of the same amount as the gREERTN (ER)SEEGRERNEF
basic earnings/(loss) per share as there were no potential dilutive (B8R - AAMR2021F12A31B I EEE
ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HESEH D BT @R (20204 ¢ ABE]) o

same).

146



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEZERERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 44§ 2021

et B SR oo -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ /=~ ji%#&%lqj‘

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y15 - BERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Plant and Motor furniture  Construction  Leasehold
Building  machinery vehicles and fixtures  in progress improvements Total
R ik
BF  HEREE nE GAREE HRIR E2 &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Cost A
1 January 2020 20206141R 5183 396,135 9,542 61,99 154,698 70,784 698,338
Additions NE - 84,117 24 8,187 318,961 - 411,489
Transfer i - 16,131 - - (16,131) - -
Disposals ik - (4,692) = (963) = = (5,655)
Written off it - (10,681) = (5311) = - (15,992)
Exchange realignment R - (4,793) - - - - (4,793)
31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 20205128318 k2011 E1 71 5,183 476,217 9,766 63,909 457,528 70,784 1,083,387
Additions AE - 119,818 328 12,103 53,190 538 185,977
Transfer i 428,152 (76) - 76 (493,731) 65,579 -
Disposals it - (21,369) (392) (1,912) - - (23,673)
Written off i - (10,403) (118) (4,402) - - (14923)
Exchange realignment i3k - (458) - - - - (458)
31 December 2021 2021E12A31H 433335 563,729 9,584 69,774 16,987 136,901 1,230,310
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE
1 January 2020 200F181H 78 192,167 5,474 47 446 - 68,671 313,836
Charge for the year TEERY 155 56,402 827 8,700 = 853 66,937
Disposals L - (4,228) - (726) - - (4,954)
Written off s - (9,559) - (4,904) - - (14,463)
Exchange realignment R - (237) - - - - (237)
31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 20205128318 K201 5171 233 234,545 6,301 50,516 - 69,524 361,119
Charge for the year REERR 2,561 61,186 865 8,837 - 3223 76,672
Disposals e - (9,.253) (368) (1,571) - = (11,19)
Written off W - (6,861) (112) (4.124) - - (11,097)
Exchange realignment fE AR - 81) - - _ _ 81
31 December 2021 2021%12A31H 2,79 279,536 6,686 53,658 - 12,141 415421
Net book value REFE
31 December 2021 2021%12A31H 430,541 284,193 2,898 16,116 16,987 64,154 814,889
31 December 2020 2020%12A31H 4,950 21,672 3,465 13,393 457,528 1,260 722,68
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16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of RMB286,000 (2020: RMB599,000) has been pledged
to a landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable (Note
24).

As at 31 December 2021, building with a carrying amount of
RMB428,152,000 (2020: RMBNil) and plant and machinery with
a carrying amount of RMB23,170,000 (2020: RMBNil) have been
pledged by the Group in favour of a bank to secure a bank loan
granted by a bank to the Group (Notes 24 and 28).

As at 31 December 2021, construction in progress with a
carrying amount of RMB1,305,000 (2020: RMB441,846,000)
have been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to
secure bank loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes 24
and 28).

16. % - BERRE#)

2021124318 FREE A A K #286,0007T
(20204 : AR#5599,0007T) WG E R kEE B 1R A
JEREBHIEYIIR T3 E -

72021412 A318 -+ BREE A A R 1428,152,000
(20205 : ARBZ)NEFREREAAR
#523,170,0007T(20205F : AREEZTT) HIRREE K
REOWAEEEA TIRT - WEBETETASE
E 2 SR TE R (F3E245%28)

7202146124318 « BRE{EA A R #1,305,0007T
(20204F : AR#441,846,0007T ) WER TIZE
NEBBRFERIT NESBEITRTIAEEZE
TER(M:E24%28) -

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REW
RMB’000
AR¥T
Cost 2%
1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 202091 H1H ~ 2020512 A31H
and 31 December 2021 &2021%12H31H 106,797
Accumulated depreciation it &
1 January 2020 20201 1R 45,656
Charge for the year REERZ 5,073
31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020512318 %202151H1H 50,729
Charge for the year REERZ 5,073
31 December 2021 2021%12H31H 55,802
Net book value BREFE
31 December 2021 2021%12H31H 50,995
31 December 2020 2020412 H31H 56,068
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group leased out certain formerly self-occupied buildings
located in the PRC under operating lease to Scud Stock, where
Mr. Fang Jin is the common controlling shareholder and has
beneficial interest. The fair value of the building at 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB76,800,000 (2020: RMB64,900,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 have been arrived at
on market value basis carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation
Service Limited, an independent valuer who holds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment property being
valued.

The fair value was determined based on the depreciated
replacement cost approach that considers the cost to reproduce
or replace in new condition the property appraised in accordance
with current construction costs for similar buildings and
structures in the locality, with allowance for accrued depreciation
as evidenced by observed condition or obsolescence present,
whether arising from physical, functional or economic causes.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties
has been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13 "Fair value measurement”. All of the fair
values of the investment properties as at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020 is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement,
which uses significant unobservable inputs in arriving at fair
value. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020, there were no transfers between level 1 and
level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3.

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

17. REWMZE »)

AEBERBEERERETNRTREMNLIB
HEFLHEFRERRD - FoAERZAR
ZHBEZERBRRIGER BEmiEss o R20219F
12A318BEFZ2AFEAARKT6,800,0007T
(20204 : AK#¥64,900,0007T) °

2021128318 &2020F12 A31H » AEE
ZIREMEZ AFETDREN AT ERZAER
RA(FHERARMEATEER - WHEERAE
ZIME RZBREMEZ HELR 2 B IGE
BT 2 A EETMEEEE -

RFEDRBFESERALETE  TESE
FRASETI IR B E B LB T REEY N E R E
ERAR - HEMEERLUBEERHNEZAR
A BB IRRIBRRR(TREY
B R RRERAM S E) FrE R BT E
BIELEE -

SEZREVMENRTETECRBERTE
WELAF 1R AFEFZEIFATEHRTEE
B =EERHIEIEDLE - R2021F12A318 &
20206012 A3B 2 FEREM*E 2 AT EBSE
=R EERTERE  EATEEATERKR
NABR 2B ALHIMSH - 21Z2021F12 A
31H K%2020F 12 A31HIEFE » A EREW
MRENRRE2R 2 HER - NEERAKE
B EIR -
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17.

150

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Details of the Group's investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021 are as
follows:

17. REWHE &)

R2021F 128318 * BEEAAEBREMERR

FEEREMZFBNOT

Carrying
value at
31 December

Fair
value at
31 December

2021 2021

S i

20214 20214

12A31H 12A31H

ZBREE ZAFE

Fair value hierarchy RMB’000 RMB'000

AFEER AR®T T ARBT T

Buildings located in the PRC Level 3 50,995 76,800
(I B H R T B

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rate per annum:

Buildings Over the remaining lease term of the land
As at 31 December 2021, investment properties with a carrying
amount of RMB50,995,000 (2020: RMB56,068,000) have been

pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to secure bank
loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes 24 and 28).

PR EMENBRERAT FRINE -

BF TR TR

20218128318 - BRE{E A AR #50,995,0007T
(2020%F : AR ¥56,068,0007T ) IR EMEE B

AE B T IRIT
RITEF(MIE24%28) -

CAEBBRITRTAREZ
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18. LEASES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land
held under operating lease, factory, office and staff dormitory
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
over the lease term, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of factory, office
and staff dormitory generally have lease terms between 1 to
5 years (2020: between 1 to 5 years). Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

18. &

AEERELEPMEANSHRBRLEEHE
HEMNEELTH  ITH HAEREIBEER
BEHEAH - ALEE—NMBEMNZERE
EREBEAESGRFIAAESHRAES AESEH
E4i - BT EREZE T ENGERE
BNR IR HBAEKEBEIBEHE—KE
1E25FFHEHH(20204F : 185%F) - — =
AEENMIEAEE NG EREHAEEE -

(a) EREEE

AEEEREEENREERRFANE
BT

Factory, office

and staff
Leasehold land dormitory Total

IR - WRAER
HEL i BIFE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥T R AR® T
1 January 2020 202051 A1H 9,401 8,826 18,227
Additions NE - 26,768 26,768
Charge for the year FARZ (258) (6,150) (6,408)
Exchange realignment [ H R - (498) (498)

31 December 2020 and 2020128318 &

1 January 2021 20211 A1H 9,143 28,946 38,089
Additions INE - 5,209 5,209
Charge for the year FRAX (258) (9,253) (9,511)
Leases terminated during the FRRILEE

year - (3,436) (3,436)
Exchange realignment b 5, 2 - (69) (69)
31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 8,885 21,397 30,282

As at 31 December 2021, leasehold land with a carrying
amount of RMB8,885,000 (2020: RMB9,143,000) have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to
secure bank loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes
24 and 28).

R2021F12A318 EEEAARK
8,885,0007T(20204F : A R #9,143,000
TTOMBAELH EWAEEEFFR
17 - RLERTIR FAS B RITE FRIER
(PffzE24 528) °
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18. LEASES (Continued)

(b)

152

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

18. A& »#)

(b) HEEE

HERBENREERRFANZESOT

RMB’000

ARET

At 1 January 2020 202051 H18 9,898
Additions = 26,768
Interest expense (Note12) B (FEE12) 2,032
Lease payments HERK (6,808)
Exchange realignment bE 5, A2 (554)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 12020512 318 %2021 1818 31,336
Additions NE 5,209
Interest expense (Note 12) FERZ(MEE12) 2,723
Lease payments HER (11,126)
Leases terminated during the year FRRIBEE (5,026)
Exchange realignment bE B (90)
At 31 December 2021 72021412 H31H 23,026

Future lease payments are due as follows:

RARBEMRRATHEEE

31 December 2021

2021§12831H

Total Interest of the Present value

minimum lease  minimum lease of the minimum

payments payments lease payments

REHESE REHEE REHEE

IRE7¢:t HRZHE NRZBRE

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR®T ARETF R AR®TR

Within one year —FR 8,350 1,914 6,436
More than one year but not —FA L ENBBRE

exceeding two years 7,809 1,216 6,593
More than two years but not ~ WA HETBBASE

exceeding five years 10,653 656 9,997

Total et 26,812 3,786 23,026
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18. LEASES (continued) 18. HE (%)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) (b) HEEBE)

31 December 2020
2020%12A31H

Total Interest of the Present value of
minimum lease minimum lease the minimum lease
payments payments payments
REEE RIEEE HEHE
(gt R MBS N HE
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETTT ARETFT
Within one year —FR 10,444 2,574 7,870
More than one year but not —FAEETNBBME
exceeding two years 10,069 1,696 8,373
More than two years but not M HETBBRF
exceeding five years 16,453 1,360 15,093
Total st 36,966 5,630 31,336
The Group leases its investment properties as disclosed in Note REERELSCLEHEZHBEN 17T E
17 consisting of a factory building and a warehouse building MR B BIEMRTPERN—ERE R —E
in PRC under operating lease arrangement. Rental income BE ANEBREANRIANTES WAL ARK
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB4,689,000 4,689,0007T (20204 : AR¥5,538,0007T) ©
(2020: RMB5,538,000).
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments HR20219F12 8318 - ANEEH 7 3k 2ARAR 15 £
receivable by the Group in future period under non-cancellable M A RN LA E AT A E N
operating lease with its tenants are as follow: m
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Within one year —FE R 4,689 4,689
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
Software
B4
RMB’000
AREFTT
Cost A
1 January 2020 2020F1R1H 13,626
Additions INE 2,500
31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020%12H31HKX2021F1H1H 16,126
Additions B 3,116
31 December 2021 2021512H31H 19,242
Amortisation and impairment B RRE
1 January 2020 20201 A1H 11,165
Charge for the year REERY 1,693
31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 20205128310 %2021E181H 12,858
Charge for the year REERZ 1,842
31 December 2021 2021512H31H 14,700
Net book value IR EFE
31 December 2021 2021512H31H 4,542
31 December 2020 2020912 A31H 3,268
Note: B3
i) The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included ) AFERANEHEALEAGEEBRE
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement Hih 2EWaRIITHAS BT -

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 78

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR AREETTT
Raw materials B 188,675 121,245
Work in progress H RS 116,857 134,889
Finished goods BUAK o 247,513 187,732
553,045 443,866
At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of inventories R2021612 A318 » AR N Al 30 HE R &
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value amounted KEDR 2 ZEMEEEAARE553,045,000
to RMB553,045,000 (2020: RMB443,866,000), after provision J0(2020%F : AR #443,866,0007T) © &R E
for impairment of RMB1,452,000 (2020: RMB935,000). During BRI E B AR 1,452,0007T(20204F = A
the year, reversal of write-down of inventories of RMBNil (2020: K #935,0007T) ° £ - FEMURERL AR
RMBS,276,000) and a write-off of inventories of RMB1,929,000 ZI1(20204%F : AR¥58,276,0007T) R 17 EHlisH
(2020: RMB3,929,000) were recognised in consolidated AR#1,929,00070(2020%F : AR#3,929,000

statement of profit or loss. TL)EREREIBmRER -

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 21. ERESREREREE

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR AREETTT
Trade receivables e E 5 5KE 2,483,986 2,030,648
Notes receivables R E 113,997 41,788
2,597,983 2,072,436
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts i : FIZEE& (93,742) (95,549)
2,504,241 1,976,887
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

allowance, is as follows:

21. EWESREREWRERE#)

REBEHZR  EHRBEBEERNEESARNER
SR NERERNREANAT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,784,758 1,443,043
61 to 180 days 612180H 698,869 475,049
181 to 365 days 181%2365H 20,614 58,795
2,504,241 1,976,887

The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from

60 to 90 days.

RTHEERNFHEESRNF60E0R -

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FRAREEBREOEHNOT -
year were as follows:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFTT
1 January 1H1H 95,549 176,178
Written off ik (11) (102,996)
Impairment losses recognised ERERREERE 6,892 27,705
Reversal of impairment losses previously BARERZREEERER
recognised (8,688) (5,338)
31 December 12A31H 93,742 95,549
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continved) 21.FEWWBZHEREWELE &)

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are %81 BA1E I AR (E B B UL B 5 R TE I B IR IR Y
past due but not impaired is as follows: BREC DAL T -

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBT T

Less than 6 months past due BERS 2 7~ A 129,226 104,795
Over 6 months past due A HEANE A LA | 8,700 6,432

137,926 111,227
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a BHEWARRENERREESZBYRFE
number of independent customers that have a good track record M- MESEASEERIFMNERELE - RIB
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the LAEE  ARRAESRAEERAEERERER
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment BEANE  mEKEITER28WKE - wT
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been FRIEEMREFEITRERE -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Notes receivables are stated at FVTOCI. The directors are of FEME IR Ty A FERT A H A 2 E Wz ARR o
the opinion that the carrying amounts of notes receivables EERA/RNBRE I RHEERRKE 2 A FER
approximate to their fair value. o
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22.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22.FE{‘Zk1E - #& R HAbfEUN T

RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREF T
Advance to suppliers ) {H FE P B R 134,215 141,217
VAT recoverable AR [O G (E R 19,669 6,863
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEWE  BERRENEMNES
plant and equipment 5,089 4,824
Refundable deposits AREES 34,869 36,316
Others Hit 17,108 28,677
210,950 217,897
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 3§ : RIZEREEE (4,772) (7,919)
Total FOE 206,178 209,978
Less: Current portion B RENES S (171,507) (169,019)
Non-current portion ERENE 34,671 40,959
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FERNRIZERENESNOT :
year were as follows:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBT T

1 January 1818 7,919 42,207
Impairment losses recognised EHERREEE 1,162 4,076
Reversal of impairment losses BARRZBEEERRD

previously recognised (4,309) (2,567)
Write-off 85 - (35,797)
31 December 12H31H 4,772 7,919
None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets LAEEEWAREH - U EABRPBEENSRE
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which EEFR AR EL 3 HAD 48 52 X i 8 Y FE URRE ©

there was no recent history of default.
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23.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED 23.FEW {JEEALTHIE

PARTIES
The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest- U HEEATHRIEAEKIR 2878
free and repayable on demand. REREE -
The information disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong BERB A REN(55622F ) FE383E AR EN
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) is as follows: BRI
Maximum Balance at Balance at
amount 31 December 31 December
outstanding 2021 2020
during the year 20214 K20204F
FR&E 12H31A 12A31H
RESHE ko2 B A5 R
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T AREFT
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. BERERBRMHERRT]
(Note i) iEa) 11,933 2,410 11,933
EBTEB New Energy Technology SEFFEREREAER AR
Co., Ltd. (Note ii) (P 5T 63,819 63,819 62,721
Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd. REMREREHAR AR
(Note i) (Bt &ED) 286 65 286
Scud Communication Technology REBRBIAMAR AR
Co., Ltd. (Note i) (B Ei) 12,977 12,428 12,977
78,722 87,917
Notes: P
(i) Its director and shareholder, Mr. Fang lJin, is also the () HEZFERBREFSEENARARZER
controlling shareholder of the Company. A% ER o
(i) Its director is the son of Mr. Fang Jin. (i) HEEERA®KEZT -
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24.

25.

160

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks as guarantees
for the issuance of bank accepted notes for payments to
suppliers, landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable
and pledged for bank and other loans:

24. EEEH

RBERAR AEBEDHATEEER TR
17 ERAHREENRMELRTELER 2
BR - (ERENEENERYIERTEERE
RESRITREME R -

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  ¥1% - &= K& (MizE16) 452,913 442,445
Investment properties (Note 17) TEMEE(FE17) 50,995 56,068
Leasehold land held under operating lease st AEREEEZRIBELEHEZRAE Y

included in right-of-use assets (Note 18) FHE T (FsE18) 8,885 9,143
Bank deposits RITIF K 988,689 750,810
1,501,482 1,258,466

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. 8RITHEENES

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity period of
three months or less.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RITEHREBASERAKEFAENR S MRE
HABARR 23 = M8 B sk A VR HRSR 1T 173K

ARBITARB DA EHABEMEE
A - B BIMNEE R IROI RAEE  SERN
EERBTE  AREARHRREETINES
BMEBRITHEARY -
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26. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 26. ENEZRERENEE

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREFT

Trade payables ENE 5308 1,260,795 891,601
Notes payables R EE 1,857,285 1,590,089
3,118,080 2,481,690

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the

REHZR - RNRERRENE S FAREN

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRSO ¢
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
0 to 60 days 0Z260H 2,084,412 1,739,164
61 to 180 days 612180H 570,967 649,757
181 to 365 days 181&365H 404,914 26,790
More than 1 year but within 2 years —FAEERRERN 2,764 5,911
More than 2 years but within 3 years MFELAEER=FR 2,072 13,875
Over 3 years =FLAE 52,951 46,193
3,118,080 2,481,690

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for

trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period

taken for trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.

B E S HOEEE QS E P E RIS ER A
REM PR - B BB EHERAHTF N F308

£90H °
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27. OTHER PAYABLES, CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. BE#ifENZIE - S aBRES

AND ACCRUED CHARGES EH
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREETTT
Contract liabilities BHEE 21,025 21,353
Payroll and welfare payables JE {~F 357 B 2 A ) 34,039 37,248
Accrued expenses FERTRX 3,117 3,213
Payables for acquisition of property, plant  BEEWIEE - MR LR EEN FKE
and equipment 9,405 62
Other tax payables E At R THIE 69,778 67,548
Others At 56,104 57,647
193,468 187,071
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Contract liabilities arising from: EXBUTEEZEH
B1E :
Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and SHE e R F [ BH5 4R
related accessories for mobile phones BFEmIER TS
and digital electronic appliances W48 &% A R 21,025 21,353
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27. OTHER PAYABLES, CONTRACT LIABILITIES

AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued)

The deposit which the Group receives on sale of lithium-ion
battery modules and related accessories for mobile phones and
digital electronic appliances remains as a contract liability until
it is recognised as revenue when control of goods is transferred
to the customers. Typical payment terms which impact on the
amount of contract liabilities are set out in Note 3.

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE20214F 12431 H I F/Z

27. Htb BN RIE - SN EBERER

= 8;:1C )

AEEEHEEARNFREBBREFERN
PR T E AR N A B R R B AT B R & A
RAMAE  EEEVEFREBBEETFIHE
RERS/RAER/IL FEANEBBESHE LK
BESCTE NN IEER

Movements in contract liabilities EHEERT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Balance as at 1 January AT Z &8 21,353 28,733
Decrease in contract liabilities as RAFE NER KN EYBIEE
a result of recognising revenue AHBBERN)MERELEBERD
during the year that was included  (Fff3¥6)
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (Note 6) (21,353) (28,733)
Increase in contract liabilities as a $HEERZBURREMERLSHER
result of receipts in advance on 0
sale of goods 21,025 21,353
Balance at 31 December M12A318 2 &8 21,025 21,353

Amount due to a shareholder of RMB160,000 (2020:
RMB160,000), which is included in other payables, contract
liabilities and accrued charges, is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

STAHMEMNZKIE AHNEERENEANE
IR B FIE A R #160,0007T (20204 © AR
#160,0007T) BEIKE - £ ERARERKEE
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28. BORROWINGS 28. B
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
Bank loans (Note): RITER(MIFE)
Secured bank loans BERBIRITE K 1,174,984 911,942
Less: Amounts shown under current B RBBETRIZEHE
liabilities (861,655) (698,175)
Amounts shown under non-current ERBAE N2y zeE
liabilities 313,329 213,767
Notes: F3E
(@) The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: (a) SRITEFERFHNT :
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Current portion: ENEL 5
Within 1 year or on demand —FAIZRER 861,655 698,175
Non-current portion: JEMENER D ¢
More than 1 year but not exceeding —FLA BT BB F
2 years 39,084 17,424
More than 2 years but not exceeding ~ WA HE BB A F
5 years 122,834 101,061
More than 5 years RAFLAE 151,411 95,282
Total #aEt 1,174,984 911,942
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28. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(Continued)

The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as
follows:(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, bank loans of approximately
RMB1,174,984,000 (2020: RMB911,942,000) were secured
by: (i) the Group’s property, plant and equipment
of RMB452,627,000 (2020: RMB441,846,000) (Note
16), investment properties and leasehold land with
aggregate carrying amount of RMB59,880,000 (2020:
RMB65,211,000) (Notes 17 and 18(a); or (ii) by personal
guarantee from the Company’s controlling shareholder,
Mr. Fang Jin, and the son of Mr. Fang Jin for certain bank
loans of the Group up to an amount of RMB996,175,000
(2020: RMB877,750,000) and RMB242,000,000 (2020:
RMB343,799,000), respectively; or (iii) corporate guarantee
of the companies within the Group (2020: same); or (iv)
leasehold land and building of a related company (2020:
same); or (v) corporate guarantee of a related company (2020:
same).

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s
bank borrowings are as follows:

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

28. B (#)

BIAE

(a)

(%)

RITERERFHOT (&)

M2021412 8318 » 4 AR#E1,174,984,000
TT(20204F : AR#911,942,0007T) HISRITE
FRE ¢ ()R & B A R #5452,627,0007T(2020
£ ARKA441,846,0007T) 2 E - HE K&
FLHE(MIFE16) - 42BRmEE A R #59,880,000
JC(20204F : A R #65,211,0007T ) VI E YD
¥ NAE L (MEE17518@)) + S(iyA A 7l
ERIRER A S RER TS RENT TR
MAEEIRE R REEAKE96,175,000
TE(2020%F : AR¥877,750,0007T) M A R #E
242,000,0007T(20204F = A R #343,799,000
TO)RE TR TERATEE AR ¢ skl
BERZR QBRI EER(Q020%F : FBR)
sk(v)— X E A B AR E £ 1 MAEF (2020
FER) RV REER RN EEER
(2020%F : FE[RA))1EHEAR ©

AEBHRITERNFHERFF RN
HERGHNE)IT

2020
RMB’000
ARBTT

2021
RMB’000
ARMTF T

Average effective interest rate on fixed- [EBf&5 2 FIHEFERFI=H

rate borrowings

4.79% 4.50%

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

29. ENEEME
FETEERE D BEIEN - 28 BARERME

i

o
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 30.ERERNELERESERAE

RECOGNISED
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RERNELEVERARBERNELREE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the B/ (BE) RS RESHMT

movements during the year are as follows:

Impairment Provision for
loss on trade write down to  Undistributed
and other  Provision for net realisable profits of
receivables warranty value  subsidiaries Tax loss Total
ERERFE
REMEY ER  HAZETZ HEAR
REREFE  REERE  RFEEE  ADWER HEEE @zt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARMTR  ARRTRI  ARETR

1 January 2020 20201818 79,243 16 1,630 (5,360) 60,106 135,635
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss ~ RMEHEF A/ (1)

(Note 13) (PzE13) 2,332 (16) (1,480) - (13,380) (12,544)
31 December 2020 and 202012R318 %

1 January 2021 20211818 81,575 - 150 (5,360) 46,726 123,091
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss — FMERH (F18) /5t A

(Note 13) (Mz13) (1,449) = 49 = (21,693) (23,093)
31 December 2021 20015128318 80,126 - 199 (5,360) 25,033 99,998
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED (Continued)

For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

0.EEANELERBEEREE @)

REIME  ETEERBEENBBDRE
SRR RIS - LT ARMB®REMIEL
RE IR IR R IT

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARBT T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE ISR R NER 2 IR IEFL
consolidated statement of financial position IBEEAEFE 105,358 128,451
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REFE IR R A ER 2 ELER
consolidated statement of financial position IBEEFE (5,360) (5,360)
99,998 123,091

The Group has tax losses carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB133,559,000 (2020: RMB191,264,000) which
relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses and may not
be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group. These
subsidiaries have no temporary taxable differences which could
partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also, there
are no tax planning opportunities available that would further
provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, profits would increase by approximately RMB33,390,000
(2020: RMB47,816,000).

REE B HEEBIEEELN AR 133,559,0007T
(20204 : AR #191,264,0007T) * It 5EIE
K B ER1S 18 KO BT B A B B R 4 AT R LA 8H
REEHEMM T HERTIA o L ZEHE Q)
WEABD ZHEREEHBEENERTY
WrZ %8 o Lo WRBITAA S S 7] LA —
IR HRERE -

AL BREERT A RERNIELEHREEE
i ) 7% 158 hn 49 A R #633,390,0007T (20204 :
AR#47,816,0007T) ©
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ITVAAY

30.

168

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (Continued)

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law, distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise
in China to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at source on a withholding basis. The
standard withholding tax rate pursuant to Article 4 of the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law is 20%. According to Article 27
of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and Article 91 of the
Detailed Implementation Rules of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate has been reduced
to 10%. Under the Arrangement between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Special Administration Region (“HKSAR") for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR Double Taxation Agreement,
Hong Kong tax residents which hold 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise are entitled to a reduced dividend withholding tax rate
of 5%.

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No.1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to
its foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise
Income Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits
generated by a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008
shall be subjected to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with
the relevant articles of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Detailed Implementation Rules as described above. Accordingly,
dividends receivable from certain subsidiaries in respect of profits
earned since 1 January 2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.

30 EERNELEBEBEEREE®)

BIERBEEMEREEIEREIER P
INERERER AT ERIINEREERE 2
IREARBENB T XBANCERBR - B
BHRBECEMRSRAFRME  ZEBBIREA
20% ° MBEFBBEMETIESE 276K+ E
BRI EMIEFEME - @R En
TR ZE10% o BIEC A F1 & B 5 BI1T &
([BBFRIITHE D AR REE 2 EEHH
MBI LERIRTR R ZHE) - RS APERE25%K
A ERE=EBEBRTER « AT REERES %M
MR EFEFL -

SO0 ARIR B I ED I B R B 48 B R 200842
RA22B & BMH R EEMSEE TES
BUR e B A ) (BA5{[2008]15%%) » 20084 2 B oM
PEIRECFEEKRRERSECFE - £20084
R EDBEIINEZEED - Al RBREMS
i M2008F 3k 2 & G E N IR B R FTIZ
FESE - Ak bl B ERSREE B
Bl R B EEOI SR ERMEE - Bt &F
MEB A RH E20084 181 HMAABESEFIM
FEM AR B 7B BN 5 % HITEANEL
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 30. EREZEMWELEHRESEREEB®)
RECOGNISED (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s share of aggregate amount 202156124318 « AEBEEARA & B
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the BRARREBRBANBENEREZESRNHARE
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB382,719,000 382,719,0007T(20204F = AR#337,541,0007T) °
(2020: RMB337,541,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not BN ANEE RSB O TR Z R 2 R B
been all provided for in the consolidated financial statements ZRA ] R RGNS E - AN E N ARG
in respect of the Group’s share of temporary differences A R BT B A AR B iR R MG 2 P R =
attributable to retained profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries R ER S ISR R IRER I B &R -

as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. g4

Number of

ordinary shares

of HK$0.10

each
FHR0.10E T Amount
ZERHE Ex-]
in Thousands RMB’'000
& ARBTT

Issued and fully paid: BETREE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 R2020F 1818 » 20206 &

and 2021 2021 12H31H 1,090,001 107,590
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32. RESERVES 32. &
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBLEEEZHNSERK DR FEY M ERE A
each component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out Y %7 B i BB)R o KRR RNEN K

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of FERBERIEE D RELSE B 7 SEIBFFHYNO T -
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
Share Capital  Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
RADEE EXRE B wE REEF Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARB®TT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 20201318 619,288 250,887 (55,416) 48,709 863,468
Loss for the year AEEERE = = = (2,245) (2,245)
Other comprehensive income Hin2mzs = = (43,583) = (43,583)
Total comprehensive income for the AEE2ANEEE

year - - (43,583) (2,245) (45,828)
At 31 December 2020 and 12020124318 %

1 January 2021 20211418 619,288 250,887 (98,999) 46,464 817,640
Loss for the year AEEEE = = = (1,961) (1,961)
Other comprehensive income Hin 2wz = = (19,325) = (19,325)
Total comprehensive income for the AEEXANGEE

year - - (19,325) (1,961) (21,286)
At 31 December 2021 120215124318 619,288 250,887 (118,324) 44,503 796,354
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 33. FERER
Summarised financial information in relation to the Group’s RNEBE R EAIEERRER ([ FFRRER]) 2
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCls"), KEARNEBERNYHEMZHBERREZY
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below: m

2021 2020
Percentage of equity interest held by NCls: FEiZ=fE ST b= A DL -
Shenzhen Hongde and its subsidiary RN BERENE AR 13%* 21%
Cybertech and its subsidiaries Cybertech & E fff & A A 50% 50%
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A8318LFE

Cybertech and its Shenzhen Hongde
subsidiaries and its subsidiary

Cybertech FIDRE
REHME AR REME DA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®TR
Revenue WS 10,167 180,658
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER),SwH (7,418) 674
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCls DA E IR 2 (B518) i A (3,.709) 88
Cash flows generated from operating &2 EHFAEREAE
activities 8,835 19,233
Cash flows used in investing activities #&%& EBPFAERSRE (6,419) (6,720)
Cash flows used in financing activities & EEBFTARERE (1,572) (12,086)
Net cash inflows B mAFE 844 427
Current assets BB E 21,244 158,630
Non-current assets EMBNEE 16,496 45,980
Current liabilities nEEE (53,424) (115,041)
Non-Current liabilities EREEE (1,749) (13,099)
Net (liabilities)/assets F(BaE) EE (17,433) 76,470
Accumulated NCls Bt Ep R (8,998) 12,771
*  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group * HZE2021F12A31MBLLFE  AEE MU
acquired additional 8% of equity interest in Shenzhen K AE A R #4,599,0007T W BRI B 1= K
Hongde and its subsidiary at a consideration of E MR A R FESN8 %o AR HE

RMB4,599,000.
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 33. FiERER 2

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZ2020F12A31HLFE
Cybertech and its ~ Shenzhen Hongde
subsidiaries and its subsidiary
Cybertech Y EE
REKE AR K E B A A
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Revenue U zs 19,421 186,702
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEE(FR),SwH (17,911) 11,865
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCls DEEEIHERER 2 (F8),wF (8,956) 2,498

Cash flows generated from operating #&Z/EFFAERESTRE

activities 16,336 34,731
Cash flows used in investing activities & EEMARERE (6,613) (10,102)
Cash flows used in financing activities F&EEBFTABRERE (1,598) (3,587)
Net cash inflows BeRAFE 8,125 21,042
Current assets mEEE 15,040 175,668
Non-current assets IEMENE E 23,811 51,102
Current liabilities mEaE (46,377) (133,377)
Non-Current liabilities IEREBAE (2,949) (17,596)
Net (liabilities)/assets F(BR)BE (10,475) 75,797
Accumulated NCls REP IR E R (5,237) 15,955
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. & BB &R RE
THE COMPANY

2021 2020
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ihg=s AR®T R AREET T
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB R TIRE 35 250,901 250,901
Total non-current asset JEmEEEMATE 250,901 250,901
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E O] 654,923 679,799
Bank balances and cash RITER KRS 5,375 1,337
Total current assets mENEEERE 660,298 681,136
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H b FE (S 5RIE 3 3
Amount due to a subsidiary FETB B A Rl Zk I8 7,252 6,804
Total current liabilities mEaEeRE 7,255 6,807
Net current assets REBEETFE 653,043 674,329
Net assets FEE 903,944 925,230
Capital and reserves BEARR#EE
Share capital R& 7N 31 107,590 107,590
Reserves i 32 796,354 817,640
Total equity B 903,944 925,230

7 b 1.

. —
FENG MING ZHU LIAN XIU QIN
BT ERE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EF

173



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERERLH

- ANNUAL REPORT 44§ 2021

ke = X i E e— O S R -

'/ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/. BREMBRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

35. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the

35. B A &

RBERRRRARMBRARFELT - RIS
reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is B BHAENRGERN AT B
ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-

174

establishment and

up share/registered

Group's effective

Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
MR/ KILK BRTREARE/
ARER EE ik EMER rEEENETES TEEH
2021 2020
Great Speed Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RREEERAT KBRAFE 50,000% 7 RERR
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100%*  Provision of corporate management
Limited BA 1T services
REREE(EB)ERAA REAAERRYE
Keen Power Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
e EEER AR 3 1,00087 REAER
Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. PRC US$127,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-
(Note (i) H 127,000,000%7% ion battery modules, power

RER(BR)EFERAAME()

*  Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises

Limited

i Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings

Limited

banks, motive battery and related
accessories for mobile phones and
digital electrical appliances

HERHEFRREERETER
ERETENEA  BYER PN
Bt M ARt

* BRRACEARAREEREAES

o EBHREREARARRES AR
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-

DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE20214F 12431 H I F/Z

35. it B A T#)

establishment and up share/registered Group's effective
Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
FMAL/ BILR ERTRESRS/
ARER K aER rEERNERES TEEH
2021 2020
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (Note (i) PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-
RERE0ERDA () HE 30,000,000% 7T ion battery modules, power
banks, power management
module, motive battery, smart
wearable device battery and
related accessories for mobile
phones and digital electrical
appliances
HERHEFRREERETER
MEETENEE BHER -
SREERA  PhEL B
FHERESH IR
Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB38,000,000 86.84%° 79%°  Research and development,
(Note (iii)) M AR#38,000,0007T manufacturing and sale of
AT B A R &l (FEE i) lithium-ion bare battery cells
BRFELHE  AEREE
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000 86.84%" 79%"  Research and development,
(Note (iv)) HE AR#50,000,0007T manufacturing and sale of

RemBEERERAA ()
& Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings
Limited

@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,
Ltd.

A Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery
Co., Ltd.

lithium-ion bare battery cells

BRETECLHE  LEREE

o OBBRBIREEEAR AR MRS AR

© BERERER)EFARARAMERE
-

A BBRYITIRREBERARRES A E
i
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. it B A =l #)
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-
establishment and up share/registered Group's effective
Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
FMAL/ KL BRTREBHARE/
DNRER e aMER rEEENETRS TEEHR
2021 2020
Patriots Group (China) Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Inactive
Limited B 10,0007 7T gEEX
BEESE(RE)BRAR
Patriots (Hong Kong) Power Sources  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Inactive
Company Limited BA 10,00087C Emex
FRE(BR)HRERAR
Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 100%° 100%®  Not yet commenced business
(Note (v)) i AR%50,000,0007T HARBRES
RERE EMBEEBR AT (M)
Scud Electronics Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY20,000,000 100%° 100%®  Research and development and sale
RERETENRASH AR 20,000,0008 of lithium-ion battery modules,
power banks, chargers and
network terminal products
BRTEHEE BBER 7T
BRARRRERTERFEE
Scud Hong Kong Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
REEZBEHERAT] &E 10,000 7T HARRESR
@ |Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., ° FRRERGER)ETFERARMEERA
Ltd. R
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * ERAACERRATIHEESAER

Limited
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and Issued and paid-up

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z

35. B A |l ()

Group's effective ownership

Name of companies operation share/registered capital interest Principal activities
ML/ RIR BROREMRE/
NRER fen ZRER FRERNARER TEEHR
2021 2020
Prime Power Technology Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100%° 100%°  Investment holding
AEMBARAA 5 50,000,000 7 RERR
Cybertech Optiemus Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands HK$50,000,000 50%2 50%°  Investment holding
(Note(vi)) (PiZE(vi)) EBANES 50,000,000/ RERR
Cybertech Optiemus (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10 50%: 50%"  Investment holding
(Note(vi)) (HfzE(i)) B 1087 RARR
lluminar Merchandising Private Limited  India INR107,509,642 50%" 50%"P  Provision of mobile phone battery cell and
(Note(vi) (FirEEvi)) 0E 107,509,642E0E E Lt power bank assembly service in India
REVEREFRBC RSB EREAR RS
Veson (Hong Kong) Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Dormant
HEERBRAE &% 10,0007 EEXH
@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., @ FRARERER)EFTARAAHEHESBE
Ltd. i
o Interest indirectly held through Prime Power Technology i FERLERRAERAREERSEER
Co., Limited
* Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus «  #FiECybertech Optiemus Holdings Limitedf&
Holdings Limited B AR
B Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus (HK) P 3EiECybertech Optiemus (HK) Limitedf# 5
Limited BiEm
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * ERRACEBRARMEERAER
Limited
Notes: Fi%E
(i)  Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years () SNEBELE 199710831 BT AR
commencing 31 October 1997. T4 o
(i)  Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years (i) HNEBELE 20055126 AR
commencing 6 December 2005. T4 o
(i) Limited liability company for a term of 20 years (i) BREMAR - 2005F1A21H BT ABH=
commencing 21 January 2005. TE
(iv) Limited liability company commencing 11 April 2011. (ivy BREMEAR @ 2011F4A11 B -
(v) Limited liability company for a term of 30 years (v) AREMEAR 201345430 AH=1
commencing 3 May 2013. Fo
(vi) The directors are of the opinion that, notwithstanding (vi) BEFERA BERZZRAIERS0%ME

having 50% shareholding on these companies, having
considered in substance all facts and circumstances, the
Group has control over these companies. See note 5(vi) for
further details.

During the year, none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities.

BEREERMAFERBERE  NEE]
HZERRFERENE FREZFEH2
AP EES(vi) ©

RAEE - BENBRRBETENERES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALRS
The name of and the relationship with related parties (a) FAEATEZRHREHEBENT :

178

are as follows:

Name Relationship

=L e

Fang Jin Controlling shareholder of the Company.

ok A EHERRARER

Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a director and held
RERRMM 70% (2020: 70%) shareholding interest.

Scud Technology
HRERRTEIR

Scud Power Technology

REBREN R

EBTEB New Energy
SIBRHTELIR

Scud School
FREBRZR

BERERBRNDBERDR]  TEAERZARNEFLRHAZAAT0%(2020%F : 70% ) Bt

Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a director and
held 18% (2020: 18%) shareholding interest.
BEREBRLERAR - HEEERZARERWITAZLA18% (20205 : 18% ) IkiE

Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., Ltd., a company with its director and shareholder
holding 93.95% (2020: 93.95%) shareholding interest of the company being the son of
Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling shareholder of the Company

BERERBORRBER AR - HHZAR3.95% (2020%F : 93.95% )RR EE RARR
RARNAERBRRASEEZ T

EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Scud Communication
Technology Co., Ltd. held 40% (2020: wholly owned by Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics
Co., Ltd.) shareholding interest and with its director being the son of Mr. Fang Jin, the
controlling shareholder of the Company

SEFF R ERAR - —MBERERBAKMNER R AEFL0% (20204 : AEM £
MEFARABZEFER)RENRRBEHESFRARAERRR A EEZF

Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School, a company of which Mr. Fang Jin was a
director and had beneficial interest

BERERSERTIHIER  —HHIEERESYHEESERNAR
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. BEALTRZ ()

(b) Transactions with related companies during the year (b) R BT RS R H b 500 BE 9 4 N EE
not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are EREZENRZ BT

summarised as follows:

2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Rental expenses paid to: BEREEHY
Scud Stock (Note i) RERRMR A (FH3E) 11,012 13,627
Scud Technology (Note ii) FRERRBHR (Fi i) 463 883
Rental income received from: R GEEALONE
Scud Stock (Note iii) TR RRRR £ (P i) 4,689 5,538
Purchases of finished goods from: R -
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SERMER (i) 1,395 2,147
Purchases of raw materials from: TR -
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SiERERER (F) 143,800 155,297
Scud Power Technology (Note iv) RERE AR (V) 403 -
Processing income from: WER N TR A -
EBTEB New Energy (Note vi) SEREaER (M) 342 8
Processing income from: YERI T -
Scud Power Technology (Note vi) RERE) HBHR (F5Evi) - 1,943
Training expense to: SHENERT -
Scud School (Note vii) RERRZR (Pt 5tvii) 2,681 389
Sales of raw material to: HERMHT -
Scud Power Technology (Note iv) RERE HBHE (V) 35 200
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SakEaR () 26 16,565
Sales of work-in-progress to: HEFHMT :
Scud Power Technology (Note iv) RERE AR (V) 5 -
Sales of low-value consumables to: HERBERMT -
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SIEEEER (i) 84 233
Sales of finished goods to: HERKET -
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv) SIEE R (M) 8 -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

180

(b)

(Continued)

The above transactions were made at prices and terms as
agreed between the parties.

Notes:

(i)

On 30 December 2019, Scud Electronics (as lessee)
and Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “First 2020 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commenced from 1 January 2020 and
ended on 31 December 2020. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB10,362,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in view
of the COVID-19 pandemic, Scud Stock and Scud
Electronics mutually agreed a rent concession,
pursuant to which the monthly rental was reduced
by approximately RMB255,000 for February 2020.
Accordingly, the annual rental was reduced from
approximately RMB10,362,000 to approximately
RMB10,107,000.

On 30 December 2020, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement
(the “First 2021 Lease Agreement”) to renew the
lease of certain premises owned by Scud Stock and
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2021. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB10,362,000.

On 30 December 2021, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement
(the “First 2022 Lease Agreement”) to renew the
lease of certain premises owned by Scud Stock and
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2022 and
ending on 31 December 2022. The annual rental for
the year ending 31 December 2022 is approximately
RMB10,362,000.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36. BEALTRF 2

(b)

(%)

#ETT
B R
(i)

LR 5 TR B R IT B E MER R IFR

M2019% 12 A30H » REMLE T ({E
BERMBAN)BRERRG(EAHA
N)FTM BB (5 —1752020F 4
EiHzl)  MERREHEEWE A
8 - FHHIE52020%F1 A1H £ £2020
F128318 k- & Z2020612A
BSIBLEFEZFEHENAARE
10,362,0007T °

HZE2020F12A31B ILFE - ER
COVID-19%& 18 * RERBK D L RE
BREF—HEEHSESR " Bt
20202 A AR N ARK
255,000 Bt - FHESHO A
R #10,362,00070 8 L &= 4 A R
10,107,0007T °

M2020512 5308 » REREF (&
BEMBAN)BRERBRG(EAHA
NI HERZE(E—H2021FH
EWEl) NERARERROES
ZETYERERBEEHEYWE A
Hi - FHEAB202141 818 #£ E2021
F12A318 k- & F£2021412A8
BMBEFEZFERENAARE
10,362,0007T °

M2021412H30H » REME T ({E
AEBA)ERERBKG(EATHE
NFTE R FE 1752022604
EWEl) AERARERRODES
ZETYERERBEEHEWXE A
By - FHHI 520221 A1H £ £2022
F12A318 k- & =2022F12A
BSIBLEFEZFEHSNAARE
10,362,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. BEALTRZ ()
(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)

Notes: (Continued) MI5E : (&)

On 30 December 2019, Scud Battery (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Second 2020 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commenced from 1 January 2020 and
ended on 31 December 2020. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB3,598,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in view of
the COVID-19 pandemic, Scud Stock and Scud Battery
mutually agreed a rent concession, pursuant to which
the monthly rental was reduced by approximately
RMB78,000 for February 2020. Accordingly, the annual
rental was reduced from approximately RMB3,598,000
to approximately RMB3,520,000.

On 30 December 2020, Scud Battery (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Second 2021 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2021. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB668,000.

On 30 December 2021, Scud Battery (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement
(the “Second 2022 Lease Agreement”) to extend
the lease period of the existing leased premises for
the period commencing from 1 January 2022 and
ending on 31 December 2022. The annual rental for
the year ending 31 December 2022 is approximately
RMB668,000.

The rental payable under the First 2020 Lease
Agreement, the First 2021 Lease Agreement, the
Second 2020 Lease Agreement and the Second 2021
Lease Agreement were determined after arm’s length
negotiations between Scud Electronics, Scud Battery
and Scud Stock with reference to the market rental for
similar properties nearby in the PRC and having taken
into account availability of similar premises nearby and
the cost of relocation.

MR2019512 A30H © REBRE (1
BAEMBA)BRERK GO (EALH
NI B W[5 —152020F
EHzl)  MERBEHEWE A
8 - FHEFH2020%F1 818 #£ 22020
F128318 1k~ # £20209F12A8
BMALFEZ2FEREHNAARE
3,598,0007T °

#H E2020F 12831 It F B &
RCOVID-19% 15 + R E BRI &
RERSHL—BEEHSER &
It 0 202028 M9 B &R 2 4 A
R #78,0000t o E It » FHEH L
AR #3,598,0007T8 L B4 AREE
3,520,0007T ©

R2020512 A30H © RERE (1
BAEMBAN)RRERBR GO (EALH
AR B[ E =152021FH
EHzl)  MERBEHEWEZA
HY - FHER B 202141 8 1H #£ £2021
F12A318 1E - H E2021F12F31
BEFEZFERASHOAARE
668,0007T °

MR2021512 5308 © REBRE M (/E
BAEMBA)ERERBK O (EALE
NI B —152022F
Epzl)  MERBEHEWE A
B FHHEF B 202241 A1 H £ E2022
F128318 1k~ & F£2022912A8
BMALEFEZ2FEREHNAARE
668,0007T °

F—M2020F HEWHE & — 10
202V E R « £ =1H20205F
EMERE _M2021FEBERET
MENESTRRERE T - RER
Bt R RTERRARD L2 Z R BT 48
L% 2 TIBHA S I E MM EUY
¥R RRBR AL A FER%

B -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

182

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The rental payable was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and Scud Technology
with reference to the market rental for similar
properties nearby in the PRC and having taken into
account availability of similar premises nearby and the
cost of relocation.

On 30 December 2019, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Third 2020 Lease Agreement”)
pursuant to which Scud Battery agreed to extend
the lease period of the existing leased premises for
the period commenced from 1 January 2020 and
ended on 31 December 2020. The annual rental was
approximately RMB6,421,000 and receivable by cash
on a monthly basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Scud
Battery and Scud Stock mutually agreed a rent
concession for the period from 1 February 2020 to 31
December 2020 in view of the COVID-19 Pandemic
and the annual rental was reduced from approximately
RMB6,42 1,000 to approximately RMB5,538,000.

On 30 December 2020, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Third 2021 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2021. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB4,689,000.

On 30 December 2021, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Third 2022 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the period for the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2022 and
ending on 31 December 2022. The annual rental for
the year ending 31 December 2022 is approximately
RMB4,689,000.

The rental receivable under the Third 2020 Lease
Agreement and the Third 2021 Lease Agreement were
determined after arm’s length negotiations between
Scud Battery and Scud Stock with reference to the
market rental for similar properties nearby in the PRC
and having taken into account availability of similar
premises nearby and the cost of relocation.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36. BEALTRF 2

(b)

(%)

BieE : ()

(ii)

(iif)

FEASM S T i AN SR B TR EBE R AR
2ERENTALUME 2T SEASY
B R M A BN 5 2 BT A R B A
RGN FRERREETE

R2019F 128308 ©» RERE W (1E
ABHBEA)ERERKD (TEEEBA)
ST B S (T FE =(2020FHE 1
Z) Bt REBRBHORELERR
BHEEWENEE - 52020F1H1H
HEZE2020F12 83181k - BFEHE A
ﬁ@&}\ﬁﬁ%,@uoooﬁ EFRAURE
HY o

H E2020F12A31B IEFE » RE
BRE St N RTERRAZ (D ZEHACOVID-195%
15— B A B 56202052 A 18 £2020
FNRANHEGHSEE  B5He
B4 AREEG,421,0007TH 2 49 A R
5,538,0007T °

2020128308 » RERE W (1E
AHAA)ERTEERRGD (FEAEBEA)
ST ERWE(E=M2021FEHE W
#) o NERBEHEMFE 2 HEE
T2 HH 820211 A1H #£ 22021412
A318 1k » # £2021412H318 1t
FRZFEMEH/AREAL689,000

JT, °

R2021412 8308 » RERBRE W (1E
AN ERTEERARGD ((EAEBEA)
ST ERWE E=M2022FEHE W
=D UNERBREHEEYE A
70 HA 8202241 A18 #£ 22022412
A31H 1k » # £2022412H31H 1t
FEZFERSHAH/AREESL689,000

JC ©

55 ={n2020F THE W & 58 =172021
FHEWS TORKES T RRER
B RRERK NG 2EREMTLR
U E 2 5S8R I EUY
X2 A R R RBR AR A FRER R

BEE °
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(0

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

The selling prices of finished goods, work-in-progress,
raw materials and low-value consumables are
determined and agreed by both parties.

(v)  The selling price of property, plant and equipment is
determined and agreed by both parties.

(vi)

The processing income and processing fee is
determined by both parties.

(vii) The training expense is determined by both parties.

(viii) The research and development expense is determined
by both parties.

Other transaction with related party:

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Fang Jin and the son of
Mr. Fang Jin have guaranteed certain bank facilities made
to the subsidiaries of the Group of up to an amount of
RMB3,683,127,000 (2020: RMB907,750,000).

Remuneration for key management personnel, representing
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
Note 11, is as follows:

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE20214F 12431 H I F/Z

36. BEALTRF )

(b)

(%)

BizE : (&)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

SRm ~ R - REE R EERM
MEERETETIRE -

VE  BELRBHEERENET
WRE

MTWARINTEHRETEE -

BIIERBENETE °
MBBRBEHETE °

HEPEATMEMRS

20214128318 e ERAEKE
ZFRARERWBE AR S E R E
A R #3,683,127,0007T(2020F : A R #&
907,750,0007T) K& T ER1TREE (ELHELR ©

TREEBABNMEGEMENARE
MEXNARBRESZSE)WAT

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEFTT

Fees, salaries, housing allowances, /e - Fre o EEER - iRk

other allowances and benefits in EYEA

kind 3,277 3,940
Post-employment benefits BRI R 26 20
3,303 3,960
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

37. NOTE SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF CASH 37. X RERERNKHE
FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BB EEEEMNBELE
Amounts due
Lease Amounts due to related
Bank loans  Other loans liabilities  to directors parties
EftEmE
RITER HitER HE8E EFESZE ALTHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR ARETR  AR%TE
As at 1 January 2020 #202051 818 582,689 9,393 9,898 409 11,648
Changes from cash flow BeReEy
Proceeds from new borrowings REFEHZ FAERE 1,493,660 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings BRER (1,161,282) (9,393) - - -
Repayment of principal portion of leases BEREZAEED - - (4,776) - -
Repayment of advances BRI - - - (373) (9,651)
Interest paid TFE (31,896) - (2,032) - -
Qther changes: HipEs
Foreign exchange movement INELE) (3,125) - (554) - -
Capitalisation of new leases FHEARL - - 26,768 - -
Interest expense GRS 31,896 - 2,032 - -
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 72020612 4318 K202151 518 911,942 31,336 36 1,997
Changes from cash flow Behes
Proceeds from new borrowings REFERZFEHE 1,745,734 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings [BRfET (1,482,684) - - - -
Repayment of principal portion of leases BEREZASEHD - - (8,403) - -
Repayment of advances BT - - - 2 -
Advance received BIEH - - - - 298
Interest paid FAH & (58,530) - (2,723) - -
Qther changes: Hib 2%
Foreign exchange movement INELE) 8 - (90) - -
Capitalisation of new leases HMHERRE - - 5,209 - -
Lease modification MEEY - - (5,026) - -
Interest expense FIBHX 58,530 - 2,723 - -
As at 31 December 2021 "20214%12A318 1,174,984 - 23,026 34 2,295
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EARKIE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBT T
Contracted but not accounted for, in EREEME - BEK
respect of acquisition of property, plant FAEFTRMERASR
and equipment 17,012 55,789

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30. R & zEmIT A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEHR - 2ERem T AMERBENT -
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBTT

Financial assets SMEE
Financial assets measured at amortised IREBHEKEHBENESREE

costs
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5R18 2,390,244 1,935,099
Financial assets included in prepayments, STATBNFIE © e R EMEWERIER

deposits and other receivables ERMEE 47,205 57,074
Amounts due from related parties FEUS R E A LR 78,722 87,917
Pledged bank deposits 2B TR 988,689 750,810
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 226,695 211,294

3,731,555 3,042,194
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI RAFEFAEMEZEKETEN
SREE

Notes receivables el Z 113,997 41,788
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39.RERIE849 €@ I Es)
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(Continued)

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARBTT

Financial liabilities LREE
Financial liabilities measured at REBHERATENSMEE

amortised costs
Trade and notes payables BB 538 K ENE IR 3,118,080 2,481,690
Financial liabilities included in other STAEAMERRIE aHAER

payables, contract liabilities and accrued EErERANEREE

charges 21,917 59,744
Lease liabilities HEBE 23,026 31,336
Bank loans RITER 1,174,984 911,942
Amounts due to directors BN EEHIE 34 36
Amounts due to related parties JETRAE A T FIB 2,295 1,997

4,340,336 3,486,745

The above financial instruments which are measured at amortised FHAEEXN AT ENSRT A - AEGHE
costs are not measured at fair value due to their short-term ERUAAFEFE - U EEBMTANEREE
nature. The carrying values of the above financial instruments HERNFEEE -

approximate their fair values.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. s iEMEEREMIAE 22
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE

(a) EmEREE

(a) Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, which include market risk (including foreign currency

risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks

are set out below. The directors manage and monitor these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(i)

Interest rate risk management

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are all short-
term in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans
with fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk due
to the short maturity of the items. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy and will
consider enter into interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

AEENEHEAZZEeREAR 25
MRk (2EMNERE - M XE B RE
RER) FERRERBERR - ARE
BEZERROBRNFFER T - &
EEEREEZERMB - PARECR NI LA
BRI ABIEE DB o

(i) FIERBEEE
FTEERMEEFEREHAHENDIE
PIRITIF R RIRITAERR - 19IREE F)
KB i REMABREEREER
MEFTERRITER : Bt - A5EE
EETHEEMIBHAE - St ~E
EXBEBRNNFENERER - AEER
IR R I AT (AT I R E R BUR R & =
RE TR R -

MERYRBED T
ATHSRE ST R A EEEH D
RmERRBELEMETE - YERAR
IRZBEMAXRESBRITAZAH
R - RAZREEEABRERN
o [ i Y P P 5 B {6 PR 38 AN sl
1% DEREBEEHNEAESEE
82 7 o
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

188

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 would
decrease/increase and the accumulated losses as
of 31 December 2021 would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB1,140,000 (2020: loss would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB187,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure,
to interest rates on its variable rate bank balances,
pledged bank deposits and bank loans.

The Group’s bank balance also expose it to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors consider the Group’s exposure on the
bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing
deposits are within short maturity periods in general.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not
changed significantly from prior year.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect
the Group’s financial results and its cash flows.
Although the Group has certain bank balances and
bank loans denominated in United States dollars,
Japanese Yen, Indian Rupee and Hong Kong dollars,
the proportion of these foreign currency balances to
the Group's total assets is insignificant. Furthermore,
the Group carries out majority of its transactions in
Chinese Renminbi. Accordingly, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign currency risk.
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VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iii) Price risk management

(iv)

In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have significant exposure to price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
primarily relates to the Group’s bank balances, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations
as at end of the financial year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the risk,
management of the Group closely monitors overdue
debts. The recoverable amount of each individual
debt is reviewed at each of the reporting period and
adequate allowance for doubtful debts has been made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that credit risk associated
with the Group's trade and notes receivables, and
other receivables is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has a certain level of concentration of credit
risk as approximately 18.5% (2020: 22.1%) and
approximately 42.3% (2020: 70.9%) of the total trade
and notes receivables, arising from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC.

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1 F/Z
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(iv)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. s iEMEEREMIAE 22

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE®)

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) LEEKRERE)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EEREREE(E)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade REBZEENFRATBHEEER
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which (MR EEEE) NS ET 2R
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s B SRR EEREE - ARAEER
historical credit loss experience does not indicate FEEEBERUARTIREFSE
significantly different loss patterns for different ERBPETANEERN - B0 RH
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past AEETREFEEE—FTRIBE
due status is not further distinguished between the B ARSI AR M B IR A -

Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the TERREEEBARASEERN2021F &
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade 202012 A3HFMEBRNEKRE 5
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: FEMEERKRKBHREEBENE
7H :

As at 31 December 2021 7A2021512A31H
As at 31
Gross December
carrying 2021
amount ECLs allowance M20214%F
BREE TEEME BB ERE 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETTT % AREFT AR®BTR
0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,692,636 0.65% (11,003) 1,681,633
61 to 180 days 61£180H 706,386 1.51% (10,677) 695,709
181 to 365 days 181%365H 16,819 23.29% (3,917) 12,902
Over 365 days 3658 £ 68,145 100.00% (68,145) -
Total @t 2,483,986 (93,742) 2,390,244
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. s iEMEEREMIAE 22

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE )
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) SRIEEEZE)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EEREERE(E)
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 H31H
As at 31
Carrying Dec 2020
amount ECLs allowance 7R2020%F
fRmEE EEMEEEEEE 12A31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTFT % ARETT AREBTT
0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,425,696 0.73% (10,423) 1,415,273
61 to 180 days 61£180H 465,489 0.96% (4,458) 461,031
181 to 365 days 181%365H 67,144 12.43% (8,349) 58,795
Over 365 days 3658 £ 72,319 100.00% (72,319) -
Total wast 2,030,648 (95,549) 1,935,099
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience FEHBEEERBEIFNERE
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to B - ZFRERFARENRBIL
reflect differences between economic conditions EE BB AABMMLENRR - Ealk
during the period over which the historic data has TUA R 7N 65 (B ¥ FE W I TR AR S
been collected, current conditions and the group’s BEMRANEEZBNEL -

view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

0.2MEBREERESEMIAEZA
Y& @)

(a) LRIAREREE)
(iv) EERBRERE(E)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

192

The Group has adopted general approach to measure
ECLs on financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and other financial
assets at amortised costs. Under the general approach,
the Group applies the “3-stage” impairment model
for ECLs measurement based on change in credit risk
since initial recognition as follows:

— Stage 1: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the financial instrument is
included in Stage 1.

— Stage 2: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition but is not deemed to be credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 2.

—  Stage 3: If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 3.

The ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 1 are
measured at an amount equivalent to 12-month ECLs
whereas the ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 2
or Stage 3 are measured at an amount equivalent to
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the risk of default
has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit risk
assessment and including forward-looking information.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. s iEMEEREMIAE 22

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE®)

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) SRIEEEZE)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EEREERE(E)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is considered as credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired include observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

() granting a concession to the debtors that
the lender would not otherwise consider for
economic or contractual reasons relating to the
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure of default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and adjusted for forward-looking information
through the use of industry trend and experienced
credit judgment to reflect the qualitative factors, and
through the use of multiple probability-weighted
scenarios.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

194

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

(v)

The loss allowance for financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December
2020 reconciles to the opening loss allowance on 1
January 2021 and to the closing loss allowance as at

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0.2MEBREERESEMIAEZA
Y& @)

(a) LRIAREREE)
(iv) EEREREE(E)
M2020F 12831 Bt AR E R H b
FEWFIB 2 & RV A E 2 BB R ERN
20211 A1 B 2 E VI BB EEB RN
2021 12A3MB 2 EREBERE 2

31 December 2021 are as follow: HERMOT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
Opening loss allowance as  R181B 2EABERE
at 1 January 428 1,737
Impairment loss recognised BET AR e R EMERRIE Z A E
on financial assets included MR RBEEE
in deposits and other
receivables 718 131
Reversal of impairment BRI RIBLET AR © R E A EUGRIA 2
loss on financial assets CRIEERRZBERE
included in deposits and
other receivables previously
recognised (56) )
Written off 8 - (1,433)
Closing loss allowance as at R12A31H ZEREERE
31 December 1,090 428
Liquidity risk management v) REBMERREE

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. s iEMEEREMIAE 22

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E &)
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) EREEEIEE)
(v) Liquidity risk management (Continued) (v) mEMERERE(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities M20214F K%2020F12A31H * A&
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, based on the ERS A EREDTAAREEIE A
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows: HEIEAE R T -
2021
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
SR-E FER

FREX  -EIf  BBIF REREME  BEAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  AREBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR

Trade and notes payables ENEFERENEE 3,118,080 - - 3,118,080 3,118,080
Financial liabilities included in other payables, 5t AR ERZUE - BUFUER

receipts in advance and accrued charges EAEAMERAR 21917 - - 2917 211917
Lease liabilities HEafk 8,350 18,462 - 26,812 23,026
Bank loans FIER 879,843 272,756 107,886 1,260,485 1,174,984
Amounts due to directors ENEZHE 34 - - 34 34
Amounts due to related parties ENBEALIE 2,295 - - 2,295 2,295

4,030,519 291,218 107,886 4,429,623 4,340,336

2020
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than  undiscounted aarying
demand 15 years 5 years cash flows amount
i3 REER

LBk -ERf BRRF REREEE  BESE
RMB'OOO  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'00D
ARBTE  ARRTT  ARETR  ARRTR  ARRTR

Trade and notes payables ENESTERENRE 2,481,690 = - 2481690 2,481,690
Financial liabilities included in other payables, St ARMEMIVE  AHEER

contract liabilities and accrued charges EAERNLRAR 59,744 - - 59,744 59,744
Lease liabilties HESE 10,444 26,522 - 36,966 31,336
Bank loans FER 710,479 162,987 104,145 977,611 911,942
Amounts due to directors ENESTE 36 - - 36 36
Amounts due to related parties EREEALZE 1,997 - - 1,997 1,997

3,264,390 189,509 104,145 3,558,044 3,486,745
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. s iEMEEREMIAE 22

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE(®)

(Continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments (b) ERMITEZAFE
The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities FHIR EE’J%%QF&Q&E’J%%%
with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to %Efjf?]“ BENERE

approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been BN EEA TSN TEEER £ % 2 89
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of E & 8 R T A S IR E - i &
these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of EEZTEBHATE -

the relationship.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell assets ANTEEMB2EE ZHRFEETH

or paid to transfer liabilities in an orderly transaction RSP REEEEMBERAEE S

between market participants at the measurement date. B ARER - REBIRTAFER

The Group discloses fair value measurements of financial ERAFEeRITANLNTERS :

instruments by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o HAEBEXEBBERERMBENRE
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). (REERAE) (B8R -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level o BREIBIHABEMEZIITEEK
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either FEBERINEEXBENE AE
directly or indirectly (level 2). (24) o

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o  WIHERABEMSHIENEENE
observable market data (level 3). B AE(E3R) °
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments (Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped
into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

FRE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 %2021 1231H 1F F/Z

0.2REREEREBMIAEZA

NRERE )

(b) ERMTRZAFEE)
WA M BEMORR B AR EFEN S R
BERAFEEROAWT

Level 3
E34%
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Financial assets at FVTOCI B FEGTAA M B K% & E
— Notes receivables — RN EE 113,997 41,788
Notes receivables are stated at FVTOCI. The directors are of FEUREEZAFEFAR MK - &
the opinion that the carrying amounts of notes receivables EFRRBUEENREMESRL N FER
approximate to their fair value. & o

There have been no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

H Z£20214F N2020F12 8318 IEF & -
B3PI EEE A i o

41. EXRER

AEENTIEEAERE ABERREAEEGE
REMBEN  BRRBENEARLE - UXHFE
BEBERMERADE

REBEEBEEEARREE  WHLERRNHES
REBEENRBREEHEREBETAE -
REFFNAEERNERE  NEETARIRMNRKR
HHIR S - MR D E AR BT - A%
ETZEMIINREENERRENRE - HZE
20214F K2020F12A31H L FE  WEHE
Z -« BURSKIZFF{EL 8% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12431 H 1L F/Z

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) 4. EXREE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is RNEBEFHERNEG B REEFER - B2 &
interest-bearing borrowings divided by the capital. Capital HBRAER - BEARBIERNDNBNHEAE AELERS
includes equity attributable to owners of the Company and the RIEfEpEzs - REEHEIR - EXRBELERDN
non-controlling interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the T

reporting period were as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T

Interest-bearing borrowings sHEER 1,174,984 911,942
Equity attributable to owners of the KAEER AEIE R

Company 1,057,611 1,013,823
Non-controlling interests eI i 3,773 10,718
Total equity B 1,061,384 1,024,541
Gearing ratio BERBELE 110.7% 89.0%

42. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 42. Lk B EF

Certain comparative figures in Note 6 of the consolidated FE M BHRERMTeEE THREFEEN S
financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the o UREAFEENZEY -

current year's presentation.

43. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 43.#tEGZEME®E
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and AATEEZSDR202243 831 B & RIS
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company TR S B TSR o

on 31 March 2022.
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RESULTS ES
The Group TEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTI ARBTT ARBTIT ARETT

Turnover L 7,091,644 6,216,571 7,395,203 6,962,078 5,801,566
Profit/(loss) before B TS FL AT

income tax wmHL(EE) 64,498 (39,903) 56,227 105,280 20,290
Income tax expense FriSfiF sz (25,937) (17,579) (7,531) (9,196) (409)
Profit/(loss) for the year REHEF (EE) 38,561 (57,482) 48,696 96,084 19,881

Profit/(loss) attributable to: THIALEMG

A (EHR) -
Owners of the Company ZiN/NCIEZZE N 42,182 (52,683) 52,543 93,274 21,125
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS (3,621) (4,799) (3,847) 2,810 (1,244)
38,561 (57,482) 48,696 96,084 19,881
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
The Group REE
At 31 December
A12H31H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Total assets BEE 5,578,631 4,643,973 5,183,200 4,932,165 3,916,878
Total liabilities HAmE (4,517,247) (3,619,432) (4,108,674) (3,906,728) (2,979,446)
1,061,384 1,024,541 1,074,526 1,025,437 937,432
Attributable to: TFA LR
Owners of the Company KARBEE A 1,057,611 1,013,823 1,058,728 1,011,436 926,183
Non-controlling interests IEIE S 3,773 10,718 15,798 14,001 11,249
1,061,384 1,024,541 1,074,526 1,025,437 937,432
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| PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
J/ BEYERFHE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWZE
Percentage of
interest
Total rental attributable to
Description Use Nature area the Group
AEEELER
B3 AR 31 HEAEE Aok
A factory building and a warehouse building located at No. Manufacturing Short term 35,115 sq.m 100%
135, Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian facility leasehold 35,115 FAaK
Province, PRC HERE RHHE
AT EERERNTSERFEIRRK135%N —ELERRE
L—igERE
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SCUD Industrial Park

Fuzhou Pilot Free Trade Zone
No. 98 Jiangbin East Avenue
Mawei District, Fuzhou

Fujian Province, PRC

Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

www.vesonhldg.com

FEERE
BNTERE
TLBR K iB9855%
BINEEHRE
RERTER

BB IREEIEWEBTTHR
ETER 101017

Tel Ei

Fax {EE

Tel Ei
Fax {#E

: (86) 591-63158388
: (86) 591-87307773

: (852) 28057888
: (852) 28021777

FSC

www/fsc.org

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources

FSC™ C008061



	COVER
	CONTENT
	CORPORATE PROFILE
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
	BACK COVER



